
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 4, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

June 4, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Father Joseph Cuic – St. Lucy Croation 
Catholic Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation by Senator John Pappageorge on behalf of St. Nicholas Greek 
Orthodox Church Members – OPA Fest............................................................... 1 

b) Presentation by Ross A. Davison of University of Michigan – UM/ULI 
Walkable Urbanism Strategic and Implementation ............................................... 1 

c) Presentation by Commissioner Robert Gosselin and Commissioner David 
Potts – County Commission Update..................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Kostal of 
America, Inc. – 350 Stephenson 1 

C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) to Kostal of America, Inc. – 350 Stephenson 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

 

C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 
Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 3 

C-4 Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan #6 and the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 No Postponed Items 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 5 

a) Boy Scout Troop 1702 – Celebrating 25 Years .................................................... 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pool Maintenance 
and Repair Services ............................................................................................. 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Type ‘K’ Copper 
Tubing .................................................................................................................. 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Major Street 
Pavement Marking Program................................................................................. 6 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete 
Pavement Repair.................................................................................................. 6 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Members’ Travel Expenses – 109  Michigan 
Municipal League Convention

th

.............................................................................. 7 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Private Road Agreement 
from Alexander Homes, Inc., Fountain Park Troy Condominium Development –
Section 14 7 

E-6 Private Agreement for Walco Properties – Project No. 06.928.03 7 



 
 

 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – William Beaumont 
Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001 8 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – Caswell Town 
Center PUD 5, Section 2, Sidwell #88-20-02-101-001 8 

E-9 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:   Board of Zoning 
Appeals; Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District 
Commission and Municipal Building Authority 9 

F-2 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 
South Side of Big Beaver, East of Adams, Section 30 – R-1C 10 

F-3 Request from Walsh College to Use City of Troy 2007 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 11 

F-4 Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 11 

F-5 Bid Waiver – Digital Recording of Sanitary Sewer Inspections 12 

F-6 Bid Waiver – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment 12 

F-7 Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney 13 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV 
and XXII – Adult Business Uses – June 18, 2007 .............................................. 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 13 



 
 

 

a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities – Revision of Membership 
Requirements ..................................................................................................... 13 

b) Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation 
Control ................................................................................................................ 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

I-1 No Council Comments 13 

REPORTS: 14 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 14 

a) Personnel Board/Final – June 5, 2006 ............................................................... 14 
b) Historic Commission/Final – January 23, 2007................................................... 14 
c) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 18, 2007................................... 14 
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – April 24, 2007......................................... 14 
e) Youth Council/Final – April 25, 2007 .................................................................. 14 
f) Planning Commission/Draft – May 1, 2007 ........................................................ 14 
g) Planning Commission/Final – May 1, 2007......................................................... 14 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 2, 2007 ........................................ 14 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 15, 2007.................................................. 14 
j) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – May 22, 2007......................................... 14 
k) Youth Council/Draft – May 23, 2007................................................................... 14 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 14 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 14 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Mark A. Hackel – Office of the Sheriff – Macomb 
County to Chief Craft in Appreciation of Officer Fitzpatrick for Providing Them 
with Information for a SWAT Training Location .................................................. 14 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Communication from City Assessor Nino Licari Regarding Council Comments from 
May 21, 2007 – Additional Panel and Security Concerns for Board of Review 14 



 
 

 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 14 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 15 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 15 

ADJOURNMENT 15 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

Monday, June 18, 2007 ........................................................................................... 15 
1. Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easterly ½ of Eckford in 

Section 15 – Project No. 06.202.1 ...................................................................... 15 
2. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV 

and XXII – Adult Business Uses ......................................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, June 18, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 15 
Monday, July 9, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................... 15 
Monday, July 23, 2007 Regular City Council......................................................... 15 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 15 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 15 
Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................ 15 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Father Joseph Cuic – St. Lucy 
Croation Catholic Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Presentation by Senator John Pappageorge on behalf of St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox 

Church Members – OPA Fest  
b) Presentation by Ross A. Davison of University of Michigan – UM/ULI Walkable Urbanism 

Strategic and Implementation  
c) Presentation by Commissioner Robert Gosselin and Commissioner David Potts – County 

Commission Update             
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Kostal of 
America, Inc. – 350 Stephenson 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Kostal of America, Inc., for property known as 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, 
Parcel # 88-20-35-327-026, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

No: 
 
C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) to Kostal of America, Inc. – 350 Stephenson  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on April 
16, 2007, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, Parcel # 88-20-35-327-026;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Kostal of America, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 
48083-1103, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on June 4, 2007, 
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., 
at 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., at 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., at 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, Parcel #88-20-35-327-026, for personal property for a term 
of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and Kostal of America, Inc., in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Kostal of America, Inc., a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 
Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of Maple 
and Thorncroft, east of Maplelawn, in Section 29, part of parcel 88-20-29-426-033, being 3.18 
acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the ATTACHED 
sketch of survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 29 
 

The south 540 ft. of Lot 12 of Maplelawn Industrial Park No. 2 (Liber 119, page 35, of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±3.18 ac. more or less, and subject to restrictions 
and easements of record; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The rezoning is RECOMMENDED by the Planning Commission; 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City of Troy Zoning 
District Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-4 Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan #6 and the 

Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy (the "City") as authorized by the provisions of Act 197, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1975, as amended, has created a Downtown Development Authority;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary, for the best interests of the public, to halt property value 
deterioration and increase property tax valuation where possible in the business district of the 
City of Troy, to eliminate the causes of such deterioration, and to promote economic growth;  
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinance 78, designated a Downtown Development Authority, and 
Ordinance 80 created Development and Tax Increment Financing Plans pursuant to Public Act 
197, as amended, has been adopted by the Troy City Council;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority wishes to modify the Development 
Plan to include the implementation of the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has prepared Downtown Development 
Plan #6 and Tax Increment Financing Plan #6 incorporating the previous development plans 
and tax increment financing plans;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has requested the Troy City Council 
consider Development Plan #6 and Tax Increment Plan #6; and 
 
WHEREAS, A public hearing has been published and posted in accordance with applicable 
local and state law as required by Act 197, as amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DETERMINES that it is necessary 
and in the best interest of the public to maintain a Downtown Development Authority pursuant 
to Act 197, as amended, in order to halt property value deterioration and increase property tax 
valuation where possible in the business district of the City of Troy, to eliminate the causes of 
such deterioration, and to promote economic growth, and that Downtown Development Plan #6 
and Tax Increment Financing Plan #6 constitute a public purpose, since they provide for the 
implementation of the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Downtown 
Development Plan #6 and amends City of Troy Ordinance 80; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Tax Increment 
Financing Plan #6 and amends City of Troy Ordinance 80. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 21, 2007 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Boy Scout Troop 1702 – Celebrating 25 Years   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pool Maintenance and 

Repair Services                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two-year 
requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year options to renew to the low 
bidder, B and B Pools and Spas of Livonia, MI, at rates contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 27, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
with a contract expiration of June 30, 2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Type ‘K’ Copper Tubing                 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the contract to purchase Type “K” 
Copper Tubing to the low bidder SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, for an estimated 
total cost of $79,170.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 24, 2007, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Major Street 

Pavement Marking Program                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
WHEREAS, On August 1, 2005 two-year requirements of major street pavement marking with 
an option to renew for one additional year was awarded to the low bidder, P.K. Contracting, Inc. 
of Troy, MI (Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4b), and  
 
WHEREAS, P.K. Contracting, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for one additional year to provide major street pavement marking with 
amended construction quantities with P.K. Contracting, Inc. of Troy, MI, under the same 
contract prices as the 2006/07 season to expire June 30, 2008.   
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Pavement 

Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 23, 2006 contracts to complete the concrete pavement repair program 
for 2006/07 with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to the three lowest 
bidders, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland, Michigan for proposal A, A-1, Local Roads; Six-
S, Inc. of Waterford, Michigan for proposal B – Major Roads; and Major Cement Company of 
Detroit, Michigan for proposal C – Industrial Roads at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened on October 10, 2006 (Resolution #2006-10-320-E4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three contractors have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts for one additional year to provide concrete pavement repair for 2007/08 
with amended construction quantities with Hard Rock Concrete, Inc., Six-S, Inc. and Major 
Cement Company under the same contract prices, terms and conditions to expire on June 30, 
2008, not to exceed budgetary limitations. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Members’ Travel Expenses – 109th Michigan Municipal League 
Convention 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Council members to attend the 
109th Michigan Municipal League Convention at the Grand Traverse Resort in Traverse City, 
Michigan from September 18-20, 2007 in accordance with the accounting procedures of the 
City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Private Road Agreement 

from Alexander Homes, Inc., Fountain Park Troy Condominium Development –
Section 14  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS three (3) permanent easements for 
sanitary sewer, water main, and emergency ingress/egress from property owner Alexander 
Homes, Inc., having Sidwell #88-20-14-351-084; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
private road agreement on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the three (3) 
permanent easements and private road agreement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Walco Properties – Project No. 06.928.03  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and WALCO Properties, 
LLC, for the installation of bituminous pavement, concrete approaches and concrete sidewalk 
on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – William Beaumont 
Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner 
William Beaumont Hospital, having Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – Caswell Town Center 

PUD 5, Section 2, Sidwell #88-20-02-101-001  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner 
Joseph Petruzzello, as Trustee or his Successor Trustee(s) under Agreement dated October 
27, 1999, having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-001; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty Deed with 
the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Nick 
Karagiannakis and Leslie Karagiannakis, husband and wife, and Garrett Family Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan Limited Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 07-083014-CZ) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:   Board of Zoning 
Appeals; Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District 
Commission and Municipal Building Authority 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular; 1-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 

South Side of Big Beaver, East of Adams, Section 30 – R-1C 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium 
known as Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, located on the south side of Big Beaver, east of 
Adams, in Section 30, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 5.1 acres 
in size. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

F-3 Request from Walsh College to Use City of Troy 2007 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Walsh College has requested a portion of Community Development Block Grant 
funding allocated to the City of Troy for use in improving private facilities and, consequently, 
public drainage ways; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s allocation of Community Development Block Grant funds has been 
committed to programs and projects that meet the purposes and guidelines of the CDBG 
program as promulgated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DENIES the allocation of 
$25,000 of Community Development Block Grant funds to Walsh College, but REQUESTS that 
the City Manager and staff ASSIST Walsh College in other possible and relevant ways to 
ensure that the project is completed as proposed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting for the purpose of 
discussing strategic planning initiatives:  
 

Monday, June 11, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 
Tuesday, June 12, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 

Monday, July 30, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 
Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 

Monday, August 13, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 
Tuesday, August 14, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 

Wednesday, August 15, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 
Monday, August 27, 2007 at 7:30 PM OR 

Wednesday, August 29, 2007 at 7:30 PM  
 
in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

F-5 Bid Waiver – Digital Recording of Sanitary Sewer Inspections 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, May 21, 2007, Troy City Council approved the upgrade of the sanitary 
sewer televising inspection equipment to Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, the 
manufacturer, at an estimated cost of $45,866.00 (Resolution #2007-05-165); and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to changes in video technology, the VHS based system has become obsolete 
and the City is seeking to capture inspections using digital video technology; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase proprietary sanitary sewer 
televising inspection software from Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA for an estimated 
total cost of $19,700.00, with a yearly software maintenance fee of $1,900.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the contracts to 
purchase necessary hardware from Hewlett Packard and GTSI for an estimated total cost of 
$8,466.00 as detailed in Appendix A, utilizing approved purchasing procedures. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005, the City of Troy awarded a two-year contract to supply initial 
issue police uniforms and equipment for newly hired Police Department uniformed employees, 
with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Metropolitan Uniform Company at an estimated cost of $1,620.00 per employee, 
at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation dated February 25, 2005 (Resolution #2005-03-
123-E11); and 
 
WHEREAS, Metropolitan Uniform Company has agreed to keep costs for initial issue police 
uniforms and equipment at original bid prices from 2005; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase initial issue police uniforms and 
equipment for newly hired Police Department uniformed employees to Metropolitan Uniform 
Company at an estimated total cost of $1,620.00 per employee, at unit prices detailed on the 
bid tabulation for ITB-COT 05-02 to expire June 30, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the annual compensation of Council appointee Lori Grigg Bluhm, City 
Attorney, is INCREASED by 3% (or ___%), EFFECTIVE January 1, 2007. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII – 

Adult Business Uses – June 18, 2007 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities – Revision of Membership 

Requirements  
b) Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Personnel Board/Final – June 5, 2006 
b) Historic Commission/Final – January 23, 2007 
c) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 18, 2007  
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – April 24, 2007  
e) Youth Council/Final – April 25, 2007  
f) Planning Commission/Draft – May 1, 2007  
g) Planning Commission/Final – May 1, 2007  
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 2, 2007  
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 15, 2007  
j) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – May 22, 2007  
k) Youth Council/Draft – May 23, 2007 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Mark A. Hackel – Office of the Sheriff – Macomb County to 

Chief Craft in Appreciation of Officer Fitzpatrick for Providing Them with Information for a 
SWAT Training Location 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from City Assessor Nino Licari Regarding Council Comments 

from May 21, 2007 – Additional Panel and Security Concerns for Board of Review 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 4, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, June 18, 2007 
1. Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easterly ½ of Eckford in 

Section 15 – Project No. 06.202.1  
2.  Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and 

XXII – Adult Business Uses 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, June 18, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 9, 2007 ................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, July 23, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 6, 2007 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 1, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 15, 2007........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  University of Michigan Real Estate Program 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Summary for Troy’s Walkable Urbanism Strategic and 

Implementation Plan 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
We are pleased to offer this summary for the scope of work for the Walkable Urbanism 
Strategic and Implementation Plan for Troy.  Our project will focus on the future multi-
modal transit center in southwest corner of Maple Road and Coolidge Highway.  This 
initiative is a direct result of the City of Troy’s commitment to promoting itself as a 
thriving economic and cultural center of southeast Michigan.   
 
This transit center could serve not only as a major anchor in Troy for transit, but also 
could become the center of a vibrant collection of land uses.  A three-phase initiative will 
identify and develop the ways in which this area can realize its ultimate potential. 
 
Phase One – Contextual Analysis 
Completion Date: Sept. 1, 2007 
 
Our team’s contextual analysis will combine recent efforts (Troy Futures 2020 Report, 
Big Beaver Corridor Study, etc.) with an in-depth look at the land use patterns, 
transportation options, fiscal impacts and market potential as they relate to the project.  
The results will be published in a Briefing Book summarizing the findings of the team’s 
research. 
 
Areas of Study 
 
Our research will examine four primary areas:  
 

1. Land Use: The purpose of the land use study is to assess current site 
conditions, as well as the plans, policies, and personalities that have shaped the 
built environment. The main goals of the land use component will be to: 

a. Develop and recommend policies necessary for implementation of the 
Walkable Urbanism Strategic & Implementation Plan.   

b. Analyze the physical constraints that may impact the implementation of 
the strategic plan.  

c. Understand the historic and current forces that have shaped the built 
environment within the study area. 

d. Identify opportunities for redevelopment of auto-oriented sites to 
walkable, transit-oriented sites. 

2. Transportation: Transportation systems have a profound influence on land use 
patterns; therefore, comprehensive analyses of these models are necessary to 
plan a well-integrated multi-modal center. The transportation component will:   

a. Evaluate transit needs based on potential demand. 
b. Assess the relative strengths and weaknesses of different transportation 

options. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



c. Review current conditions of transportation infrastructure as well as 
initiatives and other programs. 

3. Fiscal Analysis: The goal of a fiscal analysis is to distinguish the public and 
private funding sources that may impact viability of the various proposals of the 
strategic plan.  This includes:   

a. Cost-benefit analysis. 
b. Overview of potential federal and state funding for transit. 
c. Review of capital budgets affecting the study area. 
d. Examination of possible TIF financing or other progressive financing 

methods. 
4. Market Research: While transportation shapes development, the market plays a 

major role in driving development.  To that end, we will research market data to 
better understand the potential for development opportunities. The objective of a 
thorough market research analysis is to provide understanding of Troy’s current 
economic status and future economic growth, which will offer valuable insight in 
developing the proposed concepts.   The market study will evaluate: 

a. Demographic trends 
b. Spending power 
c. Supply of existing housing, retail, and office properties 

 
Geographic Scale 
 
This analysis will consider not only the transit site and immediate surrounding area, but 
also a number of “activity nodes” within close proximity that may benefit if connected 
functionally to the transit center. Therefore, the analysis will examine these four areas at 
three geographic scales:  
 

1. The 3-acre transit site 
2. The immediate area (approx 1/4 mile radius) 
3. Neighboring “Activity Nodes” including the Coolidge/Big Beaver Intersection, the 

Michigan Design Center, and Downtown Birmingham 
 
Phase Two – Strategic & Implementation Plan 
Completion Date: November 7, 2007 
 
The data collection and analysis will be used to generate a strategic plan for the Troy 
community to successfully implement projects and programs to achieve their goals of a 
more walkable community.  The results of Phase Two will be presented at the annual 
UM/ULI Real Estate Forum, and then used to guide decision-making at the annual UM 
Design Charrette. 
 
Phase Three – Urban Design Charrette 
Completion Date: January 2008 
 
A design “charrette” (multi-day workshop) will produce a physical vision of the strategic 
plan to provide additional insights and ideas for the area.  The charrette will bring 
together planners, architects, and other practitioners to develop concepts for the sites 
within the project area. 

 2



Final Product/Deliverables 
 

1. Publish the results of the research and analysis efforts in two formats: 
a. A briefing book to provide a summary of the comprehensive report 
b. A final comprehensive report 

2. Strategic & Implementation Plan – To be presented at the University of 
Michigan/ULI Real Estate Forum November 7-8. 

3. TCAUP Winter 2008 Charrette Booklet – A summary of the concepts and 
designs developed by charrette participants. 

 
Our team has sensed the community’s strong desire for responsible growth and good 
placemaking based on the themes of transit and walkable urbanism that repeatedly 
arose in the previous studies.  For example, the Troy Futures Vision 2020 report 
emphasizes the need for Troy to develop walkable places with access to housing, 
gathering places, and cultural opportunities.   
 
Our team is anxious to integrate the community’s vision, goals, and objectives with our 
professional and academic training in urban planning and real estate development.  We 
believe the Transit Center is essential to Troy’s ability to sustain and grow its economic 
and social climate; Troy has excellent potential retain and further its status as a major 
economic center of the Detroit region. We look forward to helping your community in 
growing its future. We welcome your questions or comments.   
 
City Council Support: 
 
We request a City Council Liaison for the duration of the project.  This will be an 
important point of contact to share the project’s progress with the City Council.  The 
team will provide updates to the liaison through weekly progress reports.    
 
UM Team Contact Information 
 
Name Focus Area Phone Email 
Eric Beckett Transportation 248-770-7234 ebeckett@umich.edu
Ross Davidson Land Use 734-474-5815 radarcki@umich.edu
Michelle Elder Market Research 248-390-7107 chenmm@umich.edu
James McMurray Fiscal Analysis 801-400-5813 jbmcm@umich.edu
Team Email General Inquiries  troyteam4@umich.edu 
 

 3

mailto:ebeckett@umich.edu
mailto:radarcki@umich.edu
mailto:chenmm@umich.edu
mailto:jbmcm@umich.edu


Team Profile 
 
 Chris B. Leinberger – Chris B. Leinberger is a Professor of Practice and the Director of the 
Graduate Real Estate Program at the University of Michigan. He is also a Visiting Fellow at The 
Brookings Institution in Washington, DC, focusing on research and practices that helping transform 
traditional and suburban downtowns and other places that provide "walkable urbanity.”  Chris has written 
award-winning articles for publications such as the Atlantic Monthly, Wall Street Journal, Urban Land 
Magazine, among others, and is the author or has contributed chapters to six books.  Most recently, 
Chris played an instrumental role in a major strategic planning initiative for downtown Detroit.  His wife, 
Lisa, and he live in the DuPont Circle area of Washington, DC, within walking distance of both a Metro 
station and Brookings. 
 
 Larissa Larsen – Larissa Larsen is an assistant professor of urban planning at the University of 
Michigan.  Larissa’s expertise primarily relates to physical planning, community development, and 
environmental planning.  A prolific writer, lecturer, and practitioner, Larissa brings valuable experience 
and perspective in her advisory capacity to the student team.  She holds a bachelor of applied science 
and master of landscape architecture from the University of Guelph (Canada) and has her Ph.D. in 
regional planning from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign. 
 
 Eric Beckett – Eric Beckett is a graduate student in Urban Planning at the University of Michigan.  
Through work experiences in a variety of settings, Eric has developed strong communication and 
problem solving skills.  A native of southeast Michigan, Eric has a thorough understanding of both the 
problems and opportunities of communities throughout the region.  Upon graduating, Eric hopes to work 
in progressive real estate development.  Eric received his BS in Environment from the University of 
Michigan. 
 
 Ross Davidson – Ross Davidson is pursuing a dual degree in Urban Design and Urban Planning 
with a Certificate in Real Estate Development at the University of Michigan.  He is a Major in the U.S. 
Army and has served a variety of assignments in health facility project design, construction, and 
management worldwide, including Afghanistan and Iraq.  Upon graduation, Ross will return to the Army 
to lead progressive approaches in health facility acquisition and execution.  Ross and his wife Kari are 
looking forward to having their second child this Fall. Ross earned a Bachelor of Architecture from 
University of Notre Dame in 1996.  
 
 Michelle Elder – Michelle Elder is a master’s student in Urban Planning with a Certificate in Real 
Estate Development at the University of Michigan. She began her professional career in Architecture, 
designing residential and commercial projects. However, her interest in providing solutions for clients led 
to a successful path in Marketing and Advertising, where she planned and implemented promotions for 
major corporations such as General Motors, DaimlerChrysler, and Procter and Gamble. A native of 
southeast Michigan, Michelle’s family ties to the City of Troy provides a personal connection to this 
project. Michelle currently lives in Royal Oak with her husband, Andrew and earned a B.S. in Architecture 
from the University of Michigan. 
 
 James McMurray – James McMurray is a master’s student in Urban Planning with a Certificate 
in Real Estate Development at the University of Michigan. James is currently working as a research 
fellow for EDAW’s Transit Oriented Development Initiative studying the effects of mass transit on real 
estate values over time.  Before enrolling at Michigan, James worked as a planner in both the public and 
private sectors.  James holds an undergraduate degree in Geography from Brigham Young University in 
Provo, Utah.  James, his wife Heather (a native of Troy) and their daughter Rebekah currently live in Ann 
Arbor. 



 

 
 
June 4, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for Kostal of America, Inc., 350 Stephenson  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Kostal of America, Inc., is currently located in Novi.  They are a family owned, German based 

company that specializes in the development and manufacturing of technologically advanced 
electronic and electromechanical (mechatronic) products.  They have 22 world wide locations, and 
employ approximately 10,500 persons.  All of the worlds leading automobile companies, and many 
of their suppliers are customers of Kostal.  In conjunction with Michigan Economic Growth 
Authority (MEGA) grants, they are seeking (and MEGA requires) a local match to facilitate their 
intention of operating a research and development facility at 350 Stephenson.   

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as 
amended) and local City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction 
in personal property taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent 
may be slightly higher or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education 
Tax the State levies). 
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,854,500 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $210,493.06, of which $40,223.87 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $105,246.53 in total taxes, of which $20,111.93 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  Kostal will own and occupy the 350 Stephenson Building, which is 76,427 square 
feet, and has been vacant since Collins and Aikman filed for bankruptcy protection, and moved to 
Southfield. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Kostal\CouncilPakIDD PH 















Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)



Market Value 2,854,500 2,616,720 2,180,775 1,635,799 1,090,751 636,453 318,354 132,722 44,276 11,082 1,851 155 0
50% of Value 1,427,250 1,308,360 1,090,387 817,900 545,375 318,227 159,177 66,361 22,138 5,541 925 77 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,308,360 1,090,387 817,900 545,375 318,227 159,177 66,361 22,138 5,541 925 77 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $771.93 $643.33 $482.56 $321.77 $187.75 $93.91 $39.15 $13.06 $3.27 $0.55 $0.05 $0.00
County 4.64610 $6,078.77 $5,066.05 $3,800.04 $2,533.87 $1,478.51 $739.55 $308.32 $102.86 $25.74 $4.30 $0.36 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $4,407.87 $3,673.51 $2,755.50 $1,837.37 $1,072.11 $536.27 $223.57 $74.58 $18.67 $3.12 $0.26 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $2,072.97 $1,727.61 $1,295.88 $864.09 $504.20 $252.20 $105.14 $35.08 $8.78 $1.47 $0.12 $0.00

State Ed 6.00000 $7,850.16 $6,542.32 $4,907.40 $3,272.25 $1,909.36 $955.06 $398.17 $132.83 $33.25 $5.55 $0.46 $0.00
School Op 18.00000 $23,550.48 $19,626.97 $14,722.19 $9,816.76 $5,728.08 $2,865.18 $1,194.50 $398.48 $99.74 $16.66 $1.39 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.71000 $6,162.38 $5,135.72 $3,852.31 $2,568.72 $1,498.85 $749.72 $312.56 $104.27 $26.10 $4.36 $0.36 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $501.23 $417.73 $313.34 $208.93 $121.91 $60.98 $25.42 $8.48 $2.12 $0.35 $0.03 $0.00
City 9.28000 $12,141.58 $10,118.79 $7,590.11 $5,061.08 $2,953.14 $1,477.16 $615.83 $205.44 $51.42 $8.59 $0.72 $0.00
Total 48.56260 $63,537.37 $52,952.04 $39,719.33 $26,484.85 $15,453.91 $7,730.04 $3,222.66 $1,075.08 $269.09 $44.94 $3.76 $0.00

Total 12 Years $210,493.06
Total City 12 Yr $40,223.87

50% Total 12 Yr $105,246.53
50% Total City 12 $20,111.93 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Kostal of America, Inc

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



Legal Description for Kostal of America, Inc., property at 350 Stephenson, Troy, 
MI 48083-1103 
 
 
88-20-35-327-026 
 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 35  
OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO 1418  
TROY CONCEPT CENTER  
UNIT 3, L24972, P416, 
05/13/02 FR -006 



Page 1 of 1

3/26/2007http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS586424487.GIF

licarila
Text Box
Parcel ID # 88-20-35-327-026  350 Stephenson Troy, MI 48083-1103



Page 1 of 1

3/26/2007http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS523261129.GIF

licarila
Text Box
Parcel ID # 88-20-35-327-026  350 Stephenson Troy, MI 48083-1103



June 4, 2007 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
Kostal of America, Inc., 350 Stephenson, Troy, Michigan 48083-1103. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Kostal of America, Inc, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Kostal of America, Inc, understands that through its 
investment of $ 2,854,500 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2009, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2009, Kostal of America, Inc will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Kostal of America, Inc, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
Kostal of America, Inc, further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Kostal of America, Inc, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  Kostal of America, Inc, agrees that it will operate the Project 

in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of the Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
 City Clerk 



 
JOHN SCHWARTZ 
ROYAL OAK PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
1123 LEXINGTON 
ROYAL OAK MI 48073-2499 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
KOSTAL OF AMERICA INC 
25325 REGENCY DR 
NOVI MI 48375 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  







 

 
 
June 4, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to Kostal of America, Inc., 350 Stephenson, Troy MI 
48083-1103  

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Kostal of America, Inc., is currently located in Novi.  They are a family owned, German based 

company that specializes in the development and manufacture of technologically advanced 
electronic and electromechanical products.  They intend to own and occupy the vacant 76,427 
square foot building at 350 Stephenson, and use the facility for research and development. 

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy.  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City 
policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property 
taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent may be slightly higher 
or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education Tax the State levies). 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,854,500 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $210,493.06, of which $40,223.87 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $105,246.53 in total taxes, of which $20,111.93 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  The company will own and occupy an existing vacant 76,427 square foot building, 
and bring in high technology jobs for research and development at the facility. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

This is a well-established company, with many opportunities to expand, and staff recommends 
that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Kostal\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



 
JOHN SCHWARTZ 
ROYAL OAK PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
1123 LEXINGTON 
ROYAL OAK MI 48073-2499 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
KOSTAL OF AMERICA INC 
25325 REGENCY DR 
NOVI MI 48375 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING & PUBLISHING 
 
 
State of Michigan 

County of Oakland 

City of Troy 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING – City Council – Monday, June 4, 2007 at 7:30 PM – 

To consider a Request from Kostal of America, Inc. for the 

establishment of an Industrial Facilities Exception Certificate (IFEC) 

at the following Location – Troy Concept Center, Unit 3 – Parcel #88-

20-35-327-026 - Section 35 

I hereby certify, that the attached notice was e-mailed to the Somerset Gazette 

Newspapers on Tuesday, May 15th, 2007 and mailed by first class mail to the 

attached list, on Wednesday, May 16th, 2007. 

 

 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

  

  PUBLISHED: Monday, May 21, 2007 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, June 4, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Kostal of America, Inc., for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning 

December 31, 2007, for personal property located at: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 35 

OCCP #1418,  

Troy Concept Center, Unit 3 

Parcel # 88-20-35-327-026 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                        

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 
JOHN SCHWARTZ 
ROYAL OAK PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
1123 LEXINGTON 
ROYAL OAK MI 48073-2499 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
KOSTAL OF AMERICA INC 
25325 REGENCY DR 
NOVI MI 48375 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



1

Barbara A Pallotta

From: Nino A Licari
Sent: Wednesday, May 09, 2007 2:18 PM
To: Barbara A Pallotta
Subject: Kostal

Barb,

As per our phone conversation today, here are the publication notices for the IFEC and IFT for Kostal, 
along with mailing labels.  The announcement is May 14, and the publication should be as soon after as 
possible.

Thanks!

Memo IFEC 
03.26.07.doc

Memo IDD 
03.26.07.doc

LabelsKostal.doc

Nino Licari
City Assessor
248 524-3305



 1

 
 
DATE: May 22, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Northwest corner of Maple and Thorncroft, 

East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 (File Number Z-722) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to B-3 
at the May 1, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• On the Future Land Use Plan, the subject parcel is located within the transition area between 

Light Industrial and Non-Center Commercial.  Non-Center Commercial has a primary correlation 
with B-3 and a secondary correlation with H-S.  The application therefore is consistent with the 
intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  These classifications have been in place since 1999. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
 

 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the May 1, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 722 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-722 Proposed Retail Development Sec 29\CC Public Hearing 06 04 07.doc 
 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



TH
ORNCROFT

PREMIER
BLANEYM

A
P

LE
LAW

N

W MAPLE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-C TO B-3
NW CORNER MAPLE & THORNCROFT
SEC 29  (Z-722)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



TH
ORNCROFT

PREMIER
BLANEYM

A
P

LE
LAW

N

W MAPLE

(B-3)

(M-1)

(P-1)
(R-C)

(O-1)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-C TO B-3
NW CORNER MAPLE & THORNCROFT
SEC 29  (Z-722)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 

Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – 
From R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property to the south, zoned M-1 and a Consent 
Judgment, is built out as retail. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner. 
 
William Fuller, principal of Orland Park Properties, gave a brief history of the site.  
He indicated the site would be more suitable for retail activity.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-087 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located at the northwest corner of 
Maple and Thorncroft, within Section 29, being approximately 3.2 acres in size, 
be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
May 29, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing – Downtown Development Authority Plan #6 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached please find a copy of TDDA Development Plan #6. 
 The intent of Development Plan #6 is to amend the previous Development Plans by incorporating 

the Big Beaver Corridor Study and authorizing the expenditure of DDA funds to implement the key 
concepts of the Corridor Study. 

 The amendment to the TDDA Development Plan is required if TDDA funds are used to implement 
the Key Concepts found in the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 

 The projects in Development Plan #6 include: MEGA local match; I-75 interchange improvements; 
Public Thoroughfares, Intersections and Service Roads; Park Improvements; and Property 
Acquisition. 

 The TDDA adopted Development Plan #6 at the May 16, 2007 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting, and recommended the plan to the City Council for review and consideration. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Development Plan #6 provides the enabling authority to use TDDA Funds to aid in the 

implementation of the Key Concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 As part of the statutory process, a Public Hearing before the City Council is required. 
 A Public Hearing to consider amending the Troy Downtown Development Authority Plan to include 

Development Plan #6 has been scheduled and properly noticed for the June 4, 2007 City Council 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I) 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government (Goal II) 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal IV) 
 Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs (Goal V) 

 
Options: 
 
 Council can accept, reject or amend Development Plan #6. 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BPM/bt\Murphy\2007\TDDA Development Plan #6 – Agenda Document 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Plan #6 
Tax Increment Financing Plan #6 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Troy 
Downtown Development Authority



 

                    
 
 

 BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 
 
A. Purpose of the Downtown Development Authority Act 
 

Act 197 of Public Acts of 1975, as amended, of the State of Michigan, commonly referred 
to as the Downtown Development Authority Act ("Act 197" or the "Act") authorizes the 
establishment of a downtown development authority and was created in part to correct 
and prevent deterioration of business districts; to promote economic growth and 
revitalization; to encourage historic preservation; to authorize the acquisition and disposal 
of interests in real and personal property; to authorize the levy and collection of taxes; the 
issuance of bonds and the use of  tax increment financing to finance downtown 
development contained in locally adopted development plans. 
 
The Act seeks to attack problems of urban decline, strengthen existing areas and 
encourage new private developments in Michigan’s downtown communities. It seeks to 
accomplish this goal by providing these communities with the necessary legal, monetary 
and organizational tools to revitalize downtown districts either through publicly initiated 
projects or in concert with private developments. The method chosen by downtown 
development authorities to make use of these tools depends on the problems and 
opportunities facing the district and the development priorities established by the 
community for the revitalization of the business area. 

 
B. Creation of the Troy Downtown Development Authority 
 

In December of 1993, the Troy City Council adopted Ordinance 80, which created the 
Troy Downtown Development Authority ("TDDA").  TDDA was given all of the powers 
and duties prescribed for a Downtown Development Authority pursuant to the Act. 

 
C. Basis for the Tax Increment Plan and Development Plan 
 

Act 197 provides the legal mechanism for local officials to address the need for economic 
development in the business district. In Troy, the Downtown Development Authority 
District can be generally described as the commercial area along Big Beaver Road from 
Rochester Road on the east to Newport on the west, (the "Authority" or the "District"). At 
the time the TDDA was created, the Development Area and the Tax Increment Financing 
Area were established as coterminous with the boundaries of the Authority.  A 
development plan and a tax increment-financing plan were adopted for the purpose of 
implementing specific development programs and/or projects in the Development Area. 

 
For purposes of financing activities of a downtown development authority within a 
Downtown district, Act 197 provides for establishment of a Tax Increment Plan.  By 
definition, a Tax Increment Financing Plan seeks to capitalize on and make use of the 
increased tax base created by economic development within the boundaries of a 
Downtown district. 

 

 2



 

D. The Current TDDA Development Plan and the TDDA Tax Increment Financing Plan
 

The Tax Increment Financing Plan (the "TIF") of the TDDA was approved and adopted by 
the Troy City Council on November 3, 1993, on which date the City also approved and 
adopted Development Plan #1, which included reconstruction and improvements to Big 
Beaver Road and a public parking deck.  The TIF provided for capture and use by the 
TDDA of all tax increment revenues generated from the captured assessed value of all 
taxable real and personal property within the District for purposes of the Development 
Plan. 
 
An amendment to Development Plan #1 was approved and adopted by the City on 
September 28, 1998 (referred to for purposes hereof as "Development Plan #2").  
Development Plan #2 incorporated the area north of Cunningham Road for purposes of 
the construction of a data center for K-Mart and the proposed civic center site at Big 
Beaver and I-75. 

 
 Development Plan #2 expressly incorporated and restated the TIF Plan previously 

adopted by the TDDA to finance development programs and projects within the District. 
 

This second amendment to the TDDA Development Plan (referred to for purposes hereof 
as "Development Plan #3"), expressly incorporated and restated the development 
programs and projects described in Development Plan #1 and Development Plan #2 and 
described two additional major road projects including the widening of Big Beaver Road 
between I-75 and Rochester Road and from I-75 to the northern DDA boundary deemed 
necessary by the TDDA for the future economic vitality of the District, and with respect 
thereto, set forth the plans for development and financing of said projects as required 
under Act 197. 

 
Development Plan #3 was structured to provide the TDDA with the continued ability to 
utilize Tax Increment Financing to address the needs of the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority Area. 
 
Development Plan #4 was the third amendment to the TDDA Development Plan and 
incorporated the project known as “Troy Place Improvement Project”.  This project 
provided the local match required for a local company to receive financial incentives from 
the State of Michigan in order to retain its headquarters in the City of Troy and the State 
of Michigan. 
 
Development Plan #5 was the fourth amendment to the TDDA Development Plan and 
incorporated the project known as “Sheffield Plaza Building #2 Improvement Project”.  
This project provided the local match required for a local company to receive financial 
incentives from the State of Michigan in order to retain its headquarters in the State of 
Michigan. 
 

E. Relationship Between Development Plan #6 and Previous Development Plans 
 

The intent of Development Plan #6 is to amend the previous Development Plans by 
incorporating the project to be known as “Big Beaver Corridor Study Implementation 
Plan” (Exhibit #1).  The projects in Development Plan #6 are identified in the following 
manner: 
 
MEGA Local Match – The TDDA can make a local commitment of incentives with the 
Michigan Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA), after it has been determined that local tax 
abatements cannot satisfy the local commitment requirements.  TDDA funds can be used 
to improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and preserve, equip, 
improve, maintain, and repair any building, and any necessary or desirable 

 3



 

appurtenances to that property which, in the opinion of the board, halts property value 
deterioration and/or aids in the economic growth of the downtown district. 
 
This includes a local match for the package of incentives offered through the Michigan 
Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA) provided to LenderLive for the location of its 
headquarters at 888 West Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan.  Following negotiations between 
City staff, LenderLive and the State of Michigan, it was determined that the local 
commitment would be fulfilled through a combination of services provided through the 
Troy Downtown Development Authority valued at $20,000.  The services include a 
combination of: hosting a Job Fair for Lenderlive at the Community Center, paying 
occupancy permit fees, providing Community Center membership passes, and 
improvements for the subject building.  The State of Michigan has committed personal 
income tax withholding credit on the new jobs created by LenderLive at 888 West Big 
Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
I-75 Interchange Improvements – The project includes all roadwork, pathway/sidewalk, 
lighting, bridge improvement and landscaping at the I-75/Big Beaver interchange and 
parts of the I-75/Rochester interchange located in the TDDA boundaries. 
 
Public Thoroughfares, Intersections and Service Roads – The project includes 
improvements to the thoroughfares, intersections and installation of service roads 
consistent with the Big Beaver Corridor Plan including landscaping, pathways, sidewalks, 
bridges, and lighting in public rights-of-way within the TDDA boundaries. 
 
Park Improvements – The project includes aesthetic improvements, art work, and other 
physical improvements to create open areas consistent with the Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan and the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Property Acquisition – The TDDA can acquire by purchase or otherwise, on terms and 
conditions and in a manner the authority considers proper or own, convey, or otherwise 
dispose of, or lease as lessor or lessee, land and other property, real or personal, or 
rights or interests in property, which the authority determines is reasonably necessary to 
achieve the purposes of this act, and to grant or acquire licenses, easements, and 
options with respect to that property.  Further, the TDDA can improve land and construct, 
reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and preserve, equip, improve, maintain, repair, and 
operate any building, including multiple-family dwellings, and any necessary or desirable 
appurtenances to that property, within the downtown district for the use, in whole or in 
part, of any public or private person or corporation, or a combination of them. 
 
Further, the existing Tax Increment Financing Plan adopted and approved at the time of 
adoption of Development Plan #1, Development Plan #2, Development Plan #3, 
Development Plan #4, and Development Plan #5 will be retained and modified to include 
the new development consistent with state law. 

 
 

 4



 

F. General Development Plan for the Troy Development District 
 

The need for establishing the Development Plan described in Section E (background and 
purpose) is based on the need to continue Troy’s efforts to retain jobs, to improve public 
areas of facilities and improve property values in the district, and to prevent deterioration 
of the Big Beaver commercial area. This continuing effort will depend upon the readiness 
and ability of the City to initiate public improvements that strengthen the commercial area 
and to encourage and participate, where feasible, in the development of new private uses 
that clearly demonstrate the creation of new jobs, the attraction of new business, and the 
generation of additional tax revenues. 
 
The business district within the Development Area can be characterized as an 
aggregation of different Commercial and Office Zones that reflect the historic 
development of the Community. The core of the business district and community 
stretches along Big Beaver Road between Rochester Road on the east and Cunningham 
on the west. 

 
 

 5



 

 DEVELOPMENT PLAN NO. 6 
 
1. DESIGNATION OF BOUNDARIES OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA AND NEW 

PROJECTS 
The Development Area Boundary is located within the jurisdictional limits of the City of 
Troy and coterminous with the TDDA. The City of Troy established the TDDA pursuant to 
Act 197 of Public Acts of 1975, as amended, through the adoption and publication of 
Ordinance 80. The boundary for the TDDA and Development Area is shown on Exhibit 
#1.   
 

2. LOCATION AND EXTENT OF OTHER PUBLIC FACILITIES WITHIN THE 
DEVELOPMENT AREA, LOCATION, CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF PUBLIC AND 
PRIVATE LAND USES 

 
Public Land Uses 

Public land within Development Area #6 includes the rights-of-way under the 
jurisdiction of the City of Troy, Oakland County, and the State of Michigan, and real 
property under the ownership of the City of Troy.  

 
Private Land Uses

A. Residential – There are single-family residential and multi-family residential units 
in Development Plan #6.  The single family housing is generally located on the 
north side of Big Beaver between Livernois and Rochester, and on the west side 
of Rochester south of Big Beaver.  Multi-family housing is generally located on the 
south side of Big Beaver, west of Crooks Road. The residentially-zoned land 
includes: All beginning 80-20, then: 26-102-001, 26-102-002, 26-102-003, 26-102-
004, 27-228-011, 28-201-006, 28-226-035, 28-251-007, 28-251-012, 28-251-013, 
28-251-03020-402-052, 20-402-053,20-402-054, 20-402-055. 

B. Commercial and Office – There is commercial- and office-zoned private property 
in Development Plan #6.  The commercial- and office-zoned property includes: All 
beginning 80-20, then: 19-430-002, 19-453-005, 19-453-008, 19-453-009, 19-453-
010, 19-476-001, 20-351-004, 20-351-005, 20-351-008, 20-351-010, 20-376-001, 
20-376-004, 20-376-006, 20-401-024, 20-402-041, 20-476-012, 20-476-030, 20-
476-031, 20-476-036, 20-476-039, 20-476-043, 20-476-047, 20-476-049, 20-476-
050, 20-476-054, 20-476-055, 21-304-025, 21-351-012, 21-351-013, 21-401-002, 
21-476-018, 21-476-019, 22-355-025, 22-358-019, 22-379-021, 22-379-023, 22-
380-033, 22-380-038, 22-477-040, 22-477-048, 22-477-052, 22-477-053, 22-477-
054, 22-477-059, 22-477-060, 22-477-062, 23-354-047, 26-102-013, 27-101-020, 
27-101-055, 27-101-058, 27-101-060, 27-101-061, 27-101-065, 27-102-026, 27-
126-027, 27-201-013, 27-201-014, 27-201-049, 27-201-050, 27-201-053, 27-201-
059, 27-226-026, 27-227-010, 27-227-011, 27-228-017, 27-228-018, 28-101-032, 
28-101-034, 28-101-050, 28-101-051, 28-101-052, 28-101-053, 28-101-054, 28-
101-063, 28-101-064, 28-203-030, 28-203-035, 28-203-037, 28-203-038, 28-226-
033, 28-226-034, 28-251-037, 28-251-038, 28-251-039, 28-252-016, 28-252-017, 
28-252-018, 28-276-044, 28-276-048, 28-276-049, 28-277-008, 28-430-017, 29-
101-004, 29-101-006, 29-101-009, 29-101-010, 29-101-011, 29-127-023, 29-127-
025, 29-201-001, 29-201-023, 29-201-024, 29-201-025, 29-226-002, 29-226-003, 
29-226-004, 29-226-005, 29-226-016, 29-226-043, 29-226-046, 29-226-047, 29-
226-048, 29-226-049, 29-226-050, 29-226-051, 29-226-052, 29-226-053, 29-226-
054, 29-226-055, 29-226-056, 29-226-057, 29-226-058, 29-226-059, 29-226-060, 
29-226-061, 29-226-062, 29-226-063, 29-226-064, 29-226-065, 29-226-066, 29-
226-067, 29-226-068, 29-226-069, 29-226-070, 29-226-072, 29-226-073, 29-226-
074, 29-226-075, 29-227-026, 30-202-004, 30-202-005, 30-226-001, 30-226-008, 
30-226-009, 30-226-010.  

C. Kresge Foundation – is located on the south side of Big Beaver Road, west of 
Coolidge. 

 6



 

Recreational Uses
  

There are recreational uses including an aquatic center, the tennis bubble, and open 
space land uses within the Civic Center Area found in Development Plan #2. 

 
Semi-Public Uses
 
Semi-Public uses include: Streets, sidewalks, parking lots, and public or common area of 
all buildings. 
 
Educational Uses
 
Northwood University has an outreach/program center that is located at 1900 West Big 
Beaver. 
 
Cornerstone University has a satellite campus that is located at 2100 West Big Beaver.   
Programs offered include: Associates, Bachelors and Masters in Management. 
 
Vacant Land 
 
There is undeveloped property in Development Area #6, generally located on the north 
side of Big Beaver between Livernois and Rochester.  The vacant land includes: All 
beginning 80-20, then: 20-351-009, 21-326-008, 21-326-009, 22-356-014, 22-383-001, 
22-383-002, 22-383-003, 22-383-006, 26-101-002, 26-101-003, 26-101-004, 26-101-005, 
26-101-006, 27-201-008, 27-201-009, 27-201-010, 27-201-055, 27-201-058, 27-201-060, 
27-227-009, 28-101-039, 28-101-047, 28-201-007, 28-201-008, 28-201-009, 28-203-034, 
28-204-001, 28-204-002, 28-204-003, 28-204-004, 28-204-007, 28-204-008, 28-226-036, 
29-201-022, 30-228-001, 30-228-002, 26-102-005, 26-102-006, 27-228-009, 27-228-010, 
28-251-008, 28-251-009, 28-251-010, 28-251-011.  

 
3. LOCATION AND EXTENT OF PROPOSED PUBLIC AND PRIVATE LAND USES 
 

When the Troy City Council created the Troy Downtown Development District and 
Authority, it was envisioned that the Authority would use an integration of public and 
private land uses as a means of enhancing, strengthening, and expanding the economic 
base of the DDA District. Development Plan #1 used strategically placed public 
improvements to accomplish this vision for the District. Development Plan #2 and #3 
added private and public sector projects to the overall Development Plan to maintain the 
City's economic base and further expand the vision of the DDA district.  Development 
Plan #4 and #5 provided financial support for strategically placed publicly accessed area 
improvements to private facilities, and used TDDA monies as a match for state incentives 
for companies in the TDDA area.  To further accomplish this vision Development Plan #6 
will: 
 

• Continue to provide financial support for strategically placed publicly accessed area 
improvements to private facilities as permitted in MCL 125.1657(i), and 

 
• Use TDDA monies as a match for state incentives for companies in the TDDA area, 

and 
 

• Use TDDA monies as a match for state and federal grants for the TDDA area, and 
 

• Acquire land and property for implementation of approved TDDA plans, and 
 

• Continue to use and improve strategically placed public improvements. 
 

 7



 

4. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA 
 

Development Area (Coterminous with Authority Boundaries)  
 
Property lying on either side of Big Beaver Road between Golfview on the west and Fire 
Station #1 on the east and south to I-75 and Rochester Road and including the following 
Sidwells: 
 
All beginning:  88-20-, then: 
 
19-430-002; 19-453-005; 19-453-008; 19-453-009; 19-453-010; 19-476-001; 20-351-001; 
20-351-004; 20-351-005; 20-351-008; 20-351-009; 20-351-010; 20-376-001; 20-376-004; 
20-376-005; 20-376-006; 20-401-024; 20-402-041; 20-402-052; 20-402-053; 20-402-054; 
20-402-055; 20-476-012; 20-476-030; 20-476-031; 20-476-036; 20-476-039; 20-476-043; 
20-476-047; 20-476-049; 20-476-054; 20-476-055; 21-304-024; 21-326-007; 21-326-008; 
20-326-009; 21-351-012; 21-351-013; 21-401-001; 21-401-002; 21-476-015; 21-476-018; 
21-476-019; 22-355-025; 22-356-031; 22-357-031; 22-358-019; 22-358-028; 22-379-021; 
22-379-023; 22-380-033; 22-380-038; 22-383-001; 22-383-002; 22-383-003; 22-383-006; 
22-477-040; 22-477-048; 22-477-052; 22-477-053; 22-477-054; 22-477-059; 22-477-060; 
22-477-062; 22-478-007; 23-354-047; 26-101-001; 26-101-006; 26-101-009; 26-102-001; 
26-102-001; 26-102-002; 26-102-003; 26-102-004; 26-102-005; 26-102-006; 26-102-013; 
27-101-020; 27-101-055; 27-101-058; 27-101-060; 27-101-061; 27-101-065; 27-102-026; 
27-102-027; 27-201-008; 27-201-009; 27-201-010; 27-201-013; 27-201-014; 27-201-049; 
27-201-050; 27-201-053; 27-201-055; 27-201-058; 27-201-058; 27-201-059; 27-201-060; 
27-226-026; 27-226-027; 27-227-009; 27-227-010; 27-227-011; 27-228-009; 27-228-010; 
27-228-011; 27-228 017; 27-228-018; 27-277-017; 28-101-032; 28 101-034; 28-101-039; 
28-101-047; 28-101-050; 28-101-051; 28-101-052; 28-101-053, 28-101-054, 28-101-063; 
28-101-064; 28-201-006; 28-201-007; 28-201-008; 28-201-009; 28-203-030; 28-203-034;  
28-203-035; 28-203-037; 28-203-038; 28-204-001; 28-204-002; 28-204-003; 28-204-004; 
28-204-007; 28-204-008; 28-226-033; 28-226-034; 28-226-035; 28-226-036; 28-227-006; 
28-227-007; 28-251-007; 28-251-008; 28-251-009; 28-251-010; 28-251-011; 28-251-012; 
28-251-013; 28-251-030; 28-251-037; 28-251-038; 28-251-039; 28-252-016; 28-252-017; 
28-252-018; 28-276-044; 28-276-048; 28-276-049; 28-276-050; 28-277-008; 28-430-017; 
29-101-004; 29-101-006; 29-101-009; 29-101-010; 29-101-011; 29-127-023; 29-127-025; 
29-201-001; 29-201-022; 29-201-023; 29-201-024; 29-201-025; 29-226-002; 29-226-005; 
29-226-016; 29-226-043; 29-226-046; 29-226-047; 29-226-048; 29-226-049; 29-226-050; 
29-226-051; 29-226-052; 29-226-053; 29-226-054; 29-226-055; 29-226-056; 29-226-057; 
29-226-058; 29-226-059; 29-226-060; 29-226-061; 29-226-062; 29-226-063; 29-226-064; 
29-226-065; 29-226-066; 29-226-067; 29-226-068; 29-226-069; 29-226-070; 29-226-072; 
29-226-073; 29-226-074; 29-226-075; 29-277-026; 30-202-004; 30-202-005; 30-226-001; 
30-226-008; 30-226-009; 30-226-010; 30-228-001; and 30-228-002. 

 
 
Development Area/Project Area  
  
 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION  
 
(North of Big Beaver from West to East) 
Part of the SE ¼ of Section 19, South ½ of Section 20, South ½ of Section 21, South ½ 
of Section 22, SW ¼ of Section 23, NW ¼ of Section 26, North ½ of Section 27, North ½ 
of Section 28, SE ¼ of Section 28, North ½ of Section 29, and NE ¼ of Section 30, Town 
2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.  Commencing at the 
South ¼ Corner of said section 19; thence North 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds 
East, along the south line of said section 19, also being the centerline of Big Beaver 
Road, 360.04 feet to the Point of Beginning of the Downtown Development Authority 

 8



 

Area also being South 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West 2298.59 feet from the 
southeast corner of said section 19; thence North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds 
East 102.01 feet to the north line of Big Beaver Road; thence continuing North 00 
degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East 1528.00 feet; thence North 65 degrees 09 minutes 
05 seconds East 366.53 feet; thence North 89 degrees 49 minutes 05 seconds East 
1495.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East 88.57 feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds East 400.00 feet to the west line of Coolidge 
Road; thence North 89 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of 
said section 19, also being North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 1680.32 feet 
from the southeast corner of said section 19; thence continuing North 89 degrees 58 
minutes 30 seconds East 90.00 feet to the east line of Coolidge Road; thence South 00 
degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East, along said line, 409.46 feet to the north line of 
Cunningham Road; thence South 45 degrees 18 minutes 22 seconds East, along said 
north line, 42.22 feet; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along said 
line, 124.67 feet; thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 350.00 feet, a delta 
angle of 37 degrees 02 minutes 15 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 
70 degrees 53 minutes 36 seconds East 222.33 feet; thence North 52 degrees 22 
minutes 28 seconds East, along said line, 176.28 feet; thence along a curve to the right, 
along said line, having a radius of 1000.00 feet, a delta angle of 44 degrees 00 minutes 
08 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 74 degrees 22 minutes 32 
seconds East 749.25 feet; thence along a curve to the right, along said line, having a 
radius of 285.00 feet, a delta angle of 83 degrees 41 minutes 37 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of South 41 degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds East 380.27 feet; 
thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East 87.59 feet to the southwest corner 
of “Somerset North Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 213, Pages 35-38,  Oakland 
County, Michigan records; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along 
said south line, 603.02 feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East, along 
said south line, 37.78 feet; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along 
said line, 387.42 feet to the southeast corner of said plat and the west line of “Muer’s 
Garden Farms”, as recorded in Liber 15, Page 45, Oakland County, Michigan records, 
also being the north and south ¼ line of said section 20; thence South 00 degrees 19 
minutes 48 seconds East, along said line, 857.17 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 3 of 
said plat, also being North 00 degrees 19 minutes 48 seconds West 430.00 feet from the 
south ¼ corner of said section 20, and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; 
thence East, along the north line of Lots 3, 93, 125, and 85 of said plat, 1328.64 feet to 
the east line of said plat; thence North 01 degrees 02 minutes East, along said east line, 
886.10 feet to an angle point in said east line, thence South 89 degrees 03 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said east line, 1257.16 feet to the west line of Crooks Road; thence 
South 89 degrees 03 minutes 00 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of said Section 
20, being North 02 degrees 00 minutes 29 seconds West 1294.12 feet from the 
southeast corner of said section 20, and a change in the bearing base to match the plat 
of “Wilshire Estates” as recorded in Liber 190, Pages 26-28, Oakland County, Michigan 
records; thence North 02 degrees 00 minutes 29 seconds West, along said east line, 
50.18 feet; thence North 87 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds East, 60.00 feet to the 
southwest corner of said “Wilshire Estates” and the east line of Crooks Road; thence 
continuing North 87 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds East, along the south line of said 
plat, 30.36 feet to an angle point in said plat; thence North 64 degrees 50 minutes 49 
seconds East, along said south line, 371.71 feet to an angle point in said plat; thence 
North 87 degrees 28 minutes 55 seconds East, along said south line, 886.52 feet to the 
southeast corner of said plat; thence North 02 degrees 01 minutes 28 seconds West, 
along the east line of said plat and the east line of “Troyknoll Subdivision No. 1”, as 
recorded in Liber 104, Page 32, Oakland County, Michigan records, 1099.12 feet to the 
south line of “Washington Square Estates”, as recorded in Liber 124, Page 33, Oakland 
County, Michigan records, also being the east and west ¼ line of said section 20; thence 
North 87 degrees 40 minutes 05 seconds East (R=South 89 degrees 11 minutes 30 
seconds East), along said line, 838.45 feet to the west line of Interstate 75; thence North 

 9



 

87 degrees 42 minutes 26 seconds East, along said line, 488.93 feet to the east line of 
Interstate 75 and the Center Post of said Section 21 and a change in the bearing base to 
match an ALTA Boundary Survey of Troy Civic Center being North 01 degrees 33 
minutes 19 seconds East 2581.69 feet from the South ¼ Corner of said Section 21; 
thence South 89 degrees 13 minutes 52 seconds East, along said east and west ¼ line, 
1312.01 feet to the west line of “Westwood Park Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 249, 
Pages 11-15, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence South 01 degrees 01 minutes 
02 seconds West, along said west line, 220.54 feet to the southwest corner of said plat; 
thence South 01 degrees 17 minutes 00 seconds West, along the west line of 
“Supervisor’s Plat No. 26”, as recorded in Liber 57, Page 59, Oakland County, Michigan 
records, 384.22 feet to the north line of Town Center Drive; thence South 88 degrees 53 
minutes 06 seconds East, along said north line, 796.70 feet; thence South 01 degrees 16 
minutes 54 seconds West, along the west line of Lot 17 of said plat, 399.40 feet to the 
southwest corner of said lot 17; thence South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East, 
along the south line of said plat, 468.93 feet to the west line of Livernois Road; thence 
South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of said Section 
21, being North 01 degrees 20 minutes 46 seconds East 1648.14 feet from the southeast 
corner of said section 21; thence South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East 53.00 
feet to the east line of Livernois Road; thence South 01 degrees 20 minutes 46 seconds 
West, along said east line, 96.05 to the north line of “Eysters Beaver Gardens”, as 
recorded in Liber 26, Page 14, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 
degrees 37 minutes 14 seconds West (R=North 89 degrees 20 minutes West), along said 
north line, 20.00 feet to the east line of Livernois Road; thence South 01 degrees 20 
minutes 46 seconds West (R=South 01 degrees 52 minutes West), along said east line, 
664.50 feet to the southwest corner of lot 152 of said plat, also being the north line of 
Hartland Ave. and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; thence South 88 
degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along said north line, 265.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of lot 133 of said plat and the west line of Louis Ave.; thence South 01 degrees 52 
minutes 00 seconds West, along said west line, 728.00 feet to the northeast corner of lot 
13 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north 
line of lots 14 through 37 of said plat, 588.00 feet to the northeast corner of lot 37 and the 
west line of Frankton Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 52 minutes 00 seconds East, along 
said west line, 18.00 feet to the southeast corner of lot 91 of said plat; thence South 88 
degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the south line of lot 68 of said plat, 172.00 
feet to the southeast corner of said lot 68; thence North 01 degrees 52 minutes 00 
seconds East, along the east line of said lot, 110.00 feet to the northeast corner of said 
lot; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of lots 67 
and 44 of said plat, 302.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 44 and the west line of 
“Big Beaver”, as recorded in Liber 21, Page 19, Oakland County, Michigan records; 
thence North 00 degrees 51 minutes 00 seconds East, along the said west line 25.00 feet 
to the southwest corner of lot 17 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 
seconds East, along the south line of lot 17, 278.30 feet to the southeast corner of said 
lot and the west line of Talbot Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds 
East, along the said west line, 75.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 17; thence 
South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of lot 60 of said plat, 
323.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 60; thence South 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 
seconds West, along the east line of lots 60 and 59, 150.00 feet to the southwest corner 
of lot 58 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the 
south line of said lot, 163.80 feet to the northwest corner of lot 14 of said plat; thence 
South 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds West, along the west line of said lot 14, 13.00 
feet; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, 109.20 feet to the west line 
of Kilmer Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds East, along the said 
west line, 113.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East 50.00 feet 
to the east line of Kilmer Ave. and the southwest corner of Lot 19 of “Burgess Bungalow 
Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 34, Oakland County, Michigan records; 
thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the south line of Lots 19-22 

 10



 

of said plat 273.00 feet to the east line of said plat and the west line of “Supervisors Plat 
No. 9”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 41, Oakland County, Michigan records being North 
88 degrees 40 minutes West 165.00 feet and North 01 degrees 30 minutes East 336.00 
feet from the south ¼ corner of said section 22; thence North 01 degrees 30 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said line, 240.77 feet; thence South 89 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds East 165.89 feet to the northwest corner of lot 5 of said plat; thence South 89 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of said plat, 2009.59 feet to an 
angle point along the north line of said plat; thence South 87 degrees 41 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said north line, 251.65 feet to the southwest corner of lot 25 of said 
plat and a change in the bearing base to match Rochester Road ROW acquisition 
documents; thence North 89 degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds East, along the south line 
of said lot 25, 146.56 feet to the west line of Rochester Road; thence North 89 degrees 
18 minutes 15 seconds East 171.16 feet to the east line of Rochester Road; thence 
South 17 degrees 01 minutes 45 seconds West, along the said east line, 129.38 feet; 
thence on a curve to the left having a radius of 1925.12 feet, a delta angle of 00 degrees 
25 minutes 04 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of South 16 degrees 49 
minutes 13 seconds West 14.03 feet; thence South 38 degrees 51 minutes 10 seconds 
East, along said east line, 28.72 feet to the north line of Urbancrest Ave. of “Supervisor’s 
Plat No. 13” as recorded in Liber 49, Page 1, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence 
North 86 degrees 38 minutes 09 seconds East, along said north line, 492.62 feet to the 
southeast corner of lot 9 of said plat and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; 
thence South 03 degrees 30 minutes West, along the east line of lot 7 of said plat, 209.00 
feet to the southeast corner of lot 7 of said plat and the north line of “Supervisors Plat No. 
11”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 46, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 
88 degrees 05 minutes West, along said north line, 7.83 feet to the northeast corner of lot 
17 of said plat; thence South 01 degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West, along the east 
line of said lot 17, 106.49 feet to the north line of Big Beaver Road; thence South 01 
degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West 102.00 feet to the south line of said section 23, 
also being the centerline of Big Beaver Road and South 88 degrees 45 minutes East 
376.02 feet from the southwest corner of said section 23; 
 
(South of Big Beaver from East to West) 
 
thence North 88 degrees 45 minutes 00 seconds West, along the said south line, 99.62 
feet; thence South 01 degrees 28 minutes West, along the west line of Lot 25 of 
“Supervisors Plat No. 11”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 46, of Oakland County, 
Michigan records, 818.08 feet to the north line of Interstate 75 Right of Way and a 
change in bearing base to match “Ladendorf-Tobias Subdivision” as recorded in Liber 37, 
Page 23, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 53 degrees 08 minutes 01 
seconds West 92.65 feet; thence North 89 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West 457.45 
feet; thence North 13 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds East 3.95 feet; thence North 89 
degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West 119.77 feet to the east line of Rochester Road, as 
per said plat; thence South 13 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 308.60 feet to a 
change in the bearing base to match “Ford Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 58, Page 
24, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 degrees 58 minutes 40 seconds 
West 266.88 feet; thence North 13 degrees 34 minutes 50 seconds East 140.00 feet to 
the southeast corner of Lot 8 of said plat; thence North 88 degrees 58 minutes 40 
seconds West, along the south line of said lot, 41.80 feet; thence North 01 degrees 23 
minutes 10 seconds East, along the west line of said lot, 283.07 feet; thence North 02 
degrees 34 minutes 37 seconds East 60.02 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 26 of said 
plat; thence North 12 degrees 54 minutes 50 seconds East 260.00 feet; thence North 07 
degrees 06 minutes 40 seconds East 110.95 feet to the northeast corner of said “Ford 
Subdivision”; thence North 88 degrees 15 minutes 20 seconds West 195.85 feet to an 
angle point in said plat; thence North 89 degrees West 475.88 feet to plat angle point; 
thence South 01 degrees 30 minutes 50 seconds West 27.00 feet to the southeast corner 
of Lot 51 of said plat; thence North 89 degrees 01 minutes 20 seconds West, along the 

 11



 

south line of Lots 51-41 of said plat, 682.88 feet to the southwest corner of Lot 41; thence 
North 01 degrees 23 minutes 10 seconds East, along the west line of Lot 41, 136.73 feet 
to the south line of Big Beaver Road and a change in the bearing base to match parcel 
#88-20-27-201-001 tax description; thence South 89 degrees 44 minutes 48 seconds 
West, along said south line, 639.76 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 
seconds West, along said south line, 404.54 feet being North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 
seconds West 402.68 feet and South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 seconds West 102.00 
feet from the North ¼ Corner of Section 27; thence South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 
seconds West 298.00 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 seconds West 95.00 
feet to the east line of “Frosty Sunny Acres”, as recorded in Liber 64, Page 9, Oakland 
County, Michigan records; thence South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 seconds West, along 
said east line, 270.38 feet to the northeast corner of “Beaver Heights”, as recorded in 
Liber 23, Page 11, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence South 00 degrees 42 
minutes 09 seconds West, along the east line of said plat, 424.15 feet to the north line of 
Interstate 75 Right of Way and a change in bearing base to match the said plat of 
“Beaver Heights”; thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West 2152.54 feet to 
the east line of Livernois Road, being South 01 degrees East 1081.90 feet and North 89 
degrees 12 minutes East 60.00 feet from the Northwest Corner of Section 27; thence 
South 01 degrees East, along said east line, 1601+/- feet to the intersection of the said 
east line and the north line of “Summit Park Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 17, Page 
35, Oakland County, Michigan records, extended easterly and a change in bearing base 
to match said “Summit Park Subdivision”; thence South 01 degrees 47 minutes 00 
seconds West 200.54 feet to the intersection of said east line and the south line of 
Olympia Blvd. extended easterly; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds West, 
along the said south line, 469.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 47 minutes 00 seconds 
East, along the west line of lot 196 of said plat, 198.83 feet to the north line of said plat; 
thence North 88 degrees 44 minutes 30 seconds West, along said north line and south 
line of “Royal Ridge Little Farms”, as recorded in Liber 21, Page 17, Oakland County, 
Michigan records, 1158.35 feet, being 8.12 feet west of the southeast corner of Lot 4 of 
said plat, and a change in the bearing base to match said “Royal Ridge Little Farms”; 
thence Due North, parallel to the east line of said Lot 4, 510.00 feet to the north line of 
Lot 4 and the south line of Kirts Blvd.; thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 30 seconds 
West, along the said south line, 515.17 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2 of said plat; 
thence South 00 degrees 47 minutes 00 seconds East, along the east line of said Lot 2, 
0.23 feet; thence, along said south line of Kirts Blvd., on a curve to right having a radius 
of 1260.00 feet, a central angle of 00 degrees 02 minutes 42 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of North 76 degrees 53 minutes 40 seconds West 0.99 feet; thence, 
continuing along said south line, on a curve to the right having a radius 1260.00 feet, a 
central angle of 02 degrees 23 minutes 35 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 75 degrees 40 minutes 32 seconds West 52.62 feet; thence North 74 degrees 28 
minutes 45 seconds West, along said south line, 400.00 feet; thence, along south line, on 
a curve to the left having a radius of 1140.00 feet, a central angle of 03 degrees 58 
minutes 53 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 76 degrees 28 minutes 
11 seconds West 79.20 feet; thence, along said line, on a curve to the left having a radius 
of 1140.00 feet, a central angle of 01 degrees 16 minutes 59 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of North 79 degrees 06 minutes 08 seconds West 25.53 feet to the 
east line “F.J. Kirts Farm”, as recorded in Liber 31, Page 1, Oakland County, Michigan 
records and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence North 00 degrees 46 
minutes West, along said east line and south line of Kirts Blvd., +/-6.73 feet to the 
northeast corner of Lot 23 of said plat; thence South 89 degrees 33 minutes 00 seconds 
West, along the south line of Kirts Blvd., 1302.00 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 14; 
thence North 00 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West 120.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of Unit 1 of “Troy Center Professional Building Condominium”, as recorded in 
Condominium Plan #1437, Oakland County, Michigan records, being the west line of 
Troy Center Drive, and a change in bearing base to match said condo; thence North 00 
degrees 04 minutes 37 seconds West, along said west line, 572.01 feet to the northeast 

 12



 

corner of said Unit 1 and a change in bearing base to match #88-20-28-101-048 tax 
description; thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West, along west line, 7.08 
feet; thence, along west line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 1140.00 feet, a 
central angle of 07 degrees 31 minutes 05 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 15 degrees 40 minutes 45 seconds West 149.48 feet; thence North 19 degrees 26 
minutes 18 seconds West, along said west line, 397.91 feet; thence, along said west line 
of Town Center Drive, on a curve to the right having a radius of 1260.00 feet, a central 
angle of 08 degrees 21 minutes 58 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 
15 degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West 183.82 feet; thence South 87 degrees 28 
minutes 55 seconds West 564.02 feet; thence South 02 degrees 31 minutes 05 seconds 
East 306.70 feet; thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West 589.37 feet to 
the west line of Section 28, being South 02 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds East 934.61 
feet from the Northwest Corner of Section 28, thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 
seconds West 33.00 feet to the east line of “Supervisor’s Plat of Butterfield Farm”, as 
recorded in Liber 48, Page 44, Oakland County, Michigan records and the west line of 
Crooks Road; thence North 02 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds West, along said line, 
490.49 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 18 of said plat and a change in bearing base to 
match said plat; thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes West, along the north line of Lots 
18-33, inclusive, of said plat, 1725.40 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 34 of said plat; 
thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes East, along the east line of said lot, 31.00 feet; 
thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes West 106.00 feet to the west line of said Lot 34 and 
the east line of Todd Road; thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes East, along the said 
east line and the east line of Lot 6 of “Supervisor’s Plat of Walker Farms”, as recorded in 
Liber 65, Page 36, Oakland County, Michigan records, 854.86 feet to the southeast 
corner of said Lot 6; thence South 88 degrees 51 minutes 20 seconds West, along the 
south line of said plat, 790.70 feet to the southwest corner of said plat; thence North 01 
degrees 15 minutes West, along the west line of said plat, 122.82 feet to the southeast 
corner of “Supervisor’s Plat No. 15”, as recorded in Liber 34, Page 44, Oakland County, 
Michigan records and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence North 88 
degrees 35 minutes 10 seconds West 33.01 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 14 of said 
plat; thence North 00 degrees 02 minutes 20 seconds East, along the east line of Lots 
14-17, inclusive, of said plat, 536.50 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 17; thence South 
89 degrees 20 minutes 20 seconds West, along the north line of Lot 17, 593.35 feet to 
the northwest corner of Lot 17; thence Due South, along the west line of Lots 17 and 16, 
276.44 feet to the north line of Lot 14 of “Troy Apartment Sub. No. 4”, as recorded in 
Liber 121, Pages 10-14, Oakland County, Michigan records, being the south line of 
Golfview Drive, and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence, along said 
south line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 320.00 feet, a central angle of 11 
degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of South 84 degrees 
04 minutes 35 seconds West 66.34 feet to the northwest corner of said Lot 14; thence 
South 78 degrees 07 minutes 37 seconds West, along the south line of Golfview Drive 
and north line of Outlet A and Lot 10 of said plat, 1065.28 feet; thence North 89 degrees 
22 minutes 00 seconds West, along said south line, 860.28 feet to the northwest corner 
of Lot 9 of said plat and the east line of Coolidge Road; thence South 01 degrees 12 
minutes 00 seconds West, along the said east line, 75.58 feet to a change in the bearing 
base to match “Buckingham Woods Subdivision No. 2”, as recorded in Liber 140, Pages 
39-41, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 degrees 54 minutes 05 
seconds West 60.00 feet to the east line of Section 30, being South 01 degrees 12 
minutes 28 seconds West 1273.45 feet from the Northeast Corner of Section 30; thence 
North 88 degrees 54 minutes 05 seconds West 886.80 feet to the south line of Golfview 
Drive and the southeast corner of Lot 196 of said “Buckingham Woods Subdivision No. 
2”; thence North 43 degrees 54 minutes 05 seconds West, along the said south line, 
238.90 feet; thence North 58 degrees 57 minutes 30 seconds West, along said line, 
43.62 feet; thence, along said line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 257.00 feet, a 
central angle of 29 degrees 56 minutes 35 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 73 degrees 55 minutes 47 seconds West 132.79 feet; thence North 88 degrees 54 

 13



 

minutes 05 seconds West, along said line, 395.71 feet; thence, continuing along said line, 
on a curve to the right having a radius of 428.00 feet, a central angle of 89 degrees 38 
minutes 02 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 44 degrees 05 minutes 
04 seconds West 603.35 feet; thence North 00 degrees 43 minutes 57 seconds East, 
along the west line of said Golfview Drive, 508.09 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 147 
of said plat and the south line of Big Beaver Road; thence North 89 degrees 16 minutes 
03 seconds West, along said south line, 246.99 feet; thence North 00 degrees 43 
minutes 57 seconds East 102.00 feet to the north line of Section 30 and the Point of 
Beginning.    
 
 
SIDWELL DESCRIPTION 
All beginning:  88-20-, then: 
 
19-430-002; 19-453-005; 19-453-008; 19-453-009; 19-453-010; 19-476-001; 20-351-001; 
20-351-004; 20-351-005; 20-351-008; 20-351-009; 20-351-010; 20-376-001; 20-376-004; 
20-376-005; 20-376-006; 20-401-024; 20-402-041; 20-402-052; 20-402-053; 20-402-054; 
20-402-055; 20-476-012; 20-476-030; 20-476-031; 20-476-036; 20-476-039; 20-476-043; 
20-476-047; 20-476-049; 20-476-054; 20-476-055; 21-304-024; 21-326-007; 21-326-008; 
20-326-009; 21-351-012; 21-351-013; 21-401-001; 21-401-002; 21-476-015; 21-476-018; 
21-476-019; 22-355-025; 22-356-031; 22-357-031; 22-358-019; 22-358-028; 22-379-021; 
22-379-023; 22-380-033; 22-380-038; 22-383-001; 22-383-002; 22-383-003; 22-383-006; 
22-477-040; 22-477-048; 22-477-052; 22-477-053; 22-477-054; 22-477-059; 22-477-060; 
22-477-062; 22-478-007; 23-354-047; 26-101-001; 26-101-006; 26-101-009; 26-102-001; 
26-102-001; 26-102-002; 26-102-003; 26-102-004; 26-102-005; 26-102-006; 26-102-013; 
27-101-020; 27-101-055; 27-101-058; 27-101-060; 27-101-061; 27-101-065; 27-102-026; 
27-102-027; 27-201-008; 27-201-009; 27-201-010; 27-201-013; 27-201-014; 27-201-049; 
27-201-050; 27-201-053; 27-201-055; 27-201-058; 27-201-058; 27-201-059; 27-201-060; 
27-226-026; 27-226-027; 27-227-009; 27-227-010; 27-227-011; 27-228-009; 27-228-010; 
27-228-011; 27-228 017; 27-228-018; 27-277-017; 28-101-032; 28 101-034; 28-101-039; 
28-101-047; 28-101-050; 28-101-051; 28-101-052; 28-101-053, 28-101-054, 28-101-063; 
28-101-064; 28-201-006; 28-201-007; 28-201-008; 28-201-009; 28-203-030; 28-203-034;  
28-203-035; 28-203-037; 28-203-038; 28-204-001; 28-204-002; 28-204-003; 28-204-004; 
28-204-007; 28-204-008; 28-226-033; 28-226-034; 28-226-035; 28-226-036; 28-227-006; 
28-227-007; 28-251-007; 28-251-008; 28-251-009; 28-251-010; 28-251-011; 28-251-012; 
28-251-013; 28-251-030; 28-251-037; 28-251-038; 28-251-039; 28-252-016; 28-252-017; 
28-252-018; 28-276-044; 28-276-048; 28-276-049; 28-276-050; 28-277-008; 28-430-017; 
29-101-004; 29-101-006; 29-101-009; 29-101-010; 29-101-011; 29-127-023; 29-127-025; 
29-201-001; 29-201-022; 29-201-023; 29-201-024; 29-201-025; 29-226-002; 29-226-005; 
29-226-016; 29-226-043; 29-226-046; 29-226-047; 29-226-048; 29-226-049; 29-226-050; 
29-226-051; 29-226-052; 29-226-053; 29-226-054; 29-226-055; 29-226-056; 29-226-057; 
29-226-058; 29-226-059; 29-226-060; 29-226-061; 29-226-062; 29-226-063; 29-226-064; 
29-226-065; 29-226-066; 29-226-067; 29-226-068; 29-226-069; 29-226-070; 29-226-072; 
29-226-073; 29-226-074; 29-226-075; 29-277-026; 30-202-004; 30-202-005; 30-226-001; 
30-226-008; 30-226-009; 30-226-010; 30-228-001; and 30-228-002. 
 

5. EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT AREA TO BE DEMOLISHED, 
REPAIRED OR ALTERED AND TIME REQUIRED FOR COMPLETION 

 
The proposed work program for Development Plan #6 incorporates the integration of 
public and private improvements.  Descriptions of the work elements and the schedule for 
phasing of the projects are delineated in the next section.  The “Big Beaver Corridor 
Study Implementation Plan” may require the renovation of existing public improvements, 
including but not limited to thoroughfares, sidewalks, landscaping, parking and terrace 
areas. 

 14



 

 
6. THE LOCATION, EXTENT, CHARACTER AND ESTIMATED COST OF 

IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDING REHABILITATION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AREA  
 

Development Plan #6 includes: 
MEGA Local Match – The TDDA can make a local commitment of incentives with the 
Michigan Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA), after it has been determined that local tax 
abatements cannot satisfy the local commitment requirements.  TDDA funds can be used 
to improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and preserve, equip, 
improve, maintain, and repair any building, and any necessary or desirable 
appurtenances to that property which, in the opinion of the board, aids in the economic 
growth of the downtown district.   
 
I-75 Interchange Improvements – The project includes all roadwork, pathway/sidewalk, 
lighting, bridge improvement and landscaping at the I-75/Big Beaver interchange and 
parts of the I-75/Rochester interchange located in the TDDA boundaries. 
 
Public Thoroughfares, Intersections and Service Roads – The project includes 
improvements to the thoroughfares, intersections and installation of service roads 
consistent with the Big Beaver Corridor Plan including landscaping, pathways, sidewalks, 
bridges, and lighting in public rights-of-way within the TDDA boundaries.   
 
Park Improvements – The project includes aesthetic improvements, art work, and other 
physical improvements to create open areas consistent with the Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan and the Big Beaver Corridor Study.   
 
Property Acquisition – The TDDA can acquire by purchase or otherwise, on terms and 
conditions and in a manner the authority considers proper or own, convey, or otherwise 
dispose of, or lease as lessor or lessee, land and other property, real or personal, or 
rights or interests in property, which the authority determines is reasonably necessary to 
achieve the purposes of this act, and to grant or acquire licenses, easements, and 
options with respect to that property.  Further, the TDDA can improve land and construct, 
reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and preserve, equip, improve, maintain, repair, and 
operate any building, including multiple-family dwellings, and any necessary or desirable 
appurtenances to that property, within the downtown district for the use, in whole or in 
part, of any public or private person or corporation, or a combination of them.   
 
A copy of the Big Beaver Corridor Study is attached as Exhibit # 2. 
 
Funding sources include, but are not limited to, TDDA Funds/Bonds, General Obligation 
Bonds, State/Federal Funds, State/Federal/Charitable Grants, and Private Funds.  Public 
investment is estimated at $27,500,000.   
 
The TDDA commissioned a study by the Chesapeake Group to determine the private 
investment potential created by implementing the key concepts in the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  The report indicates that the total private investment potential is 
estimated at $3,647,500,000.  The report is attached as Exhibit # 3. 
 
 

7. STATEMENT OF THE CONSTRUCTION OR STAGES OF CONSTRUCTION 
PLANNED, AND THE ESTIMATED TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
Generally, implementation will commence in Summer 2007.  It is expected that the work 
on the Development Plan will continue through the duration of the Authority, which is 
enabled through the collection of taxes levied through December of 2018.  
 

 15



 

 
8. PARTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA TO BE LEFT AS OPEN SPACE AND 

CONTEMPLATED USE 
 
There is a one-acre ± site on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road 
that likely will be developed into a passive park use. 

 
9. PORTIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA WHICH THE AUTHORITY DESIRES TO 

SELL, DONATE, EXCHANGE, OR LEASE TO OR FROM THE MUNICIPALITY AND 
THE PROPOSED TERMS 

 
 None 
 
10. DESIRED ZONING CHANGES AND CHANGES IN STREETS, STREET LEVELS, 

INTERSECTIONS AND UTILITIES 
 

No zoning changes are anticipated by the Authority for the project in Development Plan 
#6.  The Planning Commission is currently updating the City of Troy Master Land Use 
Plan, which likely will result in zoning changes and/or the development of overlay 
districts.  Changes are required in streets, intersections and utilities in keeping with the 
terms and conditions of the “Big Beaver Corridor Study”.  

 
11. ESTIMATE OF THE COST OF THE DEVELOPMENT, PROPOSED METHOD OF 

FINANCING AND ABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY TO ARRANGE THE FINANCING 
 
Financing for the project would be provided through funds generated by the Tax 
Increment Financing Plan induced by annual increases in property valuations from normal 
growth and new construction within the DDA District.  
 

12. DESIGNATION OF PERSON OR PERSONS, NATURAL OR  CORPORATE, TO WHOM 
ALL OR  A  PORTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT IS TO BE  LEASED, SOLD, OR 
CONVEYED IN ANY MANNER AND FOR WHOSE BENEFIT  THE PROJECT IS BEING 
UNDERTAKEN IF THAT INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE TO THE AUTHORITY 
 
The public improvements undertaken pursuant to Development Plan #6 will remain in 
public ownership for the public benefit.  TDDA funds used to satisfy a local match with 
MEGA can be used to improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and 
preserve, equip, improve, maintain, and repair any building, and any necessary or 
desirable appurtenances to that property.  The improvements will immediately benefit the 
private property owner and/or tenant, but will also benefit the public, surrounding 
businesses and neighbors by aiding in the economic growth of the downtown district and 
improving the physical infrastructure. 
 

 
13. PROCEDURES FOR BIDDING FOR THE LEASING, PURCHASING, OR CONVEYING 

OF ALL OR A PORTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT UPON ITS COMPLETION, IF 
THERE IS NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY 
AND PERSONS, NATURAL OR CORPORATE, THAT ALL OR A PORTION OF THE 
DEVELOPMENT WILL BE LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED TO THOSE PERSONS 
 
Any land acquisitions will be in accordance with the procedures of Act 344 of the 
Michigan Public Acts of 1945, as amended; Act 87 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1980, 
as amended, and the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policy Act of 1970 as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 16



 

 
Any such sale, lease or exchange shall be conducted by TDDA or the City of Troy 
pursuant to requirements specified in Act 197 of Public Acts of 1975, as amended.  If 
needed, more detailed procedures will be developed prior to the transactions, in 
accordance with applicable City policy, Michigan State Law and Federal Law.  

 
14. ESTIMATE OF THE NUMBER OF PERSONS RESIDING IN THE DEVELOPMENT 

AREA AND THE NUMBER OF FAMILIES AND INDIVIDUALS TO BE DISPLACED 
 
Development Plan #6 does not require the acquisition and clearance of occupied 
residential property or the displacement of individuals and families within the 
Development Area.  As a result, a plan for compliance of the Federal Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended need not be 
addressed.  Should it become necessary to address relocation at some future date, the 
TDDA shall abide by requirements of the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended. 
 

 
15. PLAN FOR ESTABLISHING PRIORITY FOR THE RELOCATION OF PERSONS 

DISPLACED BY THE DEVELOPMENT IN ANY NEW HOUSING IN THE 
DEVELOPMENT AREA 

 
Development Plan #6 does not require the acquisition and clearance of occupied 
residential property or the displacement of individuals and families. As a result, a plan for 
compliance of the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970 as amended need not be addressed.  Should it become necessary to 
address relocation at some future date, the TDDA shall abide by requirements of the 
Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, as amended. 

 
16. PROVISION FOR THE COSTS OF RELOCATING PERSONS DISPLACED BY THE 

DEVELOPMENT, AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT OF 
EXPENSES, INCLUDING LITIGATION EXPENSES AND EXPENSES INCIDENT TO 
THE TRANSFER OF TITLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS AND 
PROVISIONS OF THE FEDERAL UNIFORM RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AND REAL 
PROPERTY ACQUISITION POLICIES ACT OF 1970 

 
Development Plan #6 does not require the acquisition and clearance of occupied 
residential property or the displacement of individuals and families. As a result, a plan for 
compliance of the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970 as amended need not be addressed.  Should it become necessary to 
address relocation at some future date, the TDDA shall abide by requirements of the 
Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, as amended, and Act 227 of Public Acts of 1972, as amended. 

 17



 

 
17. PLAN FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL UNIFORM RELOCATION 

ASSISTANCE AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION POLICIES ACT OF 1970 AND 
ACT 227 OF THE PUBLIC ACTS OF 1972 AS AMENDED  

 
Act 227 of Public Acts of 1972, as amended, is an Act to provide financial assistance, 
advisory services and reimbursement of certain expenses to persons displaced from real 
property or deprived of certain rights in real property. This Act requires procedures and 
policies comparable to the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended. Since Development Plan #6 does not 
require the acquisition of residential property and displacement of persons, a plan for 
compliance with Act 227 is not addressed.  Should the TDDA find it necessary to acquire 
occupied residential properties, a plan for compliance with Act 227 will be prepared. 
 

 18



 

 
 

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN NO. 6 
 
1. DEFINITIONS USED IN THIS PLAN 
 

A. Current Assessed Value  -- (CAV) means the amount in any one (1) year by which the 
Current Assessed Value, as equalized, of the eligible property identified in the Tax 
Increment Financing Plan, including the Current Assessed Value of property for which 
specific local taxes are paid in lieu of property taxes as determined in Subdivision (c) 
exceeds the Initial Assessed Value. The State Tax Commission shall prescribe the 
method for calculating Captured Assessed Value. 

 
 
B. Initial Assessed Value –  (IAV) means the assessed value, as equalized, of the eligible 

property identified in the Tax Increment Financing Plan at the time the Resolution 
establishing the Tax Increment Financing Plan is approved as shown by the most recent 
assessment roll for which equalization has been completed at the time the Resolution is 
adopted.  Property exempt from taxation at the time of the determination of the Initial 
Assessed Value shall be included as zero.  Property for which a specific local tax is paid 
in lieu of property tax shall not be considered exempt from taxation.  The Initial Assessed 
Value of property for which a specific local tax was paid in lieu of property tax shall be 
determined as provided in Subdivision (c). 

 
 
 “Assessed value” means one of the following: 
 

1. For valuations made before January 1, 1996, the state equalized valuation as 
determined under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.157. 

 
2. For valuations made after December 31, 1994, the taxable value as determined 

under section 27a of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.27a. 
 
 

C. Specific Local Taxes – means a tax levied under Act 198 of the Public Acts of 1974, 
being sections 207.551 to 207.571 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, the Commercial 
Redevelopment Act, Act No. 255 of the Public Acts of 1978, being Section 207.651 to 
207.668 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, the Enterprise Zone Act, Act No. 2424 of the 
Public Acts of 1985, being Sections 125.2101 to 125.2122 of the Michigan Compiled 
Laws, and the Technology Park Development Act, Act No. 285 of the Public Acts of 1984, 
being Sections 207.701 to 207.718 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.  The Initial Assessed 
Value or Current Assessed Value of property subject to specific local tax shall be the 
quotient of the specific local tax paid dividend by the ad valorem millage rate. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN 
 

If the Board determines that it is necessary for the achievement of the purposes of the 
Downtown Development Act, it shall prepare and submit a Tax Increment Financing Plan to 
the Governing Body, which shall contain the following: 

 
The City of Troy’s Downtown Development Area wishes to avoid deterioration of its property 
values.  In order to avoid property tax value deterioration and to continue to increase property 
tax valuations and facilitate the overall economic growth of its Business District, it is deemed 
to be beneficial and necessary to create and provide for the operation of a Downtown 

 19



 

Development Authority in the city under the provisions of Act 197 Public Acts of Michigan, 
1975 as amended (the “Act”). 

 
The Authority has determined that a Tax Increment Financing Plan is necessary for the 
achievement of the purposes of the Act and it is authorized to prepare and submit said Plan 
to the Governing Body.  The Tax Increment Financing Plan (the “Plan”), set forth herein shall 
include a Development Plan, a detailed explanation of the Tax Increment procedure, the 
maximum amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, the duration of the program, the 
impact of Tax Increment Financing on the assessed values of all taxing jurisdictions in which 
the Development Area is located and a statement of the portion of the Captured Assessed 
Value to be used by the Authority. 

 
3. EXPLANATION OF THE TAX INCREMENT PROCEDURE 
 

The theory of Tax Increment Financing holds that investment is necessary and capital 
improvements in a designated area within a Municipality will result in greater property tax 
revenues from that area than would otherwise occur if no special development were 
undertaken.  This section is intended to explain the Tax Increment procedure. 

 
A. In order to provide a Downtown Development Authority with the means of financing 
development proposals, the Act affords the opportunity to undertake Tax Increment Financing 
or Development Programs.  These programs must be identified in a Tax Increment Financing 
Plan, which has been approved by the Governing Body of a Municipality.  Tax Increment 
Financing permits the Authority to capture incremental tax revenues attributable to increases 
in value of Real and Personal Property located within an approved Development area.  The 
increases in property value may be attributable to new construction, rehabilitation, 
remodeling, alterations, additions or any other factors, which cause growth in value. 

 
B. At the time the Resolution establishing a Tax Increment Financing Plan is approved, the 
sum of the most recently assessed values, as equalized, of those taxable properties located 
within the Development Area is established as the “Initial Assessed Value.”  Property exempt 
from taxation at the time of determination of the Initial Assessed Value is included as zero.  In 
each subsequent year, the total Real and Personal Property within the District, including 
abated property on separate rolls is established as the “Current Assessed Value.” 

 
C. The amount by which the Total Assessed Value exceeds the IAV is the CAV.  During the 
period in which a Tax Increment financing Plan is in effect, local taxing jurisdictions continue 
to receive ad valorem taxes based on the IAV.  Property taxes paid on a predetermined 
portion of the CAV in years subsequent to the adoption of a Tax Increment Financing Plan, 
however, are payable to an Authority for the purposes established in the Tax Increment 
Financing Plan. 

 
4. TAXING JURISDICTION AGREEMENTS 
 

Tax increment revenues for the Downtown Development authority result from the application 
of the general tax rates of the incorporated municipalities and all other political subdivisions, 
which levy taxes in the Development Area to the Captured Assessed Value.  Since the Plan 
may provide for the use of all or part of the captured tax increment revenue, the Downtown 
Development authority may enter into agreements which any of the taxing units to share a 
portion of the revenue of the District. 

 
The Authority intends to utilize all captured revenue from the District for projects identified 
under its Work Program for the duration of this Development Plan and TIF Plan. 

 

 20



 

5. PROPERTY VALUATIONS AND CAPTURED REVENUE 
 

The property valuation on which incremental tax revenues will be captured is the difference 
between the Initial Assessed Valuation and the Captured Assessed Valuation.  The purpose 
of this section is to set forth the Initial Assessed Valuation, the projected Captured Assessed 
Valuation and the anticipated increment revenues to be received by the Authority from the 
Local Taxing Jurisdictions including the City of Troy, the and any other authorities or special 
tax districts that may be eligible to levy property taxes within the boundaries of the Downtown 
Development authority, herein collectively referred to as the “Local Taxing Jurisdictions.” 

 
a) The Initial Assessed Valuation entails that previously established through Tax Increment 

Financing Plan #1.  It is based on the 1993 State Equalized Valuations on Real and 
Personal Property on all non-exempt parcels within the Development Area.  The Initial 
Assessed Valuation is detailed below: 

 
  Total Real Property   $342,342,400 
  Total Personal Property   $  86,936,130 
 
  Initial Assessed Valuation   $429,278,530 
 

b) The anticipated Captured Assessed Value is equivalent to the annual total assessed 
value within the Authority Boundaries less the Initial Assessed Value as described above.  
The CAV then becomes the basis for the property tax levy on which incremental taxes 
are collected.  The CAV is projected based on a number of factors including historical 
growth patterns, recent construction trends, economic indicators and the impact of certain 
development projects anticipated to be undertaken by the Downtown Development 
Authority.  For projection purposes, the inflationary growth factor applied to annual 
valuation is 1.0%. 

 
c) The Authority will receive that portion of the tax levy of all taxing jurisdictions paid each 

year on the Captured Assessed Value of the eligible property included in the 
Development Area).  Provided the captured tax increment revenues are not directed back 
to the local taxing jurisdictions by agreement, the Authority may use the revenues for any 
legal purpose as is established under the Act.  Millage specifically levied for the payment 
of principal of and interest on obligations approved by the Electors or obligations pledging 
the unlimited taxing power of the Local Governmental Unit shall be captured but 
reimbursed to the appropriate taxing jurisdictions. 

 
For instance, if the tax rate is 60.00 mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation, the tax 
increment will be 60.00 mills applied to the total Captured Assessed Valuation unless tax 
abatements have been granted to specific industries whereby the tax increment may be 
collected on a lower millage amount. 

 
 The City Treasurer will collect the general property taxes from property owners in the 

Downtown Area.  After taxes are collected, the Treasurer will deduct that portion of the 
total tax that is captured assessed value of the Downtown Development Authority and 
distribute them to the authority to use for purposes outlined in the Development Plan. 

 
 A review of the 2001 millage rates for all Local Taxing Jurisdictions in the Development 

Area is as set forth in Table #1 TDDA − Tax Increment Revenue. 

 21



 

 
6. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS 
 

Changes to Tax Increment Financing imposed through approval of Proposal A in March 1994 
prohibit the use of such revenues for reimbursement of bond indebtedness in projects 
established after December 31, 1993. The state legislature amended Proposal A to allow for 
non-school revenues to be used by Downtown Development Authorities to issue bonds.   

 
Effective upon the retirement, redemption or other defeasance of all Outstanding Bonds, the 
provisions of Section 14(2) of Plan #1 are amended to conform with the statutory provisions 
of Act 197, as amended, in effect at the time of the issuance of any future indebted ness of 
the City, the TDDA or both.  The more restrictive provisions in Plan #1 or Plan #2 of the 
TDDA including, but not limited to, limitations set for the in Section 14(2) of Plan #1 on the 
percentage and/or amount of TDDA tax increment revenues that may be pledged and 
restrictions on the total aggregate amount of borrowing of the TDDA shall be of no further 
force and effect with respect to such future indebtedness. 
 

7. USE OF CAPTURED REVENUES 
 

Revenues captured through this Tax Increment Finance Plan will be used to finance Work 
Program Activities outlined in Section 6 of the Development Plan.  Captured revenues will be 
used to pay for costs associated with the operation of this Development Plan. 

 
8. DURATION OF THE PROGRAM 
 

The duration of the Development Plan shall extend through the collection of taxes levied 
through December of 2018. 

 
9. PLAN IMPACT ON LOCAL TAXING JURISDICTIONS 
 

The Authority recognizes that future development in the city’s business district cannot be fully 
achieved in the absence of Tax Increment Financing.  The authority also recognizes that 
enhancement of the value of nearby property will indirectly benefit all Local Governmental 
Units included in this Plan.  It is expected that the effected Local Taxing Jurisdictions will 
experience some loss of property tax revenues during the first ten (10) years of the Plan and 
should realize increased property tax revenues thereafter as a result of Capital Improvements 
financed by the Plan.  Such future benefits cannot be accurately quantified at this time. 

 
10. RELEASE OF CAPTURED REVENUES 
 

When the Development and Financing Plans have been accomplished, the captured revenue 
shall be released and the Local Taxing Jurisdictions shall receive their revenue share due 
following the date of release.  

 

 22



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 21, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Father Stratton Dorozenski of St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Oakland County Commissioner Tim Burns discussed various topics of interest relative to 

Oakland County to City Council and members of the audience. 
b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Ann Tyrrell a Service 

Commendation recognizing her 16 years of dedicated service in the City of Troy’s Public 
Works Department. 

c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Service Commendations to Mike 
Brady, Pam Brady, Bette Gay, Zora Hargrave, Jim Sauter, Bob Treharne, and Lee 
Watkins with gratitude and in recognition and appreciation for their contribution to the 
betterment of the City of Troy as members of the Troy Seniornet Computer Lab Steering 
Committee. 

d) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation recognizing 
Monday, May 21, 2007 as Falun Dafa Day. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File No. CR-002) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, 
West Side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2007-05-158 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related 
Site Plan documents, as per Section 03.24.00 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance; 
 
WHEREAS, The CR-1 to R-1T conditional rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, north of Wattles, in Section 15, part of parcel 88-20-15-477-036, being 2.27 acres in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of 
Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE 1/4 of Section 15 
 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 15; thence N 
00°16’21” W, 687.40 ft.; thence West, 75.00 ft. to the west right-of-way line 
of Rochester Rd. (150 ft. wide) being the Point of Beginning; thence West, 
250.00 ft.; thence N 00°16’21” W, 365.00 ft.; thence S 89°52’34” E, 282.01 
ft.; thence S 00°16’21” E, 244.39 ft.; thence West, 32.00 ft.; thence S 
00°16’21” E, 120.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 2.27 acres, 
more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record; and 

 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That upon completion of all variance approvals related to the 
preliminary site plan, the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the CR-1 to R-1T Conditional 
Rezoning Agreement and related Site Plan documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City of Troy Zoning 
District Map. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-625 B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake 

and Niles, Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 - No action taken by City Council 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment.  
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Hooters v. Troy – Approval of Consent Judgment 
 
Resolution #2007-05-159 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the May 21, 2007 consent judgment 
between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  That upon the execution of the consent judgment by the Court, 
Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia 
Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with new Entertainment 
Permit located at 2950 Rochester Road Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County from Sign of the 
Beefcarver, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement with 
Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed 
business with new Entertainment Permit located at 2950 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Lambert, Schilling, Stine  
No: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-1a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 14, 2007 be 
APPROVED as amended. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops  
b) Service Commendation – Linda Thielfoldt  
c) Proclamation in Recognition of Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – Toro Lawn Maintenance Equipment                   
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Toro lawn 
maintenance equipment from Spartan Distributors of Auburn Hills, MI, through the State of 
Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an estimated total cost of 
$93,281.62. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – John Deere                   
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) John 
Deere zero turn commercial riding mower with 72” deck from John Deere Company of Cary, 
NC, through the State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an 
estimated total cost of $12,448.04. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expenses – National League of 
Cities (NLC) Community and Economic Development Steering Committee Meeting                  

 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Dave Lambert is AUTHORIZED to attend the NLC 
Community and Economic Development Steering Committee meeting in New Haven, CT from 
June 14 - 16, 2007 in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Morrell v Troy, et al  
 
Resolution #2007-05-160-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy and Officer Meghan Broderick in any and all claims for damages in the matter of 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

Kenneth Morrell v. R.H.A.R., Inc., d/b/a/ Maple & John R. Amoco, Armada Oil Company, Mike 
Ankowi, City of Troy, and Officer Broderick; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs 
and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-2 Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 for Paving of the East ½ of Eckford – Section 15, 
SAD #06.202.1 

 
(a) Standard Resolution #1
  
Resolution #2007-05-161a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #1 to direct the 
preparation of plans and cost estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost 
of Asphalt Paving of the easterly ½ of Eckford in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant 
to Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Standard Resolution #2
 
Resolution #2007-05-161b 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #2 to approve plans 
and cost estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt Paving of 
the easterly ½ of Eckford, in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 
1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy 
 

Total Estimated Cost $428,100.00 
Assessment       75,800.00 
City's Share      352,300.00 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED and DIRECTED to 
prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

(c) Standard Resolution #3
 
Resolution #2007-05-161c 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #3 to set a Public 
Hearing date on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of the easterly ½ of Eckford, in 
Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with 
said Public Hearing to be established for June 18, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-3 Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements at the Bharatiya 

Temple, 6850 N. Adams, and Waiver of Jurisdiction of the Troy Economic 
Development Corporation for the Issuance of Bonds 

 
(a) Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements at the Bharatiya 

Temple, 6850 N. Adams
  
Resolution #2007-05-162a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, There exists in the County of Oakland the need for programs to alleviate and 
prevent conditions of unemployment, to assist and retain local industrial and commercial 
enterprises, and to encourage the location and expansion of such enterprises in order to 
strengthen and revitalize the County's economy and to provide needed services and facilities to 
the County, the City of Troy, and their residents;  
 
WHEREAS, The Economic Development Corporations Act, Act No. 338 of the Michigan Public 
Acts of 1974, as amended (the "Act"), provides a means for the encouragement and assistance 
of industrial and commercial enterprises in locating, purchasing, constructing, reconstructing, 
modernizing, improving, maintaining, repairing, furnishing, equipping and expanding in the City 
and the County;  
 
WHEREAS, The Economic Development Corporation of the County of Oakland (the "EDC") has 
commenced proceedings for the assistance, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and through 
the issuance of its limited obligation economic development revenue bonds, of The Bharatiya 
Temple Project (the "Project") which is located in this City;  
 
WHEREAS, The EDC has determined that the Project is reasonable and necessary to 
effectuate the purposes of the Act, that the Project Plan prepared in connection with the Project 
satisfies all of the requirements of Section 8 of the Act regarding project plans, that the persons 
who will be active in the management of the Project for at least one (1) year after the projected 
date of the County Board of Commissioners' approval of the Project Plan will have sufficient 
ability and experience to manage the Plan properly, that the proposed method of financing the 
Project is feasible, and the EDC has approved the Project Plan in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A;  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, Before this Project can proceed under the Act, this City Council must approve the 
Project Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, This City Council has reviewed the subject Project Plan and concurs in the 
determinations of the EDC with respect thereto; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  That in accordance with the Act, this City Council hereby 
APPROVES the Project Plan attached as Exhibit A; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Clerk is hereby INSTRUCTED to 
communicate this approval of the Project Plan to the Board of Directors of the EDC by 
delivering to said Board of Directors a certified copy of this resolution. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
(b) Waiver of Jurisdiction of the Troy Economic Development Corporation for the 

Issuance of Bonds
  
Resolution #2007-05-162b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Bharatiya Temple, a Michigan nonprofit corporation (the "Company"), desires 
to expand and improve its facilities in the City of Troy (the "Project");   
 
WHEREAS, The Company is interested in pursuing the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds 
("Bonds") through The Economic Development Corporation of the County of Oakland ("Oakland 
County EDC") as a means of financing its proposed Project;   
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County EDC is currently active in assisting qualifying non-
governmental organizations through the entire process of issuing Bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, Act 338 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1974, as amended ("EDC Act"), requires a 
waiver of jurisdiction by the governing body of any municipality in which a project to be financed 
under the EDC Act is located if that municipality has an economic development corporation and 
the financing is to be undertaken by a different economic development corporation;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That pursuant to the EDC Act, the Troy City Council hereby 
APPROVES the aforementioned waiver of jurisdiction with respect to the Company's Project to 
allow the Oakland County EDC jurisdiction to issue Bonds therefore.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 
 
Resolution #2007-05-163 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That a joint meeting between the Troy City Council and the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce for the purpose of discussing various topics is SCHEDULED for:  
 

Wednesday, August 1, 2007 at 7:30 PM in Room 305 at the Troy Community 
Center, 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan. 

 
Yes:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Youth Council  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Resolution #2007-05-164 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Youth Council
Appointed by Council  (13)  – 1 Year Term 
 
Maxine D’Amico Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Rishi Joshi Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Jessica Kraft Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Joseph Niemiec Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Anupama Prasad Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Kristin Randall Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Neil Shaw Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Katie Thoenes Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Nicole Vitale Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Disha Bora Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

 
Geon Woo Kim Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Shaina Sekhri Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
David Wylie Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-4 Bid Waiver – Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 
  
Resolution #2007-05-165 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Public Works Department of the City of Troy routinely performs maintenance 
activities on sanitary sewer pipes;  
 
WHEREAS, The current camera equipment is nine years old and has become obsolete with 
limited repair services available; and 
 
WHEREAS, An informal bid process was performed with Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, 
CA and Jack Doheny of Novi, MI, the only two known authorized suppliers for the Michigan 
area; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and a contract to purchase the Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment 
upgrade from the manufacturer, Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, is hereby APPROVED 
for an estimated total cost of $45,866.00, at unit prices as detailed in Appendix I; a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and Thorncroft, 

East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 – June 4, 2007  
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced    
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced   
Council Member Stine referred to point 3 on the City Manager’s Weekly Updates and she is 
disappointed that the strategic planning initiatives have been removed from the agenda. Council 
Member Stine believes that they helped Council to stay focused and provided the City Manager 
with the direction he is looking for from Council. Council Member Stine requests that a study 
session in regard to strategic planning initiatives be scheduled on a future agenda. 
Due to budget constraints, Council Member Stine is further disappointed the City was unable to 
do anything at a County Commissioner level on the issue of school bullying. She believes 
bullying is an important safety issue and believes it happens at all levels. Council Member Stine 
requests further information about how something can be done on this issue at a City level.  
Based upon Commissioner Burn’s comments, Mayor Schilling believes that Council Members 
should individually contact County Commissioner and encourage them to support the proposed 
resolution on this issue. The Mayor further understands that there is funding available for a 
project on this issue.  
Council Member Stine advised that Council has received correspondence from residents in 
regard to their concern about safety issues for the children arising from item C-2 on tonight’s 
agenda. Council Member Stine questioned whether the police department needs to have more 
visibility in that area because the location of the school and its proximity to the site. 
 
Council Member Howrylak has some concerns about the workload of the Board of Review. He 
believes, because of the economic times and resulting decreased property values, that a 
second Board of Review may be required. He understands that there were some very tense 
moments during this year’s review and that perhaps security should be increased also during 
these meetings. 
 
Council Member Howrylak asked whether archived video and audio presentations can be made 
available on the City’s website similar to that of Northglenn, Colorado. 
 
Council Member Howrylak requested that a proclamation be prepared in recognition of the 25th 
anniversary of his former Boy Scout Troop 1702. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 18, 2007  
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 4, 2007 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 4, 2007  
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 5, 2007 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 11, 2007 
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 12, 2007  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final- April 17, 2007  
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 3, 2007 
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 8, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Jeff Biegler, Ed Carpus and the Troy Parks and Recreation 

Department from March of Dimes WalkAmerica    
b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Bambi Mansfield Regarding the 

Evanswood Threat  
c) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan Chapter 

Commending the Performance of Lynn McDaniel  
d) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan Chapter 

Commending the Performance of Sergeant Bjork and Officers Fitzpatrick and Kaptur     
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Law Day 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of 
Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:   
 
Resolution #2007-05-166  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (a), Performance Evaluation of City Attorney, Lori Grigg Bluhm.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 21, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2007-05-167 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time until the Closed Session, Performance Evaluation of City 
Attorney, Lori Grigg Bluhm is concluded. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 11:25 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:30 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED Tuesday, May 22, 2007 at 12:40 AM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 25 YEARS   
BOY SCOUT TROOP 1702 

 
 

WHEREAS, The Boy Scouts of America was founded on February 8, 1910, and has grown to be a vital force in the 
development of our youth through its many programs which encourage the ability of its members to do things for themselves 
and others; and 
 
WHEREAS, One of the major objectives of the Boy Scouting program is to develop citizenship through community 
involvement and members of Troop 1702 have completed more than 75 service projects in Troy and other local communities 
over the past 25 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Their service projects that helped our Troy community include improving the trails at our Troy Nature Center and 
building benches and log seating for outdoor class sessions; building and installing 100 bluebird houses; conducting 
computer classes for seniors; resetting the grave markers at the Crooks Road Cemetery; installing 26 donated smoke 
detectors for low income residents; building a large flower box at Schroeder Elementary to display the American flag; 
refurbishing the railings at the Troy Museum and building 8 park benches on Troy High School property; and  
 
WHEREAS, Some of their other service projects have included renovating a playground in the old Woodbridge Historic 
District in Detroit; creating and distributing 30 personal hygiene backpacks for the homeless; improving a nature trail in Lake 
Angelus and; creating & landscaping a handicap accessible picnic area at Bowers School Farm in Bloomfield Hills; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troop 1702 has built outdoor play equipment for a local church campground; repainted local church interiors; 
held clothing, food and toy drives;  repaired homes for senior citizens; built a basketball game structure for a children's ward 
at Henry Ford Hospital; provided 135 donated foreign language books for the Detroit Public Library; collected pet food and 
pet toys for the Michigan Animal Adoption Network; and collected cell phones and pagers for victims of violence; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sixty-two Scouts in Troop 1702 have earned the rank of Eagle Scout, which is the highest rank in Boy Scouts.  
Approximately 300 Troy boys have been (or are currently) members of Troop 1702 since 1982; and  
 
WHEREAS, The dedicated Scoutmasters of Troop 1702 have been Greg Smith 1982 – 1987; Chuck Truza 1987 – 1995; 
Dan Van Dyke 1995 – 1996; Bob Sigler 1996 – 1997; Tom Krent 1997 – 2000; Steve Walsh 2000 – 2004 and Mark 
Tomlinson 2004 - present;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Boy Scout Troop 1702 on its 
25th Anniversary and its tremendous positive influence on our young men. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration of 
Boy Scout Troop 1702 on its 25th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 29th day of May 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 
 
  May 24, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair Services   
  
Background 
• On March 27, 2007, bids were opened to provide two (2) years of maintenance and repair services for the 

Troy Family Aquatic Center and Community Center Pools (excluding pumps), with two (2) additional one 
(1) year options to renew.   

• 72 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with two bidders responding. 
• Services covered include emergency and regular repairs needed at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and 

Community Center Indoor Pool excluding pumps, which is covered under another contract. 
 
Financial Considerations 
• Funds to provide these services are available in the 2007/08 Budget in the Troy Family Aquatic Center 

Accounts #787.7802.070 and #787.7802.150 and the Troy Community Center Accounts #755.7802.070 and 
#755.7802.150.  

 
Legal Considerations 
• ITB-COT 06-62 for two (2) year requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor 

pools at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year renewal options was 
competitively bid and opened with two bidders responding. 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying pool maintenance 
and repairs at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Community Center pools.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• The repair and maintenance bid ensures that the cost of repairs and maintenance are minimal and that 

they are made in a timely fashion to ensure limited closure to the public. (Goal II) 
• The bid will ensure that equipment is up to date which will provide the safest environment for community 

use. (Goal I) 
• The bid will allow us to continue to repair and update equipment as needed to retain investment and attract 

additional customers. (Goal III) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend awarding a two (2) year contract 

for pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and 
 

Page 1 of 2 
May 24, 2007 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Pool Maintenance and Repair Services 

 
Options continued 

 
Community Center with two (2) one-year renewal options to the low bidder, B and B Pools and Spas, of 
Livonia, Michigan, at rates contained in the bid tabulation opened March 27, 2007, to expire June 30, 
2009. 

 
 
 
bg  G:\Bid Award 06-07 NewFormat/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – PoolMtnce-Repairs05.07.doc  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-62
Opening Date -- 3/27/07 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1 
Date Prepared -- 4/17/07 POOL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 

VENDOR NAME: ** Clearwater Pools and
Service of Ann Arbor

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH Two Year REQUIREMENTS OF POOL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS FOR BOTH INDOOR
AND OUTDOOR POOLS AT THE TROY FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER & COMMUNITY CENTER
WITH Two-One Year RENEWAL OPTIONS

EST
QTY ITEM     DESCRIPTION
60 hrs 1 Repair Service 

Regular Time - Hour per Man 75.00$               $130.00/1st hour 
(2 man crew) $76.00/after 1st hour

40 hrs 2 Emergency Repairs
Regular Time - Hour per Man 75.00$               76.00$                           
Overtime: - Hour per Man Blank 86.00$                           
Holiday Time - Hour per Man Blank 112.00$                         
(2 man crew)

3 Travel Time
Complete Repair Call N/A 55.00$                           

4 Repair Parts
Discount % Blank Blank
Parts Price List Blank Blank
Dated Blank Blank

A Markup/Markdown 

City will receive trade
or sale price on all 

parts 15% Markup added

SITE INSPECTION: Yes  or No No 
Date 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hrs of Operation 8am - 5pm M-Sat 8am-6pm
Contact Number 734-427-3242 734-216-2503

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Days Net 30 

WARRANTY: All Manufacturers 30 Days 

DELIVERY DATE (S) As needed Blank

EXCEPTIONS: None Price is for normal maint & repairs. Major
repairs & marcite problems can be worked
out at sq ft price. Cal-Hypo feeders need
to be worked on w/supplier of chemicals.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
Professional Pool Techs ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Barbara A. Pallotta ___________________________
Brian Goul Susan Leirstein CPPB
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director
G: /ITB-COT 06-62 Pool Maint & Repairs

B & B Pools & Spa

Current supplier 
for City



 

 
May 24, 2007 

 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidder –Type ‘K’ Copper 

Tubing 
 
Background 
 
 On May 24, 2007, bid proposals were received to furnish Type ‘K’ Copper Tubing. 
 53 vendors were notified via the MITN system with five (5) bidders responding of which two (2) 

did not meet specifications regarding bid surety requirements.  In addition, one statement of no 
bid was received. 

 Due to the volatility of the commodity market, prices are only good for thirty- (30) days. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Water Division for tap-ins. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-19, Type ‘K’ Copper Tubing was competitively bid in accordance with Chapter 7 of 

the City Code. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying goods 

to the City of Troy.  (Goal #II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding the contract to low bidder, SLC Meter Service, Inc. of 

Davisburg, MI for an estimated total cost of $79,170.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation. 

 
 
ef S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 06.04.07 SR1: Type ‘K’ Copper Tubing Letter  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-04b



 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-19
Opening Date: 5/24/07 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared: 5/24/07 TYPE "K" COPPER TUBING

  
VENDOR NAME: ** SLC Meter Ferguson Etna Supply

Service, Inc. Enterprise Company

CHECK NUMBER: 336423398 193494093-3 106015033
CHECK AMOUNT: 500.00$              500.00$              500.00$              

UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY/FT PRICE PRICE PRICE

1) 1" Type "K" Copper Tubing 3,000 4.25$           4.52$            4.73$            
60-Foot rolls

2) 1 1/2" Type "K" Copper 3,600 7.06$           7.53$            7.87$            
Tubing - 60-Foot rolls

3) 2" Type "K" Copper Tubing 3,600 11.39 12.13$          12.68$          
60-Foot rolls

GRAND TOTAL -- ** 79,170.00$  84,336.00$  88,170.00$  

TERMS Net 30 Days Net 10th Net 30 

WARRANTY Standard Manuf Manufacturers Manufacturer

DELIVERY DATE (S) 5-7 Days 1-3 weeks 3-28 Days

EXCEPTIONS Blank One lot pricing Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS: ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER
Clor & Associates LLC

DMS:  
Liberty Plumbing Supply Company - No bid deposit check ($80,532)
H.D. Supply Waterworks - No bid deposit check ($80,322)

ATTEST:                              
Debra Painter
Emily Frontera
Rick Shepler
Julie Hamilton _________________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 07-19 CopperTubing



 
  May 25, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Major Street Pavement 

Marking Program 
 
Background 
• Two (2) year requirements of major street pavement marking with an option to renew for one (1) 

additional year was approved by Troy City Council on August 1, 2005, to the low bidder, P.K. 
Contracting, Inc (Resolution #2005-08-375-E4b).   

• P.K. Contracting, Inc. has been producing a quality product for the City. 
• Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 

additional sealed bids.   
 
Financial Considerations  
• Funds for this project are available in the 2007/08 operating budget for “Major Markings – Contractual 

Services” Account# 477.7802.070. 
 
Legal Considerations 
• ITB-COT 05-29, to provide two (2) year requirements of major street pavement marking with an option 

to renew for one (1) additional year was competitively bid and opened July 8, 2005, with two bidders 
responding. 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the pavement 
marking program for the City of Troy.  

 
Policy Considerations  
• Moving this work forward will improve public safety and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I) 
 
Options 
• City management and the Public Works Department recommend exercising the option to renew for 

one additional year with P.K. Contracting, Inc., at the same unit prices as 2006/07, which opened  
July 8, 2005 and contained in the bid tabulation as Year 2, with amended construction quantities, 
under the same terms and conditions as the original contract to expire June 30, 2008.   

 
 
 
 
mbf  S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda06.04.07 SR3 PavementMarking 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-04c



 
 

   May 4, 2007 
 
 

TO:      Susan A. Leirstein  
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – STREET PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
 
 
R&S CONTRACTING – Jim Valente                                                                 (586) 293-2510 
Tried to reach this vendor – phone is disconnected and is not listed in the Telephone Book 
or on line.  (Would believe this company is either out of business or had a name change.) 
 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to 
renew the contract for Street Pavement Markings to the current vendor because operating 
costs continue to rise for petroleum products and competition is limited for this type of 
work. 
 
 
CC: File 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
  May 29, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
RE:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option  –  

Concrete Pavement Repair 
 

Background 
• On October 23, 2006, Troy City Council approved contracts for concrete 

pavement repair with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low 
bidders by proposal: Hard Rock Concrete for proposal A), A-1)- Local Roads, 
Six-S, Inc for proposal B)- Major Roads, and Major Cement Company for 
proposal C)- Industrial Roads (Resolution #2006-10-320-E4e).  

• Hard Rock Concrete Inc., Six-S, Inc., and Major Cement Company have agreed 
to renew and amend the construction quantities under the same prices, terms, 
and conditions as 2006/07. 

• All three contractors have been producing a quality product for the City. 
• A favorable market survey was conducted by the Purchasing Department and 

determined the City would not benefit from soliciting additional sealed bids. 
 
Financial Considerations  
• Funds for this project are available in the 2007/08 Capital Accounts for Public 

Works Construction. 
• Proposal A. Acc.# 401499.7989.500 Local Roads, Section 7,15,13 & 19 
• Proposal B. Acc.# 401479.7989.500 Major Roads, Coolidge & Rochester 
• Proposal C. Acc.# 401479.7989.300 Industrial Roads Northwood, Alger, Chicago 

& Minnesota 
 
Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-42, Concrete Pavement Repair was competitively bid and opened 

October 10, 2006, with ten bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

concrete pavement repair program. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

pallottaba
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 2 

May 29, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re  Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
 
Policy Considerations  
• Concrete pavement repair preserves infrastructure and would improve public 

safety and also reduce liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options 
• City management and the Public Works department recommend exercising the 

option to renew for one (1) additional year to three separate low bidders: Hard 
Rock Concrete Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1, Local Roads; Six-S, Inc. of 
Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads; and Major Cement Company of Detroit 
for proposal C – Industrial Roads with amended construction quantities, under 
the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract to expire June 30, 
2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mbf  S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 06.04.07 SR3 ConcretePavementRepair 
 



 
 

   May 10, 2007 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:      Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR  
 
HARTWELL CEMENT CO. – Lisa                                                                     (248) 548-5858 
Lisa has indicated that concrete will increase in price because of fuel prices. The increase will 
be about 15% to 20%. Companies that deliver product to their business have been charging 
them a fuel surcharge – so they have to pass this additional cost on to their customers.   
 
FLORENCE CEMENT CO. – Angelo Lanni                                                        (586) 997-2666 
According to Angelo, prices will be going up 20% because of the rising cost of fuel and labor 
costs.  He will have to increase his prices also to accommodate for these items.  
 
GIORGI CONCRETE LLC – Michelle Solomon                                                  (313) 366-2921 
Michelle informed me that because of fuel cost being high – the cost of concrete and steel will 
be increasing about 10% to 20% in price.   A fuel surcharge will be included in the cost of 
concrete and any of their other products. 
 
LACARIA CONCRETE – Sal Lacaria                                                                   (313) 843-3865 
Per Sal – he believes that prices will hold because of competition out there.  He is going to hold 
and even lower his if possible. 
 
CENTURY CEMENT CO. – A.J. Pighin                                                               (734) 284-8770 
Called too busy to answer any questions for the market survey. 
 
DILISIO CONTRACTING – Gioseppe Lia                                                             (586) 783-4044 
Called and left messages on 5/8, 5/9, & 5/10/07.  No response to calls. 
 
KOALA-T CONSTRUCTION – Nicholas Reeser                                                  (248) 322-2751 
Called and left messages on 5/8, 5/9, & 5/10/07.  No response to calls. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offers to 
renew the various contracts for Concrete Pavement Repair to the current vendors based on the 
fact costs for Concrete will increase about 10% to 20% because of fuel prices.   
 
CC: File  











pallottaba
Text Box
E-04e







campbellld
Text Box
E-05



































campbellld
Text Box
E-06









 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
May 18, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
Larysa Figol, Right-of-Way Representative 

     
SUBJECT: Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – William 

Beaumont Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001 
 
 
 
Background: 
 

As part of the ongoing development and expansion of William Beaumont Hospital, located in 
Section 1 at Dequindre and South Boulevard, the Real Estate Department has received a 
Warranty Deed conveying right-of-way to the 60 foot line on Dequindre road.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The format and content of this Warranty Deed is consistent with deeds previously accepted by 

City Council. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 The dedication of right of way is required as part of the development process.  (Goal I & V) 

 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached Warranty Deed for right-of-

way, consistent with our policy of accepting dedications in property improvements and 
expansions. 

 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Beaumont WM 5-18-07.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07





campbellld
Text Box
E-08









TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: May 29, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 

 

Enclosed please find a copy of a re-plat lawsuit that was recently served on the City of 
Troy.  The Plaintiffs, Nick and Leslie Karagiannakis, are the owners of property that is 
designated as “Outlot B” in the Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1 (north of Square Lake Road, 
west of Rochester Road).  The Co-Plaintiffs, Garrett Family Limited Partnership (hereinafter 
“Garrett”) has a purchase agreement with the Karagiannakis family for a portion of this 
property, which has or will be combined with the rear portions of other parcels that front on 
Square Lake Road. Garrett proposes to build a 12-unit site condominium on this 
approximately 6.04 acre parcel, which is currently landlocked and is located behind several 
homes that front on Ottawa and Donaldson. 

The plat for the property, Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1, does not expressly designate 
a public roadway easement that would allow for a roadway to be constructed over the 
property owned by co-defendants Arthur and Delphine Lubiarz (480 Ottawa).  The plat 
instead grants only a 43-foot private easement over that property.  In 1981, a private 
driveway agreement over this 43-foot private easement allowed for the construction of the 
Karagiannakis’ residence (500 Ottawa).  However, this agreement is extremely limited, and 
authorizes only a private driveway to a single-family residence.   It could not be used to 
service a 12-unit condominium site.  The only way to convert the private easement over the 
Lubiarz property to a public road is to amend the plat and obtain a 43-foot wide public road 
easement, which could then be combined with the 17-foot wide public road easement for the 
recently re-platted Golf Estates Subdivision to provide the required 60 feet, for a public road. 
This adjoining property is currently owned by other co-defendants, James and Cynthia Smith 
(536 Ottawa). 

The Plaintiffs had previously filed an action for Declaratory Judgment. In response, the 
City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition arguing that the requested relief could only be 
granted through a lawsuit under the Michigan Subdivision Control Act, which would be filed 
against all persons having an interest that could be impacted by revisions to the plat.  
Plaintiffs agreed to voluntarily dismiss their Declaratory Judgment action lawsuit, and have 
now filed this plat revision lawsuit.   

Our office will assume defense of this lawsuit absent objection from City Council.  
Please let us know if we can provide additional information.   

  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09

















































































































 1

 
 
DATE: May 15, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, south 

side of Big Beaver, east of Adams, Section 30 – R-1C  
 
 
Background: 
 

• The applicant is proposing an 11-unit site condominium on the 5.1-acre parcel.  The applicant 
is utilizing the lot averaging option, which allows a 10 percent reduction in lot width. 

 
• The Planning Commission recommended Preliminary Approval of Villas of Somerset Site 

Condominium at the February 13, 2007 Regular meeting, with the following conditions: 
 
1. It is understood that the existing berm on the south side of that property will be removed. 
2.  All trees existing within that berm will be transplanted and replanted after the installation of 

the drainage. 
3. Due to the removal of the existing berm, which extends into the neighboring properties to 

the south, the developer will work with those neighbors to ensure the proper drainage from 
the property owners from the south to the new development. 

 
• The applicant has submitted a Landscape Plan indicating that 34 trees presently on the 

property will be replanted after the berm is removed. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment) and V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can grant Preliminary Approval of Villas of Somerset Site Condominium. 
 

• City Council can deny Preliminary Approval of Villas of Somerset Site Condominium. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission Minutes from the February 13, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Villas of Somerset Site Condominium 
 
 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Villas of Somerset Site Condo Sec 30\Villas of Somerset Prelim CC Approval 06 04 07.doc 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



H
E

N
H

AW
K

B
R

O
O

KLAW
N

KI
N

G
S

LE
Y

OAK 

HILL

NAMPA CT

A
D

A
M

S

VILLAGE CT
OAK LEAF

ROSEGLEN

R
O

S
E

G
LE

N 
C

T

EVERGREEN

W BIG BEAVER

DOROTHEA 
CTENGLE CT

A
M

B
E

R
LY

UPTO
N

BROOKLA
WN

CT
NORWICH

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED VILLAS OF SOMERSET SITE CONDOMINIUM
S SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, E OF ADAMS ( 3737 W. BIG BEAVER)
SEC. 30  (R-1C, 10 UNITS/LOTS)

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



H
E

N
H

AW
K

B
R

O
O

KLAW
N

KI
N

G
S

LE
Y

OAK 

HILL

NAMPA CT

A
D

A
M

S

VILLAGE CT
OAK LEAF

ROSEGLEN

R
O

S
E

G
LE

N 
C

T

EVERGREEN

W BIG BEAVER

DOROTHEA 
CTENGLE CT

A
M

B
E

R
LY

UPTO
N

BROOKLA
WN

CT
NORWICH

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

(R-1B)

(R-1C)

(R-1E)

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED VILLAS OF SOMERSET SITE CONDOMINIUM
S SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, E OF ADAMS ( 3737 W. BIG BEAVER)
SEC. 30  (R-1C, 10 UNITS/LOTS)

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
    

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 11 units/lots 
proposed, South side of Big Beaver Road, East of Adams, Section 30, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Principal Planner Savidant provided the Planning Commission with a summary of 
the Planning Department report for the Villas of Somerset Site Condominiums. 
 
Joseph Crucciolla, 2025 W. Long Lake Rd, developer for the site, was present. 
 
Jeff Rizzo, 13399 West Star, surveyor and engineer for the site, was present. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if any other locations for the retention areas were 
considered. 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated they did consider underground retention, but the City prohibits 
this.  They decided to expand the existing retention basin to the adjacent 
subdivision to the west.  
 
Commissioner Tagle will this be a dry pond and what are landscaping plans. 
 
Mr. Rizzo expects it to be a dry pond, and they will meet any landscaping plans 
that the City requires, but basically they will seed or sod the area. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant noted that the pond will be turned over to the City and 
become public property. 
 
Shelly Lauer, 3812 Village Ct, stated she lives just south of property.  The 
residents of the Northpointe 1 subdivision currently maintain that particular 
retention area, how will the combination of the detention areas affect us?  
 
Chairperson Schultz explained that when the retention ponds are built, they are 
deeded over to the city.  They are mowed by the City on an annual basis.   
 
Ms. Lauer stated their subdivision is not aware of this, and it is her understanding 
that this is not owned by the City. 
 
Chairperson Schultz responded that the ownership will have to be determined by 
the City. 
 
Karen Lueck, 3826 Village Ct., how do we determine who cares for the property 
once it is combined? 
 
City Attorney Lancaster replied that City staff can research and get an answer for 
the residents.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
    

Commissioner Tagle asked if there is a plan with the boundaries of the existing 
retention area. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the existing retention area is off of the 
subject property at the southwest corner. 
 
Tim Madigan, 3798 Village Ct., stated his lot is directly south of the proposed 
subdivision.  Are there any plans for walls, landscaping or fences on the south 
border? 
 
Chairperson Schultz replied that those plans would include whatever is required 
by a City for a residential property abutting another residential property; but there 
are no requirements for walls, landscaping or fences.   
 
Chairperson Schultz observed that there is an existing berm, and asked what are 
the plans for this area? 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated that as part of the design, the berm is right in the future retention 
area.  In addition, with the berm, Units 7 & 8 will have no usable back yard so 
their thoughts were to remove the berm.  He stated the developer may consider 
using the trees on other areas of the property. 
 
Jim Lieck, 3826 Village Ct, stated that the residents have re-landscaped the 
berm, put in 15 large trees, and maintained it for the past 12 years with the 
cooperation of church.  This berm is a major issue for the homeowners.  They 
would like to see trees replanted, perhaps onto their properties. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated the Commission certainly understands your 
concerns, however, that is a risk when making improvements on land not owned. 
 
David Plunkett, representing the church.  While the church understand the 
residents concerns, this is the churches property. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked for clarification on whether the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo replied that their intent is to remove the berm to provide suitable area 
for detention and to provide unit 7 and 8 a usable backyard.  To leave it would 
leave only the building set back, limiting what a homeowner could do in their 
backyard. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin clarified that the developer was volunteering to replanting 
the trees on the berm. 
 
Mr. Crucciolla replied, absolutely, they are looking to remove the trees, the berm 
and then replant the trees in the area. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
    

Chairperson Schultz stated there is confusion due to the grading plan shows the 
elevation for the berm as it exists, it does not show the berm would be removed.   
 
Mr. Rizzo clarified that the intent was to remove the existing 8-inch storm sewer 
and the berm.  The proposed grades and the existing contour of the berm, it 
indicates that it will be removed. 
 
Discussion followed on the drawings submitted and the lack of accuracy to the 
preliminary grading plan. 
 
Mr. Rizzo noted that this is a preliminary grading plan that will be worked out in 
engineering.  He added that they are showing a proposed storm line, if we are 
putting in a storm line, we are not going to maintain the berm. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated it is reasonable to assume that you were going to dig 
into the berm, and replace it since you show the elevations restored.  The 
Commission was surprised tonight to see that the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo requested that this site plan be approved subject to the removal of the 
berm.  He added if the site plan is approved, subject to the removal of the berm, 
the developer is willing to work with residents to replant the existing trees at the 
property line.  They will work to accommodate the size of the trees and use what 
means are necessary to preserve them. 
 
Chairperson Shultz confirmed that according to the site plan there are 
approximately 28 trees on the berm.  He asked if the developer’s offer of 
replacing the 28 trees was acceptable to the homeowners association. 
 
Homeowner representative, Karen Lueck, stated that the developer has spoken 
with the residents regarding the trees, and he has been very responsive.  She 
noted that they have to work with the developer pertaining to the re-grading of 
the area and how it affects their yards. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked Ms. Lueck, on behalf of the homeowners, if it is 
acceptable to the homeowners if the berm is being removed if the trees are 
replanted. 
 
Ms. Lueck answered yes. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin commented that the Commission encourages developers 
to work with neighbors and she is satisfied that this is occurring here.  In addition 
she stated she appreciated the developer volunteering to save trees because 
they are valuable to the community.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
    

Resolution # PC-2007-02-041 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, including 11 
units, located south of Big Beaver and east of Adams, Section 30, within the R-1C 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. It is understood that the existing berm on the south side of that property will 

be removed.   
2.  All trees existing within that berm will be transplanted and replanted after the 

installation of the drainage.   
3. Due to the removal of the existing berm, which extends into the neighboring 

properties to the south, the developer will work with those neighbors to 
ensure the proper drainage from the property owners from the south to the 
new development. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-03







 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
May 29, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the May 21, 2007 Council meeting staff was directed to schedule a special meeting for the 

purpose of discussing strategic planning initiatives. 
 Based on the on-line calendar that was created to show Council’s appointments, several possible 

dates are listed below. 
 
Options:
 
 Following are dates that are offered for a special meeting to discuss strategic planning initiatives: 

 
Monday, June 11, 2007 at 7:30 PM  
Tuesday, June 12, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Monday, July 30, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Monday, August 13, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Tuesday, August 14, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Wednesday, August 15, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Monday, August 27, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
Wednesday, August 29, 2007 at 7:30 PM 
 
The special meeting will be held in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall. 

 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\06.04.07 - Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-04



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

May 25, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Gertrude Paraskevin, IT Director 
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver – Digital Recording of Sanitary Sewer Inspections  
 
Background 
 
 DPW currently utilizes a Pearpoint Camera Televising Inspection System for sanitary sewer pipe 

inspections.  On May 21, 2007, City Council approved the upgrade of this equipment. Resolution 
#2007-05-165.   

 As inspections are made, a stand-alone computer module processes the output, which is 
responsible for recording the video inspection to VHS cassette tape.   

 Due to changes in video technology, the VHS based system has become obsolete and the City is 
seeking to capture inspections using digital video technology. 

 A digital based system provides many benefits over a VHS based system, including and not 
limited to: considerable speed advantages for reviewing and accessing inspection footage; on 
demand accessibility to DPW and Engineering staff; secure archiving infrastructure; reduced 
storage space requirements; and provides for a more robust inspection history. 

 The digital inspections also allow for direct interface into the City’s asset management software 
and GIS systems providing direct assess to all City employees. 

 The implementation of a digital system requires purchase of additional hardware and software as 
outlined in Appendix A.  The hardware is available via current contracts.  Informal quotes for the 
software were received from Pearpoint Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, and Jack Doheny Supplies, 
of Northville, MI; the only two authorized sales representatives for the Michigan area. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Capital Fund for computer equipment, account 

#535.7980.020  
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-05



Page 2 of 3 

 
May 25, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Digital format expands the electronic function and allows for more efficient use of time when 

accessing inspection information.  It also provides the ability to interface and manage the data in 
other systems. (Goal II) 

 Enhance the flow of communication internally by providing easy access to inspection information 
to City employees. (Goal IV) 

 
Options 
 
 City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and authorization to purchase 

the proprietary Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection software from Pearpoint Inc. of Thousand 
Palms CA, for an estimated total cost of $19,700.00 with a yearly software maintenance fee of 
$1,900.00.  Pearpoint Inc. is the recommended vendor since the City has established a 
relationship with them for the purchase of the camera equipment upgrade.  
 

 In addition, City management is requesting authorization to purchase necessary hardware from 
Hewlett Packard and GTSI for an estimated total cost of $8,466.00 utilizing approved purchasing 
procedures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 May 25, 2007 
APPENDIX A 

 
Project Costs 

 
Software 

 
 Pearpoint Inc. Jack Doheny 

FlexiData Software $8,400 $8,400 
DVS Licensing   4,500   4,500 

3 Days of on Site 
Training 

  4,900   4,900 

Support   1,900   1,900 
TOTAL $19,700 $19,700 

 
 

Hardware 
 

 Vendor Cost 
HP Proliant Server for 

digital storage 
Hewlett Packard 

(REMC) 
$8,016 

Monitor GTSI     250 
DVD Encoder GTSI     100 

UPS GTSI     100 
TOTAL  $8,466 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
May 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver - Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment 
 
Background 

• Metropolitan Uniform Company supplies initial issue police uniforms and equipment for newly 
hired Police Department uniformed employees. 

 
• On March 21, 2005, the City of Troy awarded a two-year contract to the lowest bidder meeting 

specifications, Metropolitan Uniform Company, 438 Macomb St., Detroit, MI  48226-2383 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,620.00 per employee, with an option to renew for two (2) one-year 
periods (Resolution #2005-03-123-E11).  The contract estimates ten (10) new officers each 
year. 

 
• Mr. David Silverstein of Metropolitan Uniform Company has agreed to keep prices at their 

original bid amount from 2005. 
 

• The Police Department contacted the Harwood Uniform Company on April 19, the only other 
bidder to meet specifications in 2005 to conduct a market survey.  Mr. Ron Clark reported that 
very few things have gone down in price since he bid on the contract in February, 2005.  
Approximately 50% of the items he sells have held the same price.  However, many items 
have increased in price from 2%-5%, especially anything petroleum based, such as polyester 
fabric. 

 
• Since the contract expired March 21, 2007, the options expired as well and cannot be 

exercised.  However, due to a favorable market survey conducted by the Police department, 
no benefit would be derived from soliciting new bids.  Therefore, staff is requesting formal 
bidding procedures be waived.  

 
Financial Considerations 

• Funds are available for the purchase of initial issue uniforms and equipment in the Police 
Department Uniform Patrol Clothing Allowance Account #315.7768. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-06



Page 2 of 2 

May 25, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment 
 
 
Legal Considerations 

• The police uniforms and equipment were competitively bid and vendors were given an 
opportunity to respond with their level of interest in 2005. 

 
• Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal 

bids. 
 
Policy Considerations 

• The uniforms and equipment bid in 2005 are mandatory items for newly hired Police 
Department uniformed employees. (Goal 1) 

 
Options 

• City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and authorization to 
establish a new contract with Metropolitan Uniform Company for one year to supply initial issue 
police uniforms and equipment under the same prices, terms and conditions as detailed on the 
attached bid tabulation for ITB-COT 05-02 to expire June 30, 2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – WaiverPoliceUniform Initial Issue.doc 







CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-02
Opening Date -- 2/25/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of  3
Date Prepared -- 3/7/05 POLICE UNIFORMS - (INITIAL ISSUE)

DMS
VENDOR NAME: * METROPOLITAN HARWOOD SAFETY &

UNIFORM CO UNIFORMS SECURITY
EST INTERNATIONAL

ITEM QTY (EA) DESCRIPTION  PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA
1. 20 Navy Blue Ties

Dark Navy, 75% polyester, 25% wool, 2.99$               3.00$                3.25$               
Mfr: Broome   

  
2. 40 Shirts (Long Sleeve) w/Patches Horace Small  

Dark Navy, 65% Dacron  35% Rayon 44.99$             46.50$              39.00$             
Mfr: Flying Cross   

3. 40 Shirts (Short Sleeve) w/Patches Horace Small
Dark Navy, 65% Dacron  35% Rayon 39.99$             43.50$              34.00$              
Mfr: Flying Cross   

4. 30 Duty Uniform Pants Horace Small
55% Dacron, 45% worsted wool $78.50 / $59.99 67.00$              44.00$             
Mfr: Fecheimer   

Rocky  
5. 10 Pair of smooth toe oxford Shoes 59.99$             65.00$              44.00$             

6. 10 Blauer Winter Duty Jacket
Navy blue, hip length 199.99$           225.00$            140.00$            
Mfr:  Blauer

Blackinton
7. 20 Silver Name Bars - Shirt 3.99$               5.00$                6.50$                

Blackinton  
8. 10 Sliver Name Bars - Jacket 3.99$               5.00$                13.25$             

Blackinton
9. 10 Police Insignia Tie Bar 4.99$               5.00$                20.00$             

10. 10 Fatigue Pants Atlanco  
Dark Navy blue - tactical twill fabric 39.99$             46.00$              50.00$              
Mfr: Elbeco   

11. 10 Fatigue Shirt w/Patches Atlanco  
Mfr: Elbeco 35.99$             35.00$              68.00$             

12. 10 Garrison Hat w/tubular plastic grommet   
Navy Blue, slouch style, round top 29.99$             49.90$              50.00$             
Mfr: Keystone   

13. 10 Raincoat, Black/Orange reversible Neese  
Mfr: Rainfair 48.99$             45.00$              68.00$              

  
14. 10 Raincover for Garrison Hat Neese  

Mfr: Rainfair 6.25$               6.00$                4.75$               

15. 10 Velcro Garrison Belt   
Mfr:  Bianchi    Style: B8V 16.99$             29.95$              45.00$              

16. 10 Woodland Camo Fatigue Pants Propper
(Academy Recruits Only) 19.99$             25.00$              27.00$             

New Port Harbor



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-02
Opening Date -- 2/25/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of  3
Date Prepared -- 3/7/05 POLICE UNIFORMS - (INITIAL ISSUE)

DMS
VENDOR NAME: * METROPOLITAN HARWOOD SAFETY &

UNIFORM CO UNIFORMS SECURITY
INTERNATIONAL

EST
ITEM QTY (EA) DESCRIPTION  PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA

   
17. 20 Tan Khaki Academ Uniforms Red Kap

(Academy Recruits Only) $21.99/set $22.00/set 33.75$             

18. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Ultra Gunbelt 31.00$             32.50$              31.00$              
  

19. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Pro-3 Holster 56.50$             65.00$              65.25$              

20. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Double Mag.Carrier 24.99$             25.00$              22.75$              

21. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Single Handcuff Case 16.99$             18.00$              17.25$             

22. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Key Holder  11.99$             11.75$              5.00$                
 

23. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage 21" ASP Baton holder 10.99$             12.00$              11.00$             

24. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Chemical Spray holder 15.99$             18.95$              16.50$             
    

25. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Latex Glove 13.99$             13.95$              13.75$              

26. 40 Uncle Mikes Mirage Keepers 1.99$               2.00$                7.50$               
   

27. 10 Uncle Mikes Mirage Pouch Style Radio Hld 29.99$             31.90$              30.25$              

28. 10 Aluminum Ticket Book Cover 15.99$             17.25$              18.50$             

29. 10 Aluminum Possebox Clipboard 20.99$             22.50$              22.00$              

30. 10 Streamlight Stinger Flashlight 79.99$             90.00$              87.25$             
  

31. 10 Leather Badge Wallet 20.99$             21.00$              21.25$             

32. 10 21" ASP Baton 58.99$             58.00$              58.25$             
   

33. 10 Set of Handcuffs (Chain or Hinge) 24.99$             22.75$              21.50$             

Flashlight/SAP Pockets $10.00
TAILORING CHARGES: $7.00 each $6.50 Included  

 
       ESTIMATED TOTAL COST PER OFFICER: 1,619.84$        1,701.40$         1,512.50$        
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR INITIAL ITEMS -- 16,198.40$      17,014.00$      DMS

INVENTORY  500,000.00$     100,000.00$     250,000.00$     
LOCATED AT  DETROIT WATERFORD Brentwood TN  
STORE LOCATION: W/I 25 Miles of Troy  22.5 Miles YES n/a

 
TERMS Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30

Tappering of Shirts



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-02
Opening Date -- 2/25/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of  3
Date Prepared -- 3/7/05 POLICE UNIFORMS - (INITIAL ISSUE)

DMS
VENDOR NAME: * METROPOLITAN HARWOOD SAFETY &

UNIFORM CO UNIFORMS SECURITY
INTERNATIONAL

WARRANTY Manufacturers 100% 12 Months

EXCEPTIONS NONE BLANK Product Specification
Substitutions

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES YES YES

NO BIDS:
 The Glove Store * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
 US Cavalry

DMS:
  Michigan State Industries  and CMP Distributors, Inc
   Reason:  Companies did not bid a majority of the contract as required.
  Safety & Security International
   Reason: Many items not as specified and no store location within 25 miles of Troy for item pick-up.

ATTEST:
 Lt Michael Lyczkowski
 Cheryl Morrell _____________________________
 Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G:/ITB-COT 05-02 Police Uniforms - Initial Issue



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: May 30, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Requested Salary Increase  
 

 
At my request, the Troy City Council conducted my annual performance evaluation in a 
closed session on May 21, 2007.  Since my last salary increase dates back to January 1, 
2006, I am requesting a 3% salary increase, effective January 1, 2007.  This request 
takes into account the budget constraints currently facing the City of Troy.    A proposed 
resolution is included for your review.     

 
In support of my requested salary increase, I have attached the 2007-2008 City 
Attorney’s Office budget documents, which detail accomplishments during this past year.  
I have also included my biographical information, as set forth below.    

 
  

Biographical Information  
 

Lori Grigg Bluhm is the City Attorney for the City of Troy.  She received her B.A. from 
Albion College in 1989, and her J.D. in 1992 from Wayne State University.  She is one of 
approximately 50 persons who have received the prestigious designation as a Local 
Government Fellow from the International Municipal Lawyer’s Association (2004).  In 
2004, she was recognized as a Crain’s Detroit Business 40 Under 40, which identifies 
persons who achieved success in business before turning 40 years of age (2004).   
Martindale-Hubbell has repeatedly awarded her with a peer review AV rating, which 
signifies that she is a lawyer with “very high to preeminent legal ability”, and also that 
she  “demonstrate(s) the highest professional and ethical standards.”   

 
She currently serves as Chair of the Public Corporation Section of the State Bar of 
Michigan, and is a board member of the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys, as 
well as the Michigan Municipal League Legal Defense Fund.  She serves as vice chair of 
the Michigan Municipal League’s Land Use Committee.  She is a past chair of the 
Oakland County Bar Association’s Municipal Law Committee and the Public Service 
Committee.  She is also involved in several other professional organizations, such as the 
International Municipal Lawyers’ Association, American Bar Association State and Local 
Government Law Section, State Bar of Michigan Real Property Law Section, Women 
Lawyers’ Association of Michigan, and past chair of By-laws Committee for Inforum (A 
Professional Women’s Alliance).  She also is a past president (2005-2006) of the Troy 
Kiwanis Club.  She has been a frequent presenter and writer on municipal law issues.  
She practices municipal law exclusively, representing her sole client, the City of Troy.   

  
  
  

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



-2- 

FFuunnccttiioonnaall  OOrrggaanniizzaattiioonnaall  CChhaarrtt  
 
 

  
AAddmmiinniissttrraattiioonn  
 
 Prepares and administers department 

budget 
 Liaison with local, federal, or state 

agencies, associations and groups 
 Supervises outside retained counsel 
 Liaison with other City departments 
 Coordinates staff development 
 Coordinates technological development 
 Coordinates and evaluates activities of 

staff 
 
AAddvviissiinngg  CCiittyy  OOffffiicciiaallss  
 
 Consult and provide counsel and legal 

advice and updates for City Council  
 Regularly attend meetings of City Council, 

Boards and Commissions, and 
Management  

 Provides legal advice and updates for 
City Boards and Commissions 

 Provides legal advice and updates for 
City Management, department directors 
and employees 

 Monitors compliance with Open Meetings 
Act and Freedom of Information Act 

 Provide information to the general public, 
as well as other local, state and federal 
governmental agencies and municipal 
government associations.  

 Sponsors Law Day activities 

CCiittyy  aass  PPllaaiinnttiiffff  
 
 Eminent Domain/ Condemnation cases 
 Invoice collection 
 Nuisance abatement 
 Secretary of State drivers license 

revocation hearings 
 Prepares administrative search warrants  
 Represents City at administrative hearings, 

including but not limited to environmental 
law hearings  

 
DDeeffeennssee  ooff  tthhee  CCiittyy  
 
 Defends City to uphold zoning and 

planning decisions 
 Defends City, its officials, and volunteers 

when sued for the performance of 
governmental functions 

 Defends City and officials in personal injury 
cases 

 Defends City and officials in civil rights 
matters 

 Defends City Assessor’s value 
determinations 

 
 



 

-90- 

FFuunnccttiioonnaall  OOrrggaanniizzaattiioonnaall  CChhaarrtt,,  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 
 
  
  
OOrrddiinnaannccee  PPrroosseeccuuttiioonnss  
 
 Misdemeanor ordinance violations  
 Drug and alcohol enforcement 
 Building and zoning ordinance 

enforcement 
 Domestic abuse  
 Retail fraud (shoplifting) 
 Traffic 
 Disorderly conduct 
 Assault and battery  
 Municipal civil infractions 
 Appeals of criminal convictions  
 Appeals of civil infractions 

 

OOtthheerr  AAccttiivviittiieess  
 
 Negotiate or assist in negotiation of 

contracts, agreements, bonds, and real 
estate transactions as needed.   

 Research, draft, and/or review all 
ordinances, policies, and legal 
documents.   

 Recommends necessary revisions of the 
Charter and Code 

 Receives citizen complaints, mediates 
disputes and/or issues criminal 
misdemeanor warrants 

 Provides training regarding the law and 
legal procedures for employees and 
officials 

 Prepares numerous agenda items for City 
Council consideration 

 Assists citizens on a daily basis by 
answering inquiries and providing 
appropriate referrals when warranted 

 Responds to media inquiries 



 

-91- 

DDEEPPAARRTTMMEENNTT  AATT  AA  GGLLAANNCCEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Funding  
Level  
Summary 

 
2004/05 
Actual 

 
2005/06 
Actual 

Estimated 
2006/07 
Budget 

 
2006/07 
Budget 

 
2007/08 
Budget 

 
% of 

Change 
 

C
$1,111,532 $1,041,226 $1,170,880 $1,169,090 $1,210,140 3.5%

Total Department $1,111,532 $1,041,226 $1,170,880 $1,169,090 $1,210,140 3.5%
 
Personal Services $827,139 $822,299 $889,530 $868,920 $922,590 6.2%
Supplies 7,488 8,896 8,100 7,100 8,100 14.1%
Other Services/Charges 276,905 210,031 273,250 293,070 279,450 -4.7%
Total Department $1,111,532 $1,041,226 $1,170,880 $1,169,090 $1,210,140 3.5%
 
 
 

Personnel  
Summary 

 
2004/05 

 
2005/06 

 
2006/07 

 
2007/08 

 Full- 
Time 

Part- 
Time 

Full- 
Time 

Part- 
Time 

Full- 
Time 

Part- 
Time 

Full- 
Time 

Part- 
Time 

City Attorney’s Office 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 

Total Department 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 
 



CCiittyy  AAttttoorrnneeyy’’ss  OOffffiiccee  
22000077//0088  BBuuddggeett  

KKeeyy  DDeeppaarrttmmeennttaall  TTrreennddss  
  

District Court Case Load

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Formal Citizen Complaints of 
Criminal Activities

0

50

100

150

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Collection Efforts: Obligations 
Owed to the City

$50,000
$55,000

$60,000
$65,000

$70,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Number of Civil Court 
Appearances

0

50

100

150

200

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

  
  
  
  
  

-92- 
Year    Appearances
 
2002        5,953 
2003        4,910 
2004        6,484 
2005        6,475 
2006              6,531 
  

  
  
  Year        Amount

 
2002     $62,529.74 
2003     $60,338.76 
2004     $58,351.87 
2005    $68,814.74 
2006      $64,640.58 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  Year   Number

 
2002               61 
2003               59 
2004               47 
2005               42 
2006  104 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Year       Number
 
2002         155 
2003         161 
2004            97 
2005         109 
2006  114 

  
  
  
  
  
  

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box



 

-93- 

KKeeyy  DDeeppaarrttmmeennttaall  TTrreennddss,,  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 
 
 
 

Warrants Issued

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

City Council Agenda Items

0

50

100

150

200

2003 2004 2005 2006

Year       Number
 
2003         125 
2004           88 
2005         103 
2006  171 

Year   Number
 
2002             28 
2003             33 
2004             43 
2005             98 
2006            126 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
CCiivviill  LLiittiiggaattiioonn  CCaasseess  
 

Type 
Cases Closed 

in 2006 
Case Files 

Opened in 2006 
Cases Still 

Pending 
Zoning 5 1 2 
Eminent Domain 0 0 1 
Tax 0 0 0 
Civil Rights 0 1 1 
Personal Injury and Damage 2 1 1 
Appeals 1 3 3 
Miscellaneous 5 4 4 
Total 13 10 12 



 

-94- 

MMiissssiioonn  aanndd  SSeerrvviiccee  SSttaatteemmeennttss
  

MMiissssiioonn  SSttaatteemmeenntt      

The mission of the City Attorney’s Office is 
to provide effective and efficient legal 
services to City Council, City Management 
and the various boards and committees of 
the City.   

SSeerrvviiccee  SSttaatteemmeenntt      

The Troy City Attorney’s Office serves as a 
center for legal services, information and 
education for the officials, employees and 
volunteers of the City.  The attorneys 
represent the City’s interest in the United 
States Supreme Court, U.S. 6th Circuit Court 
of Appeals, U.S. District Courts, Michigan 
Supreme Court, Michigan Court of Appeals, 
State Circuit Court, District Courts, Michigan 
Tax Tribunal, Federal Communications 
Commission, Secretary of State 
Administrative Hearings, Arbitrations, and 
various other agencies and boards.  

The City Attorney’s Office is committed to 
providing quality legal services and 
information to the officials, staff and 
volunteers of the City.  Therefore, the entire 
professional legal staff emphasizes 
continuing education, training, and 
proficiency.  The department also endeavors 
to be technologically and professionally 
competitive with law firms in the state. 
The City Attorney’s Office prepares and/or 
reviews all ordinances, contracts, bonds and 
other written instruments that obligate the 
City, and provides opinions as to their 
legality.   

 

In addition, the Office is responsible for 
prosecution of all ordinance violations and 
traffic matters. Changes or recent 
developments in laws affecting the City are 
monitored by the City Attorney’s Office, and 
presented to City Council, Management, and 
the boards and committees.  The City 
Attorney’s Office provides information to the 
public and government officials regarding 
matters that directly relate to the City and 
procedures in dealing with the City.  The 
City Attorney’s Office performs other duties 
as prescribed by the Charter or by City 
Council, which include continuing dialogue 
with media resources and serving as a 
liaison to other governmental entities. 

The City Attorney’s Office does not provide 
private legal advice, but serves as a referral 
source for available legal services. 

 
DDiidd  YYoouu  KKnnooww??  
 
 The City has implemented a municipal 

civil infractions process, which de-
criminalizes some of the zoning and 
building department cases that were 
previously charged as misdemeanors.  
The City represents “the People of the 
City” in each contested case. 

 
 The City Attorney’s Office annually plans 

a Law Day Program, in recognition of 
Law Day on May 1 of each year.  In 
2006, the City Attorney’s Office 
sponsored an essay contest for students 
residing in Troy.  Law Day programs are 
designed to help people understand how 
law keeps us free and how our legal 
system strives to achieve justice.   



 

-81- 

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  OObbjjeeccttiivveess 
 

 
Education of Officials   ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  11,,33,,  44))  
 
 Provide training for all newly elected and appointed municipal officials that 

outlines the legal responsibilities of office and incorporates relevant provisions 
of local, state, and federal law and also the Troy Charter and any other 
relevant documents 

 Alert elected, appointed, and administrative officials and employees to 
changes in state or federal law that affect the City  

 Make legal recommendations to elected, appointed, and administrative 
officials, and provide advice on relevant legal issues that would affect the City   

 Attend meetings of boards and commissions and provide legal assistance 
when necessary 

 
Charter & Code Updates  ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  22,,  33,,  44,,  88,,  1111,,  1122))  
 
 Continue the complete, multi-faceted review of current Troy Ordinances to 

ensure compliance with Troy’s Charter and state and federal law  
 Make recommendations to amend, revise, and re-format Troy Ordinance 

provisions to achieve uniformity and consistency and the removal of  “legalese” 
and unnecessary provisions   

 Research the viability and legality of requested amendments to the Troy 
Charter, and provide advice to City Council on any such request  

 At the request of City Council, draft proposed ballot language for proposed 
Charter Amendments 

 Prepare educational materials for Charter and/or Ordinance revision requests 
 Assist in drafting new proposed form based zoning regulations 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

 
Internal Legal Proficiency  ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  11,,  33,,  44,,  66))  
 
 Continue to enhance the computerized legal research system, and participate 

in training to be more productive and efficient in legal research 
 Continue to maximize electronic usage, and minimize paper usage, working 

towards a paperless system of communication  
 Expand use of electronic court filing systems whenever possible, and conduct 

necessary training to implement the process 
 Continue to pursue excellence in the legal profession through collaboration, 

training, and networking 
 Use more computer generated exhibits in civil litigation and/or criminal 

prosecution 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  OObbjjeeccttiivveess,,  ccoonnttiinnuueedd 
 
 
 
 

Public Education ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  11,,  22,,  33,,  44,,  66,,  77,,  1111))  
 
 Conduct programs associated with improving the public’s understanding of the 

justice system by sponsoring Law Day activities and displays at City Hall, the 
Library, and the Museum 

 Educate Troy citizens about the legal process through participation in the 
Citizen’s Academy, Citizen’s Police Academy, and other community forums or 
events  

 Enhance web site to provide referral sources and questions to serve as a 
reference for the general public 

  
Litigation  ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  33,,  44,,  77,,  88,,  99))    
 
 Continue zealous representation of the people of the City of Troy in matters 

before the 52-4 Judicial District Court, including aggressive prosecution in 
criminal misdemeanor offenses and other traffic matters  

 Continue aggressive defense of lawsuits brought against the City, using 
discovery, motions for summary disposition and trial when necessary to 
minimize liability against the City and to discourage others from suing the City 
of Troy 

 Prioritize condemnation cases to facilitate capital projects, and aggressively 
litigate cases to settlement when in the best interest of the City, or through trial 
when the demands of a property owner are unreasonable  

 Effectively utilize the municipal civil infraction process to encourage 
compliance with Troy ordinances for property maintenance   

 Initiate lawsuits or appeals when in the best interest of the City  

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

  
Administrative Assistance  ((OObbjjeeccttiivvee  33,,  44,,  66,,  77,,  88,,  1111))      
 
 Continue to provide liability and witness training to new City employees  
 Participate in document imaging program for preservation, retention, and 

retrieval of City records, and insure legal compliance  
 Provide leadership and legal support for City Management exploration of new 

alternatives for municipal operations  
 Continue to provide assistance in legal education to City employees, 

professional entities and other municipal organizations 
 To assist in the implementation of the Big Beaver Corridor Study 

 

-82- 



 

 
See KKeeyy  DDeeppaarrttmmeennttaall  TTrreennddss on Pages 92 and 93 for performance 
indicators. 

-83- 



 

OOrrggaanniizzaattiioonnaall  CChhaarrtt  
  

 
 
 
                                        

Assistant City Attorney Attorney II
(3)

Clerk/Typist
[Part-Time]
Legal Assistant

Legal Assistant II Legal Secretary

City Attorney

CITY COUNCIL

 
 
 
  

STAFF 
Summary 

Approved 
2005/06 

Approved 
2006/07 

Recommended
2007/08 

City Attorney 1 1 1 
Assistant City Attorney 1 1 1 
Attorney II 3 3 3 
Clerk/Typist (Part-Time) 1 1 1 
Legal Assistant II 0 0 1 
Legal Assistant 2 2 1 
Legal Secretary 1 1 1 
Total Department  9 9 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-84- 



 

SSuummmmaarryy  ooff  BBuuddggeett  CChhaannggeess  
 

 
 
SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  NNootteess  ––  22000077//0088  BBuuddggeett  CCoommppaarreedd  ttoo  22000066//0077BBuuddggeett  
 
The increased reliance on computerized legal research and the increasing ability to 
effectively use computer generated exhibits for civil litigation, as well as in criminal 
prosecution led to the acquisition of an additional lap top computer, increasing the 
internal CCoommppuutteerr  SSeerrvviicceess budget from the past year.  This increase was offset by a 
reduction in the BBooookkss  aanndd  MMaaggaazziinneess  account. 
 
There have been some increases in PPeerrssoonnaall  SSeerrvviicceess due to staffing changes this 
past year.    
 
OOppeerraattiinngg  BBuuddggeett  HHiissttoorryy

 

$8
15

,4
49

$6
80

,3
26

$8
88

,9
62

$9
55

,8
05

$9
02

,4
45

$1
,0

14
,1

59

$1
,0

80
,1

26

$1
,1

11
,5

32

$1
,0

41
,2

26

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

 
 

  
 

-85- 



 1

 
 
 
DATE: May 22, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII – Adult Business Uses 
 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the June 18, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the May 1, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 207.   
 
• Presently, adult use businesses are not regulated by the Zoning Ordinance.  The attached 

map indicates all property currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M and O-S-C that 
could be used for adult business uses under current Zoning Ordinance provisions. 

     
• Regulating adult use businesses is complicated by the fact that courts have consistently 

held that such businesses are engaged in expressive conduct and therefore protected by 
the First Amendment.  Court decisions have determined that communities can regulate 
these uses based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of these uses.  
Specifically, secondary effects include higher crime rates and lower property values. 

 
• A number of communities in the United States have completed studies that document the 

secondary effects of sexually oriented businesses.  The National Law Center for Children 
and Families prepared summaries of reports prepared by eleven communities in the 
United States (see attached). 

 
• The draft text amendment defines the types of uses and activities that are considered adult 

use businesses.  These uses would be permitted subject to special use approval in the B-3 
district.  The standards limit potential sites to those parcels located at least 1000 feet to 
another adult use business and at least 500 feet from a church, school or childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes.  
There are 28 parcels totaling approximately 118.49 acres available to be used for adult 
business uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
G-01a



 2

• This item is tie-barred with the proposed new Chapter 76, Adult Use Business License, of 
the Code of the City of Troy. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
• No action is required until the public hearing on June 18, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Draft ZOTA 207. 
2. Letter prepared by L. Brooks Patterson, Oakland County Executive, February 18, 2003. 
3. Memo prepared by City Attorneys Office. 
4. Summary of reports prepared by the National Law Center for Children and Families. 
5. Map: All parcels currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M & O-S-C. 
6. Map: All B-3 zoned parcels in Troy. 
7. Map: B-3 zoned parcels not excluded by the proposed ordinance. 
8. Minutes from May 1, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\Announce CC Public Hearing 06 04 07.doc 



 1

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the Code of the 
City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV and Article XXII of Chapter 39 
Article IV – “Definitions” and Article XXII – “B-3 General Business District” of Chapter 39 of the Code 
of the City of Troy are hereby amended to provide definitions and to regulate adult use businesses by 
special use approval in the B-3 General Business subject to specific conditions and requirements. 
 
Article IV is amended by the addition of the following new sections: 

 
ARTICLE IV – DEFINITIONS 

 
04.20.04A ADULT ARCADE:  An establishment where, for any form of consideration, one or more 

still or motion picture projectors, slide projectors, compact discs or similar machines, or 
other image producing machines, (whether coin-operated, slug-operated or 
electronically, electrically, internet or mechanically controlled), for viewing by five (5) or 
fewer persons each, are used to show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact 
discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 
depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or “ specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04B  ADULT BOOK STORE, ADULT NOVELTY OR RETAIL STORE OR ADULT VIDEO 

STORE:  
 

1. An establishment which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers any one 
or more of the following for sale, rental, or viewing at the site, for any form of 
consideration: 

 
a. Books, computer diskettes, tapes or hard drives, magazines, periodicals or 

other printed material, films, motion picture, video cassettes or video 
reproduction, slides or other visual representations which depict or describe 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”; and/or 

 



 2

b. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in 
connection with “specified sexual activities”; and/or 

 
c. Items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia depicting, displaying, advertising 

or packaged as “specified sexual activities” or depicting or describing  
“specified anatomical areas”. 

 
2. For purposes of this section, “principal business purpose” means: 
 

a. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its stock-in-trade or 
interior floor space; or 

 
b. The receipt of a significant or substantial portion of its revenues from; or 

 
c. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its advertising 

expenditures to the promotion of the sale, rental or viewing, of books, 
magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, film, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other visual 
representations, items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia which are 
characterized by the depiction, description display, advertising or packaging 
of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”.  

 
3. An establishment may have other principal business purposes that do not involve 

the offering for sale, rental or viewing of materials depicting or describing 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”, and still be 
categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store or adult video 
store.  Such other business purposes will not serve to exempt such 
establishment from being categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty store 
or adult video store, so long as the establishment falls within the definition of an 
adult bookstore, adult novelty store or adult video store as set forth above. 

 
04.20.04C ADULT CABARET:  A nightclub, club, bar, restaurant or similar commercial 

establishment which features one or more of the following:  
 

1. Person(s) who appears nude or in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; 
 

2. Live performances which are characterized by the exposure of “specified 
anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities”; 

 
3. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other 

photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or 
description of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04D ADULT MOTEL:  A motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which:  

 
1. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration and provides 

patrons with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are 
characterized by the depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or 



 3

“specified anatomical areas” and which advertises the availability of this adult 
type of material by means of a sign, visible from the public right of way, or by 
means of any off-premises advertising, including but not limited to newspapers, 
magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television; and/or 

 
2. Permits patrons to be filmed or photographed performing sexually explicit 

activities or displaying “specified anatomical areas”, including transmission over 
the World Wide Web; and/or 

 
3. Offers a sleeping room for rent for intervals of time less than ten (10) hours; 

and/or 
 

4. Allows a tenant or occupant to subrent a sleeping room for intervals of less than 
ten (10) hours. 

 
04.20.04E ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER:  A commercial establishment where films, 

motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides of  “specified sexual activities” or 
depictions or descriptions of “specified anatomical areas” are regularly shown for any 
form of consideration. 

 
04.20.04F ADULT THEATER:  A theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial 

establishment which, for any form or consideration, regularly features persons who 
appear in a state of nudity or live performances which are characterized by exposure of 
“specified anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities.”  This definition does not 
include a theater which features occasional live nude performances with serious literary, 
artistic, or political value and that have no adverse secondary effects. 

 
04.20.04G ADULT USE BUSINESS:  An adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store, 

adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, 
escort agency, nude modeling studio and/or a sexual encounter establishments and any 
business determined by the Planning Director to be an adult use, due to the activities of 
the business which involve characteristics of adult uses, such as nudity, semi-nudity, 
exposure of “specified anatomical areas” and/or “specified sexual activities”.  The 
definition of “adult use business” shall not include an establishment where a medical 
practitioner, psychologist, psychiatrist or similar professional person licensed by the 
State engages in medically approved and recognized sexual therapy. 

 
04.20.46A EMPLOYEE:  A person who works or performs in and/or for an adult use business, 

regardless of whether or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation 
by the operator of said business. 

 
04.20.46B ENTERTAINER:  A person who performs some type of activity or pose with the intent of 

allowing others to witness that activity or pose. 
 
04.20.46C ENTERTAINMENT:  A performance of some type of activity, including, but not limited 

to, singing, dancing, acting, mime, comedy, recitations, demonstrations, magic tricks, 
modeling, posing, exhibition, with or without inanimate objects or animals, with the intent 
of allowing others to witness that activity in live or reproduced format. 



 4

04.20.50 ESCORT:  A person who, for consideration in any form, agrees or offers to act as a 
companion, guide, or date for another person, (or who agrees to privately perform as an 
entertainer, including but not limited to, the modeling of lingerie, the removal of clothing, 
and the performance of a dance or skit.   Under this definition, “privately” shall mean a 
performance for an individual and, that individuals guests. 

 
04.20.50A ESCORT AGENCY:  A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish or advertises 

the furnishing of escorts as one of its primary business purposes, for a fee, tip or any 
other form of consideration. 

 
04.20.54 ESTABLISHMENT:  In regard to an adult use business, means and includes any of the 

following: 
 

1. The opening or commencement of any such business as a new business; 
 

2. The conversion of an existing business, whether or not an adult use business, to 
any adult use business; 

 
3. The addition of any adult use business activities to any other existing adult use 

business; or 
 

4. The relocation of an adult use business. 
 

04.20.76 LICENSEE: The individual listed as an applicant on the application for an adult use 
business license, or a person in whose name a license to operate an adult use business 
has been issued.  

 
04.20.76A LICENSING OFFICER: The Clerk of the City of Troy or his/her designee. 
 
04.20.104 MANAGER:  An operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by an adult use 

business to act as a manager or supervisor of employees, or is otherwise responsible 
for the operation of the adult use business. 

 
04.20.114A NUDE MODELING STUDIO:  Any place where a person appears in a state of nudity or 

displays “specified anatomical areas”, and is provided money or any form of 
consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed or 
similarly depicted by other persons. This includes modeling studios that provide for 
nude modeling on an occasional basis, but it does not include modeling studio whose 
primary function is to provide art classes as part of a college, university or educational 
institution and which is certified by the State of Michigan. 

 
04.20.114B NUDITY OR STATE OF NUDITY:  
 

1. The exposure of human male or female genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or 
the areola or nipple of the female breast; and/or 

 
2. A state of dress which fails to opaquely and fully cover human male or female 

genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or the areola or nipple of the female breast. 



 5

04.20.121A OPERATOR:  Includes the owner, licensee, manager, or person in charge of any 
premises. 

 
04.20.122A PEEP BOOTH:  An adult motion picture theater with a viewing room or cubical of less 

than one hundred fifty (150) square feet of floor space. 
 
04.20.124A PERSON:  An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability 

company, association or other entity. 
 
04.20.127A PREMISES OR LICENSED PREMISES:  Any premises that requires an adult use 

license and that is classified as an adult use business. 
 
04.20.127B PRINCIPAL OWNER:  Any person owning, directly or beneficially: a) ten percent (10%) 

or more of a corporation’s equity securities; b) ten percent (10%) or more of the 
membership interests in a limited liability company; or c) in the case of any other entity, 
ten percent (10%) or more of the ownership interests in the entity. 

 
04.20.127C PRIVATE ROOM:  A room in a hotel/motel that is not a peep booth, has a bed, a 

bathtub, a shower, a toilet and/or a sink in the room or adjacent room, and is used 
primarily for lodging. 

 
04.20.128A SEMI-NUDE:  A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic 

region, and areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by 
supporting straps or devices. 

 
04.20.130A SEXUAL ENCOUNTER ESTABLISHMENT:  A business or commercial establishment 

that as one of its primary business purposes, offers a place where two (2) or more 
persons may congregate, associate, or consort for the purpose of “specified sexual 
activities” or the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or any activities when one or 
more or the persons is in a state of nudity or semi-nudity and/or permits patrons to 
display or be filmed or photographed performing “sexually explicit activities” or 
displaying “specified anatomical areas” for recording or transmission over the World 
Wide Web or any other media, for any form of consideration.  A hotel/motel will not be 
classified as a sexual encounter establishment, by virtue of the fact that it offers private 
rooms for rent. 

 
04.20.132A SPECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREAS: 
 

1. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the 
areola; and/or 

 
2. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and 

opaquely covered. 
 
04.20.132B SPECIFIED CRIMINAL ACTS:  Sexual crimes against children, sexual abuse, criminal 

sexual conduct, rape, crimes classified as sexual crimes by the State of Michigan or any 
other state, or crimes connected with another adult use business, including but not 
limited to, the distribution of obscenity, prostitution and/or pandering. 



 6

04.20.132C SIGNIFICANT OR SUBSTANTIAL PORTION:  Means thirty (30) percent or more of the 
term modified by such phrase.  

 
04.20.133C SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES: 
 

1. The fondling or other intentional touching of human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts: and/or 

 
2. Sex acts, actual or simulated, including but not limited to, intercourse, oral 

copulation or sodomy; and/or 
 

3. Masturbation, actual or simulated; and/or 
 

4. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, arousal or tumescence; and/or 
 

5. Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set forth 
in subsections (1) through (4) of this definition. 

 
04.20.146 TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OR CONTROL OF AN ADULT USE BUSINESS:   

 
1. The sale, lease or sublease of the business; and/or 

 
2. The transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest in the business, 

whether by sale, exchange or similar means; and/or 
 

3. The establishment of a trust, management arrangement, gift or other similar legal 
device which transfers ownership or control of the business, except for transfer 
by bequest or other operation of law upon the death of a person possessing the 
ownership or control. 

 
 
Article XXII is amended by the addition of the following new section: 
 
 

ARTICLE XXII – GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

22.30.08 Adult use business, as defined in this section, shall be permitted subject to the 
conditions set out herein: 

 
A) The purpose and intent of this section is to regulate adult use businesses, to 

promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the City, 
and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious 
location and concentration of adult use businesses within the City, thereby 
reducing or eliminating the adverse secondary effects from such adult use 
businesses.  The provisions of this section have neither the purpose nor effect of 
imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any communicative 
materials, including adult materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this 
section to restrict or deny access by adults to adult materials protected by the 
Constitution of the United States or the Michigan Constitution, or to deny access 



 7

by the distributors and exhibitors of adult entertainment or adult use businesses 
to their intended market.  It is also not the intent nor effect of this section to 
condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

 
B) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business in 

any location in the City, except as provided in Troy’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 
39, Article XXII, Section 22.30.08 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
C) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business 

within five hundred feet (500’), measured from the nearest lot line to the nearest 
lot line on a straight-line basis, of any of the following: 

 
1. A church; 

 
2. A school or childcare facility; 

 
3. A public park (not including public trails); 

 
4. Any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 

 
D) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation of an adult use business 

within one thousand feet (1,000’) of another adult use business.  The distance 
between any such businesses shall be measured from the nearest lot line to the 
nearest lot line on a straight-line basis. 

 
E) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation or maintenance of more than 

one adult use business in the same building, structure or portion thereof. 
 

F) All off street parking areas and entry door areas of adult use businesses shall be 
illuminated from dusk until the closing time of the business with a lighting system 
which provides an average maintained horizontal illumination of one foot-candle 
of light on all parking surfaces and/or walkways.  This requirement level is to help 
ensure the personal safety of patrons and employees and to reduce the 
incidence of vandalism and other criminal conduct. 

G) The premises of all adult use businesses, except adult motion picture theaters, 
shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of sufficient intensity to 
illuminate every place where patrons are permitted, at an illumination level of not 
less than two (2) foot-candles of light, as measured at the floor level. 

H) Adult motion picture theaters shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of 
sufficient intensity to illuminate every place where patrons are permitted at an 
illumination level of not less than one foot-candle of light, as measure at the floor 
level. 

 
I) No person shall conduct an adult use business without first having obtained an 

annual adult use business license from the City. 



 8

J) No person(s) shall reside on or permit any other persons to reside on the 
premises of an adult use business. 

 
K) All adult use businesses shall be subject to the same requirements of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
 

L) An adult use business lawfully operating is not rendered a nonconforming use by 
the subsequent location of a church, school, childcare facility, public park, 
residential district, or a residential lot within five hundred feet (500’) of the adult 
use business.  However, if the adult use business ceases operation for a period 
of one hundred eighty (180) days or more, regardless of any intent to resume 
operation, it may not recommence operation in that location, unless it achieves 
conformity with the City of Troy Ordinances.  

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter 
instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting 
this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may 
be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\CC Public Hearing Draft 05 09 07.doc 

















































JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S R

O
C

H
E

S
TE

R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PROPERTY POTENTIALLY
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER EXISTING ORDINANCE

³ 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,0001,000
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED
B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M, & O-S-C



JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
SOUTH BLVD ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)

ALL PROPERTY CURRENTLY ZONED B-3

³ 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,0002,500
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PROPERTY CURRENTLY B-3 ZONED 



C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

JO
H

N
R

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

I75

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE

BIG BEAVER

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED B-3
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE - 500 FT.

³ 0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

PROPOSED STANDARDS:
THE PROPERTY IS ZONED B-3 AND
A MIN. OF 500 FT FROM:
  1) CHURCHES
  2) SCHOOLS AND CHILDCARE FACILITIES
  3) PUBLIC PARKS
  4) RESIDENTIALLY ZONED OR USED PARCELS
IN TROY OR ABUTTING COMMUNITY

NOTE:
PARCELS CONTAINING ANY PORTION OF B-3 ZONING 
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE B-3 PARCELS FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS MAP
  

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-26-2007

KEY
B-3 ZONED PARCELSPARCELS AVAILABLE UNDER
PROPOSED ORDINANCE



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – 
Proposed Article 22.30.08  Adult Business Uses 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to adult business uses.  He summarized the impacts of distance 
requirements of adult business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential 
purposes, ranging from 500 feet to 1,000 feet.   
 
Ms. Lancaster detailed the legal aspects of an adult business use text 
amendment in relation to the First Amendment.  She addressed court decisions 
based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of adult business 
uses, and what the courts look for when an ordinance is challenged.  Ms. 
Lancaster said courts recognize the need for a balance between the First 
Amendment and deleterious affects of an adult business use.  She said the 
bottom line is the Zoning Ordinance must be content-neutral, and the City cannot 
deny the First Amendment use or access to our City to have these uses.  The 
Legal Department recommends a distance requirement of 500 feet of adult 
business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the Legal Department and Planning Department served the City 
very well in their recommendations on adult business uses, and the need to have 
an ordinance in place.  It is recognized that adult business uses have a 
deleterious effect on surrounding properties.  Ms. Kerwin said that personally, as 
an advocate for youth, she could not support the 500-foot distance requirement 
from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he would favor a minimal of 600 feet from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or residential zoning.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the viewpoint of a judge, and questioned if anything in 
excess of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park, or 
residential zoning would stand up to a test in court.  He indicated the safest 
course to take would be to adopt an ordinance with the 500-foot distance, as 
recommended by the Legal Department.  Mr. Hutson said he would not support 
anything over 600 feet.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Troshynski said her concern is with the concentrations of adult business 
uses along Big Beaver, Maple and 14 Mile Roads.  She asked if there were other 
options that could be considered in that respect.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the uses cannot be zoned out of business, and the court 
wants an ordinance that is content-neutral.  She said the City could amend the 
ordinance to allow adult business uses in other zoning districts, but she is not 
sure that would help with the concentration aspect.  Ms. Lancaster said an open 
mind must be kept in terms of providing access for such a use.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would support the recommendation of the City Attorney’s 
office.  He said it is understood that the majority of residents do not want any 
adult business use in our City, but they cannot be prohibited.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-089 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To move the adoption of Proposed Resolution # PC-2007-05 
relating to Article 22.30.08, and that the motion should recognize when it is voted 
upon, that the written resolution is the one moved.   
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their 
very nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 
when several of them are concentrated under certain circumstances or when 
one (1) or more of them are located in near proximity to a residential zone, 
thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. Special 
regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will 
not contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  These controls are for the purpose of preventing a 
concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to prevent deterioration 
or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws.  
 
AND WHEREAS, in regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this 
ordinance to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
the City of Troy, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to 
prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult business uses within the 
City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose nor 
effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable 
access to any communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. 
Similarly, it is neither the intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny 
access by adults to sexually oriented materials protected by the First 
Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually 
oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

effect of this ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene 
material.  
 
AND WHEREAS, based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult 
business uses presented in reports made available to the Planning 
Commission, and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. 
Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary 
effects occurring in and around adult business uses, including, but not limited 
to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times 
Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne TX, Dallas TX, 
Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments 
are correlated with harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports 
are reasonably believed to be relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is 
seeking to abate and prevent in the future. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXII B-3 
GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, be approved as 
printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing Draft.  

 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in agreement with the motion with the exception that he 
would like to see a distance of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district, or any parcel used for residential 
purposes. 
 

 



campbellld
Text Box
G-02a







campbellld
Text Box
G-02b

















































PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final  June 5, 2006 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Monday, June 5, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Clerk Bartholomew called the meeting to order at 6:45 
PM. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT: Member Baughman 
  Member Shah 
  Member Tschirhart 
   
 ABSENT: Member Nelson 
   
 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, Services 
  Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

APPOINTMENT OF PERSONNEL BOARD CHAIRPERSON: 
PB-#2006-06-001 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT Member 
Tschirhart to serve as Chairperson. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
PB-2006-06-002 
Moved by Tschirhart 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of the Personnel 
Board meeting of Tuesday, June 8, 2004 as corrected and the minutes of Tuesday, 
December 20, 2005 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
OLD BUSINESS: None 

NEW BUSINESS: 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final  June 5, 2006 
 

-2- 

A.  Recommendations for Classification Plan and Pay Plan: 
 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director, advised the Board that Human Resources staff 
surveyed 4 surrounding communities to determine the average pay increase. The budgeted 
amount for increases was set at 3%. Staff recommends the following: 
 
 Range adjustment: 2% 
 Across-the-board salary increases: 2% (with satisfactory performance evaluation) 
 Merit (based on performance evaluation score): up to 1% 
 
PB-2006-06-003 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
for the Classification Plan and Pay Plan (FY 2006-2007) as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 

B. Recommended Changes in Prescription Drug Rider and Tuition 
Reimbursement Program: 

  
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director, advised the Board that management is proposing 
a change in Prescription Drug Riders. She reference the proposed Section XXVI distributed 
with the agenda packet. 
 
PB-2006-06-004 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, subsection 1), 
and in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVIII. Tuition Reimbursement, subsection 2), as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
C.  Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules to Reflect Appropriate Changes 
 in Benefit Package 
 
PB-2006-06-005 
Moved by Shah 
Seconded by Baughman 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final  June 5, 2006 
 

-3- 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the revisions in the Personnel 
Rules, to reflect the appropriate changes in the benefit package as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 
PB-2006-06-006 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Tschirhart 
 
RESOLVED, That there being nothing else to come before the Board, the meeting be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 

Absent: Nelson 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:12 PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Ronald Tschirhart, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007 
 
The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, January 23, 
2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:29 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 

Roger Kaniarz 
Kevin Lindsey 
Vera Milz  
Remedios Solarte 
Terry Navratil  
Brian Wattles 
Janice Chen, Student Rep. 
Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 

 
 
Resolution #HDC-2007-01-001 
Moved by Solarte  
Seconded by Lindsey 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 24, 2006 be approved as amended 
Yes: 7 ⎯Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Milz, Solarte, Wattles and Navratil  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

    
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Windows 
Turner Restorations delivered and installed the mutins for the cabin and window 
screens for the Print Shop in December 2006. 
 
Roofs 
The bid to replace the cedar shake roofs on the Log Cabin, Caswell shed, 
General Store (except the porch), and the Print Shop have been posted on the 
MITN site. A pre-bid meeting is scheduled January 25 and the bid opening is 
scheduled February 7.   
 
Electrical Repairs 
Shoreview Electric (the firm that installed new underground conduits and 
electrical lines between the Church, Parsonage and General Store) was hired to 
pull and replace the damaged neutral wire between the Church and General 
Store for $2,700. They found that the conduit and line were crushed in an area 
under the brick paver pathway between the Parsonage and Church. They were 

1 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01b



unable to pull the damaged wire. Temporary repairs were made to provide power 
to the church and the specifications for full repairs will be developed following a 
meeting between Shoreview and the City electrical inspector.  

 
Wagon Shop 
Loraine is contacting Steve Stier, a barn restorer regarding repairs to the Wagon 
Shop.  
  
Village Gardens 
Loraine, Ray Lucas, master gardener Michele Dunham and members of the Troy 
Garden Club met January 9 to discuss a plan for the garden bed between 
Caswell and Poppleton School. They propose a children’s garden with an ABC 
theme that matches weather durable artifacts and heritage-type annuals and 
perennials. Plants and artifacts will be selected for each letter of the alphabet. 
The goal is to develop a garden that is interactive, interpretive and stimulating for 
the senses. The group proposes a hard surface, wheelchair accessible, pathway 
through the garden to the new story tree in the north set back as well as a 
stepping stone pathway for youngsters. Rita Urbanski will write a grant from the 
Hazel Herring Fund of the Women’s National Farm and Garden Assn for partial 
funding for the plants and artifacts. Loraine will meet with Ron Hynd regarding 
materials and specifications for the pathway. 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports.  
Copy for the spring Troy Today has been submitted.  
 
The first winter concert in the church was a great success. The Troy Country 
fiddlers played to a packed house. Tim McGee will submit grant applications to 
the Michigan Council for the Humanities in February for the upcoming summer 
concerts. 
 
To date the Historical Society and Museum have received one platinum and two 
bronze sponsors for the 2007 Motoring Memories Car Show. 
 
Staff is exploring a different approach to summer programming that would 
provide visitors the opportunity to participate in simple daily activities rather than 
focusing a great deal of time and resources on a few one-day events that serve 
limited groups of children.  Loraine is working with Cindy Stewart to develop a 
special tear-out page in the front section of Troy Today that can be used by 
families as a summer guide to Museum activities. 
 
Janice Chen suggested that if information was provided to the high schools, it 
could be included with daily morning announcements and or in school 
publications. 
 

2 



NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

We are waiting for the final report from the MAP evaluator. 
 

B. Mission Vision Value Statements 
The Museum staff proposed revised statements and asked the Commission for 
their review and approval. Commission members will provide comments for the 
next meeting. 
 

C. Strategic Planning 
Loraine would like to form a work group with representation from the Historical 
Commission to develop a 5-year strategic plan for the museum during 2007. 

 
D. New Acquisitions 

See attached reports. William Boardman wishes to de-accession some materials 
from the collection. Loraine is consulting with Purchasing and Legal regarding 
acceptable procedures. 

 
E. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

The Heritage Campaign is meeting with National City regarding a large donation 
to the campaign. They wish to be a major sponsor in relocating the Niles/Barnard 
House. 

 
F. Reports and Communications 

a. Staff  
No report 
 

b. Visitors 
No report 

 
 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, March 27, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village at 
7:30 PM. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

3 



  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES  DRAFT  April 18, 2007 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, April 
18, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan.   Tom York called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Michele Hodges 
Daniel MacLeish  
Carol Price 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Douglas Schroeder  (arrived @ 7:35 a.m.) 
Harvey Weiss 
G. Thomas York 
 
 

ABSENT:  Stuart Frankel  
David Hay 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato 
Brian Murphy   

   Lori Bluhm 
    
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-06 
Moved by:    MacLeish 
Seconded by:  Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the March 21, 2007 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay, Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS
 
 
A. Proposed 2007/08 Budget 
 
Resolution:   DD-07-07 
Moved by:   Reschke 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board approve the proposed 2007/08 Downtown Development 
Authority budget and recommend City Council approval, with the stipulation that if the 
.15 mills is restored by City Council, the DDA final budget will be adjusted to account 
for that. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay, Kennis, Kiriluk 
 
 
B. Review of 2nd Draft of Development Plan #6 
 
Brian Murphy asked for comments on the 2nd Draft.  The Development Plan #6 will be 
on the May agenda. 
 
 
C.  Planning Department Update   
 
Brian Murphy gave an update on the Master Plan and Planned Unit Development 
ordinance.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-08 
Moved by:    Culpepper 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That Frankel, Hay, Kennis and Kiriluk be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (9 
Absent:  Frankel, Hay, Kennis, Kiriluk 
 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Louise Schilling gave a brief update on the Public Arts Committee. 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 a.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting:  May 16, 2007 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Lower Level Conference Room, City 
Hall. 
 

 
         
________________________________________ 

Tom York, Vice Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
JL/ph 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held 
Tuesday, April 24, 2007 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to 
order at 7:09 pm. 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
 
Members Present: Jeff Stewart 
    Jeff Super 
    Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 
    Sandy Macknis 
    Jim Hattan 
    Bob Preston 
 

      Members Absent: Alison Miller 
    Dan O’Brien 
 

City Staff Present: Cindy Stewart 
Bob  Matlick 

    Bob Kowalski 
    Jeff Biegler 
 
Guests:   Lisa Neal 
    Tom Duszynski 
    Tom Tighe 
    Poncho Massaini  
    Diana McKay 

 
C. Excuse Members Absent 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-04-018 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Bob Preston 
 
Resolved, that Alison Miller and Dan O’Brien are excused. 

      MOTION CARRIED 
 
D. Approval of Minutes 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-04-019 
Moved by Bob Preston 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of March 27, 2007 are approved as submitted. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E.  New Business 

 
a. Report of meeting with City Treasurer Sandy Kasparek and Asst. City 
Manager/Finance John Lamerato went well.  Budget will be the same as 
2006.  Will deal with bottom line, not line items. 

 
They will discuss money counting situation.  Appreciate the continued 
dialogue and open communication.   Agreement to work carefully with current 
financials.  

 
Question re: line item 7942  $7,350 - What was the charge in Jan 07? 
Also what is charge for account 7943  - Equip/Veh Rental  

      Will find out and get answer for May mtg. 
 

Get monthly expenditures July 1, 2006 to present from JL for committee.  
Suggest holding a special meeting to go over budget/expenditures. 
 
b. Pre-Sales for parking passes.   
Should we consider pre-sales for parking passes?  Offer discounts for pre-
sales or regular price and up the parking passes?  Sell pre-sales passes at 
the Community Center.  Easier getting cars parked – no exchange of money 

 
Could you separate the road – divide it for (express) pre-sales cars and those 
buying day of?  Is there enough room on the road?  Probably not. 

 
Idea  $7 pre-sales 
 $10 @ festival 

 
  $6 pre-sales 
  $10 @ festival 
 
RESOLUTION #2007-04-020 
Motion by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Super 
RESOLVED that we charge $6 pre-sales, $10 @ festival for parking. 
 
We will have a discussion later re: moving cars with stickers faster than those 
purchasing stickers.  Sell 30 days ahead of festival. 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

 
Yes:  6 
No:    1 - Bob Preston 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

c. Volunteer Parking Fee 
Requested we discuss this by students and St. Mark Coptic Church 
Members.   
 
Sandy was approached by Troy Youth Council, but she is not in favor of 
this.  Volunteers get a t-shirt and a certificate.  Only a few complained 
about the charge.  No motion, parking fees for volunteers remain. 
 
Bus Parking –  
 
St. Mark’s abused their parking privileges for vendor lot last year.  Can we 
issue passes with stipulations that they are not for shuttling? 
 
Bob Berk sent letter regarding 2006 issues:  Not picking up  people at 
night,  Parking in vendor lot and their tent items blocking others.  He will 
follow up with them. 
 

d. MFEA discussion 
 
Members for approx 10 years still receive info.  Are dues paid?  Do we want 
to continue?  2006 no one attended the convention.  Benefits seem to have 
diminished.  Should we continue our membership?   
 

a. Provides annual convention. 
b. Inclusion in MFEA brochures that are sent around the state. 
c. Info from supplies/entertainment/vendors around the state. 

 
We do have new members who have never attended the convention.  We 
might want to consider this. 

 
e. Contract Updates 
 
Proposal back on tent bid –  Colonial Party: Large tents and Ace Canvas: 
smaller tents. 
 
Looks like the bid will be split.  Jeff Biegler will explore large tent set up – so 
we do not have same problem as last year re: sagging, water, person to 
alleviate those problems if they occur. 
 

 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

 
 
F. Old Business 
 
Committee Updates 
 
Talent Shows – Jeff Stewart recruited Lisa Neal and Karen Yelder as chairs for 
Talent Show. 
 
Student Volunteers – Sandy went to Int’l Academy, Project lead, National Honor 
Society, Troy High and Athens re: student volunteers. 
 
Petting Zoo – Bob Preston: attempted to contact Wilson’s Petting Zoo.  No 
response.  No luck with other contacts.  Bob Berk will check previous contacts. 
 
Photography Show – Tom Duszynski: Take down 2006 form from website.  Tom 
will send Cindy a new application. 
 
Parade:  Council approved the parade, stipulating that costs are raised ($2200). 
 
Time frame is  one hour and 15 minutes.  Keep groups moving, close together.  
No delays within the lines. 
 
Idea to contact Car Show Sponsors 2006 – they might want to sponsor the 
parade.  Diana said people are interested in participating re: floats, marches, etc. 
Mike Gonda spoke with Shir Tivkah and they have no problem with parade route.  
 
K of C:  Tom Tighe will see if their check has been cashed.  Last time he 
checked it had not.  City Treasurer said they’ve cashed all Troy Daze checks.  
He’ll ask K of C Treasurer again. 
 
Police:  Bob Kowalski – problem with kids not being picked up after closing hours 
of the festival.  Not sure what can be done – problem with parental responsibility.  
 
Bob Matlick: last month we talked about lights on a stand to draw attention to 
shuttle stops.  They sell for $30 each electrical or $79 battery powered. 
Jeff Super said we don’t need this extra expense. 
 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-04-021 
Moved by Jeff Stewart 
Seconded by Sandy Macknis 
 
RESOLVED, that Lisa Neal and Karen Yelder are appointed as co-chairs of the 
Talent Shows. 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Lisa Neal is an eight-year resident of Troy very excited to be on the committee.  
Husband and 2 children (10th grader @ Athens, 7th grader @ Baker).  Her husband 
is a deejay on 102.7FM – the Tune Up Man. 
 
Karen Yelder is a resident, 2 kids in Troy Schools and on the Boys & Girls Club 
Board. 
 
Operations: Mike Gonda spoke with the Pepsi contact.  She will talk to the new 
director for free product (150 cases). 
 
Sponsors: Cindy reported that packets and contracts have been sent.  Approvals 
back to date: ITC Transmission, WOW, Tringali, Comcast. 
 
Fix M56 sign to 3x8 
 
On May 1 all booth applications will be on the web except Food vendors. 
 
 
Bob Berk: booth applications coming in.  Food Vendors in to date: Highland 
Lodge, Lindsey’s, Nick and Deena (Greek Food), St. Marks. 
 
2008 we should look at price adjustments. 
 
G. Public comment  – none 
 
H. Members comments 
 
Jeff Super: food vouchers always been $5, but many vendors have raised prices.  
Raise to $6.  Unfortunately booth applications are out, so it will still be $5 per 
coupon. 
 
Problem with vendors leaving freezers in park 2-3 days.  Very dangerous.  Bob 
will talk to food vendors. 
 
Jonathan Campian sent an email: Do people attending Waffle breakfast  have to 
pay the parking fee?  Parking fees start when park opens (10am). Get there early 
for no parking fee. 
 
 
 

  



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL APRIL 24, 2007 

G. Adjourn 
 

RESOLUTION TD#04-022 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Super 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee meeting of April 24, 
2007 is adjourned. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:52   pm. 
 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 

 
     _____________________________________________ 
     Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
 
 
 

REMINDER: Next meeting – May 22, 2007 at 7:00 PM 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   April 25, 2007 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on April 25, 2007 at 7:00 PM at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Maxine D’Amico and Nicole Vitale called the meeting to order 
at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (Secretary) 

Andrew Corey  
Maxine D’Amico (Co-chair) 
Alex Gabriel 
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rishi Joshi, Jessica Kraft, Karen Wullaert 
VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-4-5 
  Moved by   Thoenes 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of March 28, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 10 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 - Joshi, Kraft, Wulleart   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through March 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Interviews:   Applicants to the TYC 
8 candidates were interviewed.  8 applications were on file.  Interviews lasted 
approximately three minutes each.  The list of applicants is below.   

        
Last  Name First Name Grade School 

Bora Disha 8 Boulan Middle School 
Conley Christian 8 Larson Middle School 
Kim Geon Woo 9 Troy High 
Navratil Andrea 8 Larson Middle School 
Sekhri Shaina  9 Troy High 
Vasudevan Anita 8 Smith Middle School 
Wunderlich Sarah 9 Troy High 
Wylie David 9 Brother Rice High School 

    
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   April 25, 2007 
 

 2

5. Resolution to recommend 4 applicants for seats on the Troy Youth Council:     
Resolution # TY-2007-4-6 

  Moved by   Corey 
  Seconded by  Thoenes 

 
RESOLVED, That Disha Bora, Geon Woo Kim, Shaina Sekhri and David 
Wylie are recommended for appointment to fill the vacant seats on the Troy 
Youth Council. 

  Yes:  10  
  No:  0  
  Absent: 3 – Joshi, Kraft, Wulleart 
 
  Resolution # TY-2007-4-7 
  Moved by   Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

 
RESOLVED, That Christian Conley is recommended as alternate for 
appointment to fill the vacant seats on the Troy Youth Council.  This 
recommendation will be used should the applicants in the previous resolution  
not fulfill committment. 

  Yes:  10 
  No:  0 
  Absent: 3 – Joshi, Kraft, Wulleart 

 
 

6. Troy Daze Festival Update 
 Resolution # TY-2007-4-8 

  Moved by   D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Corey 

   
RESOLVED, That the Troy Youth Council send letter to Troy Daze Committee 
and City Council expressing concerns regarding the Troy Daze Festival. 

  Yes:  All – 10 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 - Joshi, Kraft, Wulleart   

 
 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-4-9 

  Moved by  Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Vitale  

  
RESOLVED that Rishi Joshi, Jessica Kraft and Karen Wullaert are excused. 

  Yes:  All - 10   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 - Joshi, Kraft, Wulleart   
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-Bozimowski – Discussed items from Troy Daze meeting. 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   April 25, 2007 
 

 3

 
9.  Public Comments –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:49 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Maxine D’Amico, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: May 23 at 7:00 P.M.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on May 1, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-084 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-085 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as revised by moving item #8 behind #5. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-086 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the April 24, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 

Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – From 
R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property to the south, zoned M-1 and a Consent 
Judgment, is built out as retail. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner. 
 
William Fuller, principal of Orland Park Properties, gave a brief history of the site.  
He indicated the site would be more suitable for retail activity.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-05-087 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located at the northwest corner of 
Maple and Thorncroft, within Section 29, being approximately 3.2 acres in size, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Proposed Amendment to Consent Agreement – 
Starbucks Restaurant, Northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Crooks Road, 
Section 20, Zoned B-3 (General Business) and H-S (Highway Service) – Controlled 
by Consent Judgment 
 
Mr. Hutson asked to be excused because of a tangential interest in the item. 
 
By a voice vote, members agreed to excuse Mr. Hutson from discussion and vote 
on the item.  
 
[Mr. Hutson exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a history of the site plan application and a summary of the 
revised site plan.  He reported City Management recommends approval of the site 
plan with the conditions that rooftop screening and an 8-foot wide sidewalk along 
Crooks Road, as per City of Troy Engineering standards, are provided.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if it is within the purview of the Planning Commission to request 
full perimeter screening of rooftop mechanical equipment. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative. 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Mr. Berry gave a brief history of the project.  He indicated Starbucks 
agreed to move the building closer to the corner so the development would conform 
to the Big Beaver Corridor Study.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address building design and materials. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Steve Sorensen of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Sorensen, who is not the architect on record, said he 
worked directly with Starbucks’ project and design manager on making the facades 
along Crooks and Big Beaver Roads presentable and as nice as possible.  He said 
the rendering from Starbucks is similar in representation to the building design, 
indicating materials and floor plans might be available in two to three weeks, prior to 
going to City Council.   
 
Mr. Strat said it is standard procedure to have sealed architectural drawings, and 
the item should be tabled because the drawing is not sealed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster reminded members that the item is a Consent Judgment and falls 
outside of standard procedure.  She said City Council has the ultimate decision on 
the matter, but it is City Council’s preference to seek Planning Commission 
comments and recommendation.  Ms. Lancaster briefly reviewed the procedure of a 
Consent Judgment item, and noted the item would most likely not come back before 
the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller stated a significant change in the site plan is the reason members are 
reviewing the plan tonight.  He said the petitioner has made an effort to 
accommodate the City’s preference in design, and the City is trying to move the 
project forward as quickly as possible.  Mr. Miller indicated any suggestions relating 
to materials and design could be incorporated in a recommendation to City Council.  
 
Mr. Tagle asked for an explanation in terms of providing a recommendation when 
project information is incomplete.  He commended the petitioner in moving the 
building closer to Big Beaver. 
 
Ms. Lancaster responded a Consent Judgment in most cities is acted upon by City 
Council, with no recommendation from the Planning Commission.  She indicated 
Troy is different and City Council values the input from its Planning Commission 
members as relates to the project design, materials, likes, dislikes, etc.  She said 
City Council would consider Planning Commission comments with respect to the 
terms of the Consent Judgment.  
 
Ms. Kerwin applauded the petitioner in coming back with a revised design in 
response to voices of the Planning Commission members, and said she would 
approve the revised plan.  
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in full support of the revised plan because of its relation to the 
Big Beaver corridor, and indicated he would like to move forward with the project.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred with the favorable comments, but voiced concern with the 
significant trees in the lot behind the service station to the west.  He asked that as 
many trees as possible be saved and relocated to the boulevard area, and brick 
pavers removed.  Mr. Strat said he would prefer to see building material samples 
and building elevations.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see less brick pavers, and more grass and trees, 
between the City sidewalk and the street along Big Beaver.  He also suggested 
permeable surface along Big Beaver Road between the sidewalk and the street.  
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner could go forward with the previously approved 
site plan, should the revised site plan be postponed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster answered in the affirmative.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner is receptive to the comments made by the members.   
 
Mr. Berry assured members that the petitioner and Starbucks would accommodate 
their suggestions and comments to the best of their ability.   
 
Mr. Sorensen said trees in the right of way are subject to approval by Oakland 
County.  
 
Ms. Troshynski said she also would like to see more trees and less brick pavers, but 
noted traffic visibility would be a critical consideration.  
 
Mr. Tagle requested the petitioner to also consider a pedestrian entrance off the 
east side of the building that would provide immediate access to the building off of 
Crooks. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-088 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment, as requested for the proposed 
Starbucks Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, 
located in Section 20, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 and H-S zoning 
districts, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Add a note on the site plan stating that a full perimeter screen of rooftop 

mechanicals will be provided.   
2. Provide an 8-foot wide concrete sidewalk on Crooks Road, per City of Troy 

Engineering standards. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: Kerwin, Tagle, Troshynski, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Hutson 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Hutson returned to the meeting.] 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – 
Proposed Article 22.30.08  Adult Business Uses 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating 
to adult business uses.  He summarized the impacts of distance requirements of 
adult business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes, ranging from 
500 feet to 1,000 feet.   
 
Ms. Lancaster detailed the legal aspects of an adult business use text amendment 
in relation to the First Amendment.  She addressed court decisions based on the 
secondary effects associated with a concentration of adult business uses, and what 
the courts look for when an ordinance is challenged.  Ms. Lancaster said courts 
recognize the need for a balance between the First Amendment and deleterious 
affects of an adult business use.  She said the bottom line is the Zoning Ordinance 
must be content-neutral, and the City cannot deny the First Amendment use or 
access to our City to have these uses.  The Legal Department recommends a 
distance requirement of 500 feet of adult business uses from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for 
residential purposes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the Legal Department and Planning Department served the City 
very well in their recommendations on adult business uses, and the need to have an 
ordinance in place to protect the City is recognized.  Ms. Kerwin said that 
personally, as an advocate for youth, she could not support the 500-foot distance 
requirement from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or residential 
zoning. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Vleck indicated he would favor a minimal of 600 feet from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or residential zoning.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the viewpoint of a judge, and questioned if anything in 
excess of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park, or 
residential zoning would stand up to a test in court.  He indicated the safest course 
to take would be to adopt an ordinance with the 500-foot distance, as recommended 
by the Legal Department.  Mr. Hutson said he would not support anything over 600 
feet.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said her concern is with the concentrations of adult business uses 
along Big Beaver, Maple and 14 Mile Roads.  She asked if there were other options 
that could be considered in that respect.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the uses cannot be zoned out of business, and the court wants 
an ordinance that is content-neutral.  She said the City could amend the ordinance 
to allow adult business uses in other zoning districts, but she is not sure that would 
help with the concentration aspect.  Ms. Lancaster said an open mind must be kept 
in terms of providing access for such a use.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would support the recommendation of the City Attorney’s 
office.  He said it is understood that the majority of residents do not want any adult 
business use in our City, but they cannot be prohibited.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-089 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To move the adoption of Proposed Resolution # PC-2007-05 relating 
to Article 22.30.08, and that the motion should recognize when it is voted upon, that 
the written resolution is the one moved.   
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their 
very nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 
when several of them are concentrated under certain circumstances or when one 
(1) or more of them are located in near proximity to a residential zone, thereby 
having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. Special regulation of these 
uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not contribute to the 
blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood.  These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) 
area, or to prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. 
These controls do not legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other 
applicable laws.  
 
AND WHEREAS, in regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this 
ordinance to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the 
City of Troy, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

deleterious secondary effects of adult business uses within the City of Troy. The 
provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose nor effect of imposing a 
limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is 
neither the intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults 
to sexually oriented materials protected by the First Amendment, or to deny 
access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually oriented entertainment to 
their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this ordinance to 
condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material.  
 
AND WHEREAS, based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult 
business uses presented in reports made available to the Planning Commission, 
and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, 
Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), 
and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in and around adult 
business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City 
OK, Cleburne TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix 
County WI, the Planning Commission finds that adult business uses as a 
category of establishments are correlated with harmful secondary effects, and 
that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be relevant to the problems 
that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXII B-3 
GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Adult Business Uses 
subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, be approved as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public 
Hearing Draft.  

 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in agreement with the motion with the exception that he would 
like to see a distance of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park 
or any residential zoning district, or any parcel used for residential purposes. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto 
Detailing and Repair Facility and Outdoor Storage, East side of Souter, South of 
Maple Road (1402 Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted two 
letters of opposition were received. 
 
Douglas McGaw of 5455 Corporate Drive, Troy, was present to represent the 
petitioner.   
 
Alec Bien of 1402 Souter, Troy, part owner of the building, was also present.   
 
Mr. McGaw addressed the outside storage.  He indicated the outside storage was a 
continued use from the previous ownership, and the petitioner was not aware that 
he was in violation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Hutson questioned the communication received from Stuart Tool Service 
expressing opposition and concern that there has been paint overspray discovered 
on some of their vehicles.  
 
Mr. McGaw said the other tenant operates a car detailing business, of which he 
does not know the status.  He said he could not conceive how paint could get 
outside of the building as all the painting occurs inside.  Mr. McGaw said the other 
letter of opposition from a Big Beaver address appears to be in general opposition 
to the special use request, but indicated the site is over one mile away from the 
subject site.   
 
Ms. Kerwin ask what would prevent the site from becoming “junked” up.  
 
Mr. McGaw replied the storage area is completely screened and cars are not stored 
on site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Strat asked if paint spraying occurs outside.   
 
Mr. Bien said the tenant does not spray outside of the building, and that this 
complaint of overspray is the first of which he has been made aware.  He indicated 
he would make sure both garage doors are closed during any painting operation.  
Mr. Bien said he stores pipe in the outside storage area, and the area is screened 
with a chain link, slatted fence.   
 
There was further discussion on the letter of opposition from 1208 E. Maple, the 
location of which was determined with reference to the subject site.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-05-090 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Sections 28.30.04 and 28.30.07 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the Auto Detailing and Repair Facility and Outdoor Storage, located on the east 
side of Souter, south of Maple, in Section 34, within the M-1 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 328) – Existing Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple 
and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the alley vacation abutting the subject parcel and the site plan 
design with respect to the proposed masonry screen wall.   
 
Jason Longhurst of Nowak & Fraus, 1310 N. Stephenson Highway, Royal Oak, was 
present.  Mr. Longhurst reviewed the proposed site improvements.  He addressed 
the elimination of two approaches nearest the intersection, the deceleration lane off 
of Livernois required by Oakland County and the City, the existing canopies and 
pumps, the masonry screen wall in lieu of the required greenbelt, and the alley 
vacation.   
 
Discussion followed on: 
• Masonry screen wall; design, material and maintenance. 
• Dumpster location. 
• Building elevation; material.  
• Site plan submission; i.e., unsealed architectural plans. 
 
Mr. Strat indicated he would support a postponement of the item based on its 
design, proposed masonry screen wall and incomplete submittal.  He addressed the 
damaged masonry screen wall at the Maple and John R service station.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Longhurst addressed the building façade and screen wall.  He indicated 
willingness to look into a different façade for the north side of the building.  Mr. 
Longhurst said the masonry wall would be poured concrete with a color and texture 
that would match the building façade.  He indicated the owner would be responsible 
for the maintenance of the screen wall, and there should be no comparison to another 
location that is delinquent in making repairs.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the proposed material of the masonry screen wall.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the members have authority to request a brick wall.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said members could not negotiate or request the petitioner to go above 
and beyond the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Miller read Section 39.70.05 of the Zoning Ordinance that relates to screen wall 
options.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested the use of curbing along the west wall to negate the probability 
of knocking down the screen wall. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to bring back a revised plan that would incorporate 
comments expressed by members.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-091 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until appropriate information is submitted.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said there is sufficient information to approve the site plan.  He said he 
was not sure that the petitioner would legally have to obey the requests of the 
members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were brief comments on the new Pavilions of Troy development.   
 
 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\05-01-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on May 1, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-084 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-085 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as revised by moving item #8 behind #5. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-086 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the April 24, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 

Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – From 
R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property to the south, zoned M-1 and a Consent 
Judgment, is built out as retail. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner. 
 
William Fuller, principal of Orland Park Properties, gave a brief history of the site.  
He indicated the site would be more suitable for retail activity.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-05-087 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located at the northwest corner of 
Maple and Thorncroft, within Section 29, being approximately 3.2 acres in size, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Proposed Amendment to Consent Agreement – 
Starbucks Restaurant, Northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Crooks Road, 
Section 20, Zoned B-3 (General Business) and H-S (Highway Service) – Controlled 
by Consent Judgment 
 
Mr. Hutson asked to be excused because of a tangential interest in the item. 
 
By a voice vote, members agreed to excuse Mr. Hutson from discussion and vote 
on the item.  
 
[Mr. Hutson exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a history of the site plan application and a summary of the 
revised site plan.  He reported City Management recommends approval of the site 
plan with the conditions that rooftop screening and an 8-foot wide sidewalk along 
Crooks Road, as per City of Troy Engineering standards, are provided.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if it is within the purview of the Planning Commission to request 
full perimeter screening of rooftop mechanical equipment. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative. 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Mr. Berry gave a brief history of the project.  He indicated Starbucks 
agreed to move the building closer to the corner so the development would conform 
to the Big Beaver Corridor Study.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address building design and materials. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Steve Sorensen of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Sorensen, who is not the architect on record, said he 
worked directly with Starbucks’ project and design manager on making the facades 
along Crooks and Big Beaver Roads presentable and as nice as possible.  He said 
the rendering from Starbucks is similar in representation to the building design, 
indicating materials and floor plans might be available in two to three weeks, prior to 
going to City Council.   
 
Mr. Strat said it is standard procedure to have sealed architectural drawings, and 
the item should be tabled because the drawing is not sealed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster reminded members that the item is a Consent Judgment and falls 
outside of standard procedure.  She said City Council has the ultimate decision on 
the matter, but it is City Council’s preference to seek Planning Commission 
comments and recommendation.  Ms. Lancaster briefly reviewed the procedure of a 
Consent Judgment item, and noted the item would most likely not come back before 
the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller stated a significant change in the site plan is the reason members are 
reviewing the plan tonight.  He said the petitioner has made an effort to 
accommodate the City’s preference in design, and the City is trying to move the 
project forward as quickly as possible.  Mr. Miller indicated any suggestions relating 
to materials and design could be incorporated in a recommendation to City Council.  
 
Mr. Tagle asked for an explanation in terms of providing a recommendation when 
project information is incomplete.  He commended the petitioner in moving the 
building closer to Big Beaver. 
 
Ms. Lancaster responded a Consent Judgment in most cities is acted upon by City 
Council, with no recommendation from the Planning Commission.  She indicated 
Troy is different and City Council values the input from its Planning Commission 
members as relates to the project design, materials, likes, dislikes, etc.  She said 
City Council would consider Planning Commission comments with respect to the 
terms of the Consent Judgment.  
 
Ms. Kerwin applauded the petitioner in coming back with a revised design in 
response to voices of the Planning Commission members, and said she would 
approve the revised plan.  
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in full support of the revised plan because of its relation to the 
Big Beaver corridor, and indicated he would like to move forward with the project.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred with the favorable comments, but voiced concern with the 
significant trees in the lot behind the service station to the west.  He asked that as 
many trees as possible be saved and relocated to the boulevard area, and brick 
pavers removed.  Mr. Strat said he would prefer to see building material samples 
and building elevations.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see less brick pavers, and more grass and trees, 
between the City sidewalk and the street along Big Beaver.  He also suggested 
permeable surface along Big Beaver Road between the sidewalk and the street.  
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner could go forward with the previously approved 
site plan, should the revised site plan be postponed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster answered in the affirmative.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner is receptive to the comments made by the members.   
 
Mr. Berry assured members that the petitioner and Starbucks would accommodate 
their suggestions and comments to the best of their ability.   
 
Mr. Sorensen said trees in the right of way are subject to approval by Oakland 
County.  
 
Ms. Troshynski said she also would like to see more trees and less brick pavers, but 
noted traffic visibility would be a critical consideration.  
 
Mr. Tagle requested the petitioner to also consider a pedestrian entrance off the 
east side of the building that would provide immediate access to the building off of 
Crooks. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-088 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment, as requested for the proposed 
Starbucks Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, 
located in Section 20, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 and H-S zoning 
districts, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Add a note on the site plan stating that a full perimeter screen of rooftop 

mechanicals will be provided.   
2. Provide an 8-foot wide concrete sidewalk on Crooks Road, per City of Troy 

Engineering standards. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: Kerwin, Tagle, Troshynski, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Hutson 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Hutson returned to the meeting.] 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – 
Proposed Article 22.30.08  Adult Business Uses 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating 
to adult business uses.  He summarized the impacts of distance requirements of 
adult business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes, ranging from 
500 feet to 1,000 feet.   
 
Ms. Lancaster detailed the legal aspects of an adult business use text amendment 
in relation to the First Amendment.  She addressed court decisions based on the 
secondary effects associated with a concentration of adult business uses, and what 
the courts look for when an ordinance is challenged.  Ms. Lancaster said courts 
recognize the need for a balance between the First Amendment and deleterious 
affects of an adult business use.  She said the bottom line is the Zoning Ordinance 
must be content-neutral, and the City cannot deny the First Amendment use or 
access to our City to have these uses.  The Legal Department recommends a 
distance requirement of 500 feet of adult business uses from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for 
residential purposes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the Legal Department and Planning Department served the City 
very well in their recommendations on adult business uses, and the need to have an 
ordinance in place.  It is recognized that adult business uses have a deleterious 
effect on surrounding properties.  Ms. Kerwin said that personally, as an advocate 
for youth, she could not support the 500-foot distance requirement from a church, 
school, childcare facility, public park or residential zoning. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Vleck indicated he would favor a minimal of 600 feet from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or residential zoning.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the viewpoint of a judge, and questioned if anything in 
excess of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park, or 
residential zoning would stand up to a test in court.  He indicated the safest course 
to take would be to adopt an ordinance with the 500-foot distance, as recommended 
by the Legal Department.  Mr. Hutson said he would not support anything over 600 
feet.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said her concern is with the concentrations of adult business uses 
along Big Beaver, Maple and 14 Mile Roads.  She asked if there were other options 
that could be considered in that respect.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the uses cannot be zoned out of business, and the court wants 
an ordinance that is content-neutral.  She said the City could amend the ordinance 
to allow adult business uses in other zoning districts, but she is not sure that would 
help with the concentration aspect.  Ms. Lancaster said an open mind must be kept 
in terms of providing access for such a use.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would support the recommendation of the City Attorney’s 
office.  He said it is understood that the majority of residents do not want any adult 
business use in our City, but they cannot be prohibited.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-089 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To move the adoption of Proposed Resolution # PC-2007-05 relating 
to Article 22.30.08, and that the motion should recognize when it is voted upon, that 
the written resolution is the one moved.   
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their 
very nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 
when several of them are concentrated under certain circumstances or when one 
(1) or more of them are located in near proximity to a residential zone, thereby 
having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. Special regulation of these 
uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not contribute to the 
blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood.  These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) 
area, or to prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. 
These controls do not legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other 
applicable laws.  
 
AND WHEREAS, in regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this 
ordinance to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the 
City of Troy, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

deleterious secondary effects of adult business uses within the City of Troy. The 
provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose nor effect of imposing a 
limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is 
neither the intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults 
to sexually oriented materials protected by the First Amendment, or to deny 
access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually oriented entertainment to 
their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this ordinance to 
condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material.  
 
AND WHEREAS, based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult 
business uses presented in reports made available to the Planning Commission, 
and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, 
Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), 
and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in and around adult 
business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City 
OK, Cleburne TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix 
County WI, the Planning Commission finds that adult business uses as a 
category of establishments are correlated with harmful secondary effects, and 
that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be relevant to the problems 
that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXII B-3 
GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Adult Business Uses 
subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, be approved as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public 
Hearing Draft.  

 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in agreement with the motion with the exception that he would 
like to see a distance of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park 
or any residential zoning district, or any parcel used for residential purposes. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto 
Detailing and Repair Facility and Outdoor Storage, East side of Souter, South of 
Maple Road (1402 Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted two 
letters of opposition were received. 
 
Douglas McGaw of 5455 Corporate Drive, Troy, was present to represent the 
petitioner.   
 
Alec Bien of 1402 Souter, Troy, part owner of the building, was also present.   
 
Mr. McGaw addressed the outside storage.  He indicated the outside storage was a 
continued use from the previous ownership, and the petitioner was not aware that 
he was in violation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Hutson questioned the communication received from Stuart Tool Service 
expressing opposition and concern that there has been paint overspray discovered 
on some of their vehicles.  
 
Mr. McGaw said the other tenant operates a car detailing business, of which he 
does not know the status.  He said he could not conceive how paint could get 
outside of the building as all the painting occurs inside.  Mr. McGaw said the other 
letter of opposition from a Big Beaver address appears to be in general opposition 
to the special use request, but indicated the site is over one mile away from the 
subject site.   
 
Ms. Kerwin ask what would prevent the site from becoming “junked” up.  
 
Mr. McGaw replied the storage area is completely screened and cars are not stored 
on site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Strat asked if paint spraying occurs outside.   
 
Mr. Bien said the tenant does not spray outside of the building, and that this 
complaint of overspray is the first of which he has been made aware.  He indicated 
he would make sure both garage doors are closed during any painting operation.  
Mr. Bien said he stores pipe in the outside storage area, and the area is screened 
with a chain link, slatted fence.   
 
There was further discussion on the letter of opposition from 1208 E. Maple, the 
location of which was determined with reference to the subject site.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-05-090 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Sections 28.30.04 and 28.30.07 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the Auto Detailing and Repair Facility and Outdoor Storage, located on the east 
side of Souter, south of Maple, in Section 34, within the M-1 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 328) – Existing Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple 
and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the alley vacation abutting the subject parcel and the site plan 
design with respect to the proposed masonry screen wall.   
 
Jason Longhurst of Nowak & Fraus, 1310 N. Stephenson Highway, Royal Oak, was 
present.  Mr. Longhurst reviewed the proposed site improvements.  He addressed 
the elimination of two approaches nearest the intersection, the deceleration lane off 
of Livernois required by Oakland County and the City, the existing canopies and 
pumps, the masonry screen wall in lieu of the required greenbelt, and the alley 
vacation.   
 
Discussion followed on: 
• Masonry screen wall; design, material and maintenance. 
• Dumpster location. 
• Building elevation; material.  
• Site plan submission; i.e., unsealed architectural plans. 
 
Mr. Strat indicated he would support a postponement of the item based on its 
design, proposed masonry screen wall and incomplete submittal.  He addressed the 
damaged masonry screen wall at the Maple and John R service station.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Longhurst addressed the building façade and screen wall.  He indicated 
willingness to look into a different façade for the north side of the building.  Mr. 
Longhurst said the masonry wall would be poured concrete with a color and texture 
that would match the building façade.  He indicated the owner would be responsible 
for the maintenance of the screen wall, and there should be no comparison to another 
location that is delinquent in making repairs.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the proposed material of the masonry screen wall.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the members have authority to request a brick wall.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said members could not negotiate or request the petitioner to go above 
and beyond the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Miller read Section 39.70.05 of the Zoning Ordinance that relates to screen wall 
options.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested the use of curbing along the west wall to negate the probability 
of knocking down the screen wall. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to bring back a revised plan that would incorporate 
comments expressed by members.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-091 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until appropriate information is submitted.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said there is sufficient information to approve the site plan.  He said he 
was not sure that the petitioner would legally have to obey the requests of the 
members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were brief comments on the new Pavilions of Troy development.   
 
 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\05-01-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, May 2, 2007, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF APRIL 4, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 4, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES/CHOICE GROUP, 
1233 W. WATTLES, for relief of Chapter 85 to maintain a temporary sign installed at 
1233 W. Wattles. 
 
The site plan submitted and site inspection indicates that the sign located on this site is 
a 54 square foot Real Estate Sign.  The owner of the property is in the process of 
developing a site condominium on the adjacent property to the south.  However, the 
property in question is not part of the condominium.  Chapter 85, Section 85.02.05 
allows signs for subdivisions under development of up to 100 square feet.  However, 
since this parcel is not part of the site condo (subdivision) it is limited to the maximum 
size of six (6) square feet and an aggregate area of fourteen (14) square feet on a site 
in the R-1B Zoning District. per Section 85.03.02. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 4, 2007 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department had received a letter from the 
petitioner stating they wished to withdraw this request and would remove the existing 
sign. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal of request of Mondrian Properties/Choice Group, for 
relief of Chapter 85 to maintain a temporary sign installed at 1233 W. Wattles. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL OF REQUEST CARRIED 
 
No further action by the Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. JOSEPH KYRIAKOZA, 3617 
SANDBURG, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ high non-obscuring fence adjacent to 
the property along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ 
high non-obscuring fence.  The property in question is located at the northwest corner of 
Sandburg and Stonetree.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent homes, this 
property is a double front corner lot.  Therefore, it has front yard setback requirements 
along both Sandburg and Stonetree.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front 
setbacks on this property to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 4’ high non-
obscuring fence adjacent to the property line along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Kyriakoza were present.  Mr. Kyriakoza stated that the existing fence was 
there at the time they purchased this home and does not enclose the yard.  They have a 
young daughter and a dog and would like to provide safety for both.  Stonetree is 
extremely busy and is a high traffic area.  They would like to protect their child as well 
as other children visiting the home from running into the street.  The existing fence is 
very dilapidated due to its age and they are trying to improve the appearance of their 
property.  Mr. Kyriakoza has presented pictures of the proposed fence to surrounding 
neighbors, including a Board Member of the Subdivision Association and has received 
approvals of this request.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the new fence was going to replace the existing fence and asked if 
the current fence runs along the west side of the driveway.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the fence will start at the side of the house and go around the 
perimeter of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked for clarification of the location of the proposed fence. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza stated that the fence line will start on the side of the house near the 
chimney.  Mr. Kyriakoza also stated that they are very concerned about visibility and 
want to make sure that they are not obstructing cars backing out of the driveway. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked the petitioners if they were aware that they would have a problem 
with a fence due to the configuration of their lot. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they were not aware this would be a problem.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked how much area they would have in the yard if the fence were 
constructed following the Ordinance.  Mr. Kessler said that in his opinion this was quite 
a large lot and he feels there is enough room to fence in the area behind the house and 
therefore comply with the Ordinance.  In order for the Board to grant a variance, the 
petitioner needs to prove a hardship exists with the property.  Mr. Kessler does not 
believe there is a hardship that would allow a variance to bring the fence out. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they basically wish to replace the existing fence and their main 
concern is the fact that Stonetree is extremely busy.  They wish to enclose the yard and 
provide safety for their children and children that would visit. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that if they moved the fence and kept it even with the house it 
would be very close to the playscape and swings, which could create a hazard. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that it would be possible to allow the fence into eight (8’) feet of the 
setback and provide the safety they are looking for. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the way the yard is set up that is still the back yard. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated for other people in the subdivision this is the front yard. 
 
A discussion began regarding placement of the fence.   Mr. Kessler said that in his 
opinion the location of the fence should be between the pine trees and then across.  
The trees would act as a buffer for this fence. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they have received the support of their neighbors and the 
Homeowners Association.  Although he understands where Mr. Kessler is suggesting 
the fence be placed, it would eliminate part of their property. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that there is a lot of landscaping in that area and she is concerned 
about how it would look.  Their patio is raised and surrounded by rock with room for 
additional landscaping and she is afraid that they would have to disrupt some of this 
landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that in other situations where the Board has approved the same 
type of request, it has required additional landscaping around the fence to soften the 
look.  Mr. Kessler also stated that if a variance was granted for them to go 10’ into the 
setback, and they decided that 3’ would be better, they could still put up a fence. 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if additional landscaping would create an obstruction. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the petitioner could install a hedge along the perimeter of his 
property and this would not be regulated.  The only area that they could not put in 
landscaping was at the corner of the property where the two streets meet.  The Board is 
concerned about the aesthetics and visibility to surrounding property.   
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza asked if additional landscaping would be required, if they were granted a 
variance to put the fence where they wished to. 
 
Mr. Richnak said he thought landscaping would be required along the south property 
line. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they have done a lot of work on their property and hope that 
they would not have to pull out what they have done. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the only problem is visibility when backing out of the driveway. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the distance was from the chimney to the setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears from the aerial view of the property that this parcel is 90’ 
wide, and is zoned R-1C, which required a 30’ setback.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  Mr. Kyriakoza brought an additional 
approval letter in. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that he had given sketches of the proposed fence to the neighbors 
and also showed them a sample of the fence they wish to install. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion the issue of additional shrubbery would create a 
problem with the driveway. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that his suggestion is to put the fence 10’ away from the front setback.  
If it is approved in that location they would not require additional landscaping.  There is 
a hardship with the placement of existing structures and he believes that the 10’ setback 
would address that problem. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the photographs submitted showed the additional improvements. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they were not reflected in the photos as they are more to the 
back of the house.  The stamped concrete walkway was added last year.   

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how wide the walkway was and Mr. Kyriakoza said he thought it was 
about 3’.  Mr. Kyriakoza also said that the 10’ setback would affect the landscaping that 
surrounds the pine tree.  He asked if the fence could be placed behind the landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is probably a 30’ setback from the house to the property line. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if they would be allowed to construct the fence along the property 
line if they added extra landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he did not believe there was a hardship that would justify a 
variance. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he did not believe it would go all the way to the front.  10’ would 
come to the north side of the evergreen tree and south side of the structure.  He would 
be more inclined to put it on the south side of the evergreen tree and 15’ from the face 
of the house.  The fence would then come over and come back to the chimney, not all 
the way to the driveway.  That property line and the area to the west would need to be 
screened with various types of vegetation. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they have seen other homes in the area with very similar 
requests. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that each situation is different and often the fences were in place 
before these types of restrictions were put into effect.  Each situation is addressed on its 
own merit.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if he could put up a 36” high fence in the same location as the 
existing fence.  He would like to create a nicer look and at the same time increase the 
safety factor. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they really would like to be able to put the fence in where they 
requested.  They did not realize there would be a problem replacing the fence at the 
time they purchased this home.   
  
Mr. Dziurman asked if they were planning to change their request. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they would really like to put up what they are asking for.  They 
want the height because of the safety of children and because there are other dogs in 
the area.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they would like to have a 4’ high fence and would be willing to 
compromise with the Board and bring it in.  They would also be willing to put it behind 
the pine tree and up to the chimney. 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler confirmed that they are asking for a 4’ high fence in the location that they 
requested.  Right now there is no driveway next to the fence.  A 30” fence would not 
obstruct anyone’s view. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the neighbor most affected by this request approves of this 
proposed fence.  Mr. Kyriakoza brought over the sample fence to show him.  They do 
not want to obscure the neighbor’s line of site with high shrubbery and this proposed 
fence is in compliance with the by-laws of the subdivision.  They also want the 
neighbors to be happy with this decision. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they want their request on the table as it is proposed. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they did. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the hardship was and Mr. Kyriakoza said that the heavy traffic 
on the road along side their house and the fact that if the fence is placed too close to 
the play structure, it will create a safety hazard for the children playing on it. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if a 15’ setback would work for them.  Mr. Kyriakoza said that it would 
not. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr. & Mrs. Kyriakoza, 3617 Sandburg, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 4’ high non-obscuring fence adjacent to the property along 
Stonetree. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that they could still put up a 30” fence in the front.   
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza asked if they could put up 6’ high shrubs. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they could put shrubbery across the front of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they cannot put shrubbery within 25’ of the intersection of the two 
(2) streets. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked what the regulations were to put up a 4’ high fence. 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 2, 2007 

Mr. Stimac stated that he would be happy to meet with the Kyriakoza’s to discuss their 
options after this meeting was concluded. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting ended at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order on Tuesday, May 15, 2007 at 7:30 P.M., in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs (Arrived at 7:50 P.M.) 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
   Christopher Fejes 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  4 –Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF APRIL 17, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 17, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 2 – Kovacs, Clark  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and #4 in accordance with the suggested resolutions 
printed in the Agenda Explanation. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 2 – Kovacs, Clark  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND #4 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE (3)-YEARS 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 - RENEWAL REQUESTED.  REVEREND SIMION TIMBUC, BETHESDA 
ROMANIAN PENTECOSTAL CHURCH, 2075 E. LONG LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” 
high masonry screening wall required along the east side of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the east side of off-street 
parking.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since May 1998.  This item last  
appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 2004 and was granted a three-year 
(3) renewal. 
 
MOVED, to grant Reverend Simion Timbuc, 2075 E. Long Lake, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the east side of 
off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  REVEREND PAUL STOVER, 2601 E. SQUARE 
LAKE, for renewal of relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west 
side of off-street parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street 
parking on the north side of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property.  This relief was originally granted in 1995 based on the fact that the 
property immediately north of the parking lot is wetlands and has substantial growth.  
This item last appeared before this board at the meeting of May 2004 and was granted 
a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Reverend Paul Stover, 2601 E. Square Lake, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #11, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VISION QUEST COUNSELING, 3455 LIVERNOIS 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new office building 
without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, approximately 250’ of the site, as 
required by Section 39.70.10.  
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #12, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JASON BELL OF BEAUMONT SERVICES 
COMPANY, LLC REPRESENTING WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL, 44201 
DEQUINDRE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a pedestrian bridge across 
Dequindre that will go right out to (and over) the front property line along Dequindre with 
the support tower located 18’ from the property line, where Paragraph D of Section 
18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a public street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a pedestrian bridge across Dequindre Road at 44201 Dequindre.  This hospital facility is 
located within the C-F (Community Facilities) Zoning District.  Paragraph D of Section 
18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a public street.  
The site plan submitted indicates that the enclosed pedestrian bridge will go right out to 
(and over) the front property line along Dequindre and that the support tower will be 
located 18’ from this property line. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the distance was of the right of way line on Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the right of way is 120’ for Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how far the support for the bridge would be from the actual 
pavement of Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that it would be approximately 46’ from the edge of the pavement. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had received approval from the City of Sterling 
Heights and the Oakland Road Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that it was his understanding they had received approval from 
both the City of Sterling Heights and the Oakland County Road Commission.  Mr. 
Stimac also said that City Council has final approval of the final site plan. 
 
Jason Bell of Beaumont Services and Craig McEwen of Harley Ellis Devereaux were 
present.  Mr. Bell said that the fundamental purpose of this bridge is so that staff can 
traverse both facilities.  They are planning to locate outpatient services to the Sterling 
Heights side of the hospital.  This would enable staff to move from one location to 
another without the use of shuttle buses or automobiles. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked where this bridge would connect. 
 
Mr. Bell explained that it would open into an atrium on the Sterling Heights side and 
connect into the second floor of the main entrance of the hospital on the Troy side. 
 
Mr. McEwen said that the bridge does create the ability to go back and forth between 
the two facilities.  The bridge is not to be used so much for parking on one side and 
working on the other, but to enable staff to go back and forth between the two buildings 
without the use of a shuttle bus or automobile..   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it was going to be strictly a walking bridge or if a moving sidewalk 
would be put into it. 
 
Mr. McEwen said that it is a walking bridge that will be about 14’ wide.  It will also slope 
down slightly to the Sterling Heights side.  Mr. McEwen said that they have received 
approval from the Oakland County Road Commission. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Jason Bell of Beaumont Services Company, LLC representing William 
Beaumont Hospital, 44201 Dequindre, relief of the Ordinance to construct a pedestrian 
bridge across Dequindre that will go right out to (and over) the front property line along 
Dequindre with the support tower located 18’ from the property line, where Paragraph D 
of Section 18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a 
public street. 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

Item #7 – con’t. 
 

• Bridge will increase staff and patient safety. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Wright, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it was possible for the Board to combine the next three (3) items at 
the same time since it is one petitioner. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the items could be presented as one, but that a separate motion 
and vote would be required for each address as each variance is different. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & FRAUS, 
ON BEHALF OF THE OWNERS DAVID & JANE BISHOP, 1147 GARWOOD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to maintain a home that was constructed 7.60’ from the east property  
line. 
 
ITEM #9 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & FRAUS, 
ON BEHALF OF THE OWNER, SUZANNE FARRAN, 1161 GARWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to maintain a home that was constructed 7.39’ from the east property 
line. 
 
ITEM #10 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & 
FRAUS, ON BEHALF OF THE OWNERS, MARK & KATHLEEN PETERSON, 1175 
GARWOOD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home constructed 7.30’ from the 
east property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
homes that were constructed 7.60, 7.39 & 7.30’, respectively, from the east property 
line.  Section 30.10.04 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 10’ side yard 
setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  Updated surveys have been submitted showing 
this existing home is only 7.30’ from the east property line and not in compliance with 
the minimum side yard setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that at the time the lots are platted, lot irons are placed at 
each corner of the lot.  Lot #6, #7 and #8 were platted showing 80’ in width.  Rather 
than the lot stakes placed in the correct locations, the lots were staked approximately 
two and one-half (2 ½’) to east of where they should have been placed. 
 
The “As-Built” surveys submitted to the Building Department indicated that each home 
was constructed on the lot indicating a 10’ side yard setback.  It has since been 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEMS #8, #9 & #10 – con’t. 
 
determined that these “As-Built” surveys were in error as they were based on the 
incorrect placement of the lot irons.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Building Department was sure these lots were the only lots 
that were incorrect. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the home on the lot to the east was placed correctly as it was 
surveyed from the other end of this subdivision. 
 
Mr. David Miller from Nowak & Fraus and Mr. George Platz of Spalding DeDecker were 
present.  Mr. Miller stated since they discovered this error they have gone back and 
surveyed each additional lot in the subdivision and made sure that they were positioned 
correctly.  Mr. Miller said that the only lots involved are the lots before the Board tonight. 
Mr. Miller also stated that the homeowners were not aware that this was a problem and 
if these variances are granted, they will set out new lot irons indicating the correct 
dimensions of each lot. 
 
In order, to have these lots conform part of each house would have to be removed and 
this would be an extreme difficulty. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood was present.  Mr. Chung said that his home is the lot 
right next to these lots.  Mr. Chung said that he feels he is a victim because he does not 
think there is enough room between his home and the home next door.  Mr. Chung also 
wanted to know how this happened and how to fix the system so that it would not 
happen again. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that it was simply an unintentional error. 
 
No one else wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals for each request.  There are no written objections. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that obviously this was not a mistake on the homeowners’ parts and 
he does not feel that they should have to be penalized for this mistake. 
 
ITEM #8 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #8 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owners, 
David and Jane Bishop, 1147 Garwood, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home 
that was constructed 7.60’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback is required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 
 
Motion by Kovacs. 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owner, 
Suzanne Farran, 1161 Garwood, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home that was 
constructed 7.39’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard setback is 
required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #10 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owners, 
Mark & Kathleen Peterson, 1175 Garwood, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home 
constructed 7.30’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard setback is 
required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A total of a 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (#5) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence 
that will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #11 to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of 
April 17, 2007 and was postponed to allow the petitioners to look into other possibilities.  
Mr. Stimac did meet with the homeowners, but as of today, the Building Department has 
not received any revised plans or a request to cancel this request. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Randall A. Whinnery, 2078 Tuscany, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that will 
result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of June 19, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2007 
CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #12 (ITEM #6) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VISION QUEST COUNSELING, 3455 
LIVERNOIS (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
office building without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, approximately 250’ of 
the site, as required by Section 39.70.10.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new office building.  This property has been rezoned to O-1 (Low-Rise Office) Zoning 
District.  Section 39.70.10 requires that a 6’ high masonry screen wall be provided 
between this property and the R-1B zoned property to the north.  The site plan 
submitted does not indicate the wall for the eastern, approximately 250’ of the site. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if a variance could be granted for this property with a time constraint. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that because it is a screening wall, the Board has the authority to grant 
a variance for one-year initially and then if all conditions are met, the Board would have 
the ability to renew the variance for a period up to three (3) years. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that it appears this parcel sits quite a bit higher than the residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac indicated that it is in fact, elevated above Livernois. Mr. Stimac said that he 
did not if was elevated as much above the subdivision.  Right now he does not know 
how the building will mirror conditions on the land.  
 
Mr. Brandon Kaufman of Fenn & Associates, was present.  Mr. Kaufman stated that 
they want to construct a very nice office building.  The site actually goes up and then 
goes back down and there is a 7’ difference in this slope.  The homeowners have asked 
that they construct the building as low as possible.  Right now they are planning to 
remove a large amount of dirt to make the building as unobtrusive as possible.  They do 
plan to make the site symmetrical with the back yards of the homeowners.  There is a 
wall and a significant amount of natural screening.   
 
Mr. Kaufman said that they have worked very hard with the homeowners and they do 
not want a wall.  The homeowners have asked to leave as much natural vegetation as 
possible.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by 
 
MOVED, to grant Vision Quest Counseling, 3455 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new office building without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, 
approximately 250’ of the north property line where it abuts residentially zoned property, 
as required by section 39.70.10 for a period of one-year. 
 

• Not contrary to public interest. 
• Absent a variance, significant natural features will be affected. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR A PERIOD OF ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. CLARK CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 
 
 
              
     Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 10



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held 
Tuesday, May 22, 2007 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to 
order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Alison Miller 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 
    Jim Hattan 
    Bob Preston 
    Jeff Super 
    Dan O’Brien 

 
Members Absent:  Sandy Macknis 
 
City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 

Bob  Matlick 
    Gerry Scherlinck 
    Jeff Biegler 
 

Guests:   Doris Schuchter 
    Mimi Ashamalla 
    Diana McKay 
 
 

 
Excuse Members Absent 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-23 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
Resolved, that Sandy Macknis is excused. 

      MOTION CARRIED 
 

Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
 

None 
Budget – June meeting  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 

 
Approval of Minutes 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-24 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of April 24, 2007 are approved as submitted. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

New Business 
 

None 
 
Old Business 
 
a. Contract Updates 
 
Fireworks permit in and turned over to Assistant Chief Dave Roberts 
 
Question from 2006 line item account 7942 for $7350 was from Mad Power for a 
generator and turned in late. 
 
Porta-John Company called Bob Berk, referred to Purchasing, bid going out in 
June.  
 
Electrical - Mike Gonda, Bob Berk and Jeff Biegler will be meeting with Jeff 
Winarski re: Electrical Specs.  
 
Committee Reports: 
Operations (Mike Gonda) – Pepsi will donate product, but less than 2006 -  
50 cases water, 10 cases diet, 10 cases regular & 5 cases Sierra Mist 
 
Nino Salvaggio has approved in-kind product (cheese, fruit, veggie & shrimp 
trays for the trailer). 
 
Entertainment (Jeff Stewart) is all booked except for one spot. Main tent is 
booked (under budget), Outdoor Stage (booked way under budget).  
 
Special Needs taken care of, volunteers committed, cakes donated for theme 
(“Everyone’s Birthday”). 
 
Amusement Rides (Bob Berk) - Vendor contract is up this year. RFQ should be 
done close to Sept/Oct. Jeff Biegler has old specs to compare.  
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 

Fireworks (Bob Matlick) - permit info turned into Asst. Chief Dave Roberts.  
 
Police (Gerry Scherlinck) – all set. 
 
Parade (Diana McKay & Doris Schuchter) – Many groups have been contacted 
(School groups, Boys & Girls Club, Troy & Athens Bands).  Many are committing 
to floats.  Parade will start off Oakland County Honor Guard, followed by Service 
men and women, and the Marine Band – salute to military! 
 
Kmart will donate small flags to use along the route. Called Wal-Mart and other 
merchants, hope to get donations, merchandise.  
 
Lincoln Mercury contact working with Diana to play dice game in the park to win 
one year car lease. This will be on site after Parade. 
 
Cub Scouts will hand out raffle tickets to parade goers. Prizes for kids and adults  
 
Prize giveaways at Outdoor Stage from 11 am - 12 pm. Mayor Schilling is trying 
to get Council together on a float.  Dan O’Brien has a contract for a flatbed trailer. 
Alison can help with getting convertibles for Miss Troy winners and Mr. Troy 
(Jaguar and Lincoln-Mercury North Brothers). 
 
Petting Zoo (Bob Preston) - still pursuing info on the Petting Zoo.  Will check 
MFEA, Internet, and a contact Mike has through the Parade Company.  
 
Shuttles (Jeff Super) - Diana McKay requests golf carts to help with the Parade.  
 
Cutest Toddler/Cutest Infant Contest (Alison Miller) - Plans to change ages: 
infant to 1 year and toddler 1 - 3 years.  No photos will be returned by mail. If 
they want them back they can pick them up from the Community Center.  
 
Display will be at the Community Center only (not Library) before being moved to 
Troy Daze. 
 
New Car Show (Alison Miller) - Some dealers (5-6) would still like to be part of 
Troy Daze in some way.  Is there any place we can put them? Mike & Bob will 
work on this.  Also she will need a small tent near this area.  
 
Miss Troy Pageant - Troy Schools turned down Danielle’s request to use Boulan 
School for pageant. Cindy spoke with Tim and he will try to get approval for the 
use.  
 
Sponsors (Cindy Stewart) – National City, Comcast, WOW, ITC Transmission, 
Henry Ford Hospital, Tringali Sanitation.  All packets have gone out.  
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 

Publicity – get info on your events to Cindy for press releases and festival 
booklet.  
 
Booths (Bob Berk) - 40% sold 

4 open food booths 
Outdoor booths still open 

 
Jim Hattan - Idea for softball tournament.  Concern that space/logistics will not be 
able to accommodate this, due to rides and Arnold’s trailers. Jim will look into this 
idea for future years or football tournament at Boulan School for middle school 
aged kids.   
 
Public Comment – NONE 
 
Member Comment – NONE 
 

  
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-25 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee meeting of May 22, 2007 is 
adjourned. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 

 
 
 
REMINDER: Next meeting – June 26, 2007 at 7:00 PM 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   May 23, 2007 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on May 23, 2007 at 7:00 PM at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Alex Gabriel and Joseph Niemiec called the meeting to order 
at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Andrew Corey  (Secretary) 

Maxine D’Amico  
Alex Gabriel (Co-chair) 
Rishi Joshi 
Jessica Kraft 
Joseph Niemiec (Co-chair) 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 
VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  John Hug, Fitness/Gym Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-5-10 
  Moved by   D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Wullaert 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of April 25, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 - Bozimowski   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through April 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitor:   Mayor Louise Schilling 
-Mayor presented recognition certificates for members leaving Youth Council.   
Presented information on current issues including: 
 -Provided information on the 2007/08 budget.   

-Presented information on the Pavillions project.  
-Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R as site of assisted living 
complex with park areas. 

 -Civic Center site pathways. 
 -Bocce ball and shuffle board courts at Community Center. 
 -DDA is funding Jazz concerts. 
 -Council voted to approve the liquor license 
 -New restaurant - Kona Grille      

 
5. Troy Daze Festival Update - None 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   May 23, 2007 
 

 2

 
6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-5-11 

  Moved by  D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Thoenes  

  
RESOLVED that Sasha Bozimowski is excused. 

  Yes:  All - 12   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 - Bozimowski   
  
7. Youth Council Comments –  

 
8. Public Comments –      

-None. 
 
9. Adjournment – 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Alex Gabriel, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: August 22 at 7:00 P.M.  



pallottaba
Text Box
J-03a



S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007June 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
June 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

6
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission (Act 78) 
(Lower Level 
Conference Room)

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Special 
Meeting) (Lower Lev

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board (Con

14
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

22 23

24

25 26
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetin

27 28 29 30

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007July 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

July 1

2 3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

4
City Hall Closed

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5 6 7

8

9
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
9:00am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

12 13 14

15

16 17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25 26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

31



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
August 1

8:30am Building Code Board 
of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm City Council-Special 
Meeting-Chamber of 

2 3 4

5

6
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

7
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

8
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

14
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

22
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

23 24 25

26

27 28
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

29 30 31



 

 
 
May 24, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Report & Communication – Council Comments from 05/21/07 – Additional 

Panel and Security Concerns for Board of Review 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the May 21, 2007 City Council meeting, Councilman Howrylak suggested looking into whether 

or not the Board of Review needed another 3 member panel to augment the existing 3 member 
Board.  He expressed concern over the workload this past March. 

 
He also suggested looking into increased security for the meetings. 
 
It can only be assumed that these concerns were brought forward to him by his father, who serves 
admirably on the Board of Review.  No Board member has mentioned this to me. 
 
The 2007 Board of Review had 155 in-person appeals this year, spread over a 5 day (and 
meeting) time frame (the first 3 days and hours are set by State law).  There were 191 
appointments available during those times (each appeal is given a 10 minute appointment).  
Therefore, there were 36 vacant appointments in the schedule, accounting for 360 minutes, or 6 
hours of openings in the schedule.  These openings were spread fairly evenly over each day.  
 
There was, however, very few minutes of rest (other than lunches or dinners) for the Board.  It 
seemed that whenever an opening was available, other petitioners would go well beyond their 
allotted time, and use up the available open space.  This was a courteous and commendable 
action by the Board’s Chair, and it’s members, as it would have been to the Board’s benefit to end 
the petitioner’s appeal after their allotted time had expired. 
 
The 155 appointments were the most we have heard since 1995, the year following the 
implementation of Proposal A, the ‘cut and cap’ proposal. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



Many petitioners were angry, and aggressive this year, as most saw their assessments go down, 
and yet had to deal with their taxable value going up.  The Board, in its entirety, showed 
remarkable calm and patience in dealing with these taxpayers. 
 
One petitioner raised concerns for the Board, the waiting petitioners, and the Deputy Assessor, 
Kimberly Harper, (who was stationed at the Assessing counter to assist petitioners with the forms, 
and answer questions, which is standard procedure).  Kim did request a Police presence, as the 
petitioner was making everyone within earshot nervous. 
 
The 2 Officers stayed inside the Assessing counter, and no action, or intervention was needed. 
 
All of this being said, there was only 1 extra day added to cover the appointments this year.  While 
155 appointments are much more than normal, post Proposal A, it is certainly not overwhelming.  
Prior to Proposal A, we regularly saw over 300 appointments in a year, with 1 Board.  We either 
saw them over 8 days, or shortened the appointments to 5 minutes each, and saw them over 5 
days.  We regularly worked until 10:30, 11:00, or 11:30 for 7 of the 8 days. 
 
For a few years in the late 80,s and early 90’s we ran 2 Boards, and peaked at almost 800 
appeals, before Proposal A reduced the number, dramatically. 
 
While 155 appointments (or even fewer in the preceding 8-10 years) is a benefit for the staff in the 
Assessing Department, only 1 member of this current Board ever saw anywhere near the volume 
we used to handle, and were used to handling. 
 
Most of the pre Proposal A petitioners were angrier than those we saw in 2007.  Any change in 
their assessment meant a change in taxes, and at that time we were seeing double digit increases 
in assessments.  We had the same security set up then, as now, someone at the counter. 
 
As most taxpayers are now aware of the workings of taxable value, I do not foresee the amount of 
appointments increasing, even if the market continues to fall for the next year or so.  The first time 
anything new happens in the assessing field is usually the worst year for appeals, after that, the 
public becomes educated, and the appeals drop off. 
 
The shortest serving member of the board has been on for 9 years, and fatigue with the process, 
and the time required can be a factor.  As they are volunteers, I would not feel abandoned by any 
who wish to resign.  I appreciate the tremendous work that all of our members, past and present 
have given to the citizens of this community. 
 
It should be apparent that I do not favor adding another Board, with this volume of appointments. 
 
As for the security issue, short of having a metal detector at all of the entrances, I do not see any 
way to be more secure than we are.  As no metal detectors are used at the Council meetings, or 
any other Board meetings, I am averse to be the first Board to have them. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Board members are paid $75 per meeting (usually a minimum of 8 hours long).  This year’s 

stipend amounted to $1,125.  The lunches and dinners amounted to $402.88.  This is a total of 
$1,527.88 for 2007.  Another Board would cost at least ¾ of this amount, or $1,145.91 for a total 



of $2,673.79.  Additionally, there would be overtime for 1 more Office Assistant (to take notes), 
and overtime for an Appraiser to assist at the counter (as the Deputy Assessor would have to be 
the Secretary of the second Board.  At an average cost of $100 per hour (including benefits for 
both) this would add an additional $2,000.  This puts the total cost at $4,673.79, an additional 
$3,145.91, which is not budgeted, and has no other funding source. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations with this issue. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Adding another 3 member panel to the Board of Review does not advance any policy 

considerations of the City Council.  It may, in fact, be adverse to Policy Goal II: “Minimize the cost 
and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government.”, as it would not minimize the 
cost, and there is certainly a question of it being more efficient. 

 
Options: 
 
 Council has the option of appointing up to 3 – 3 member panels to the Board of Review by State 

law. 
 
 
NL/nl  H:\Manager\AddBoard.Security05.24.07.doc 


	AGENDA: June 4, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Presentation by Senator John Pappageorge on behalf of St. Ni
	Presentation by Ross A. Davison of University of Michigan – 
	Presentation by Commissioner Robert Gosselin and Commissione


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development D
	C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilit
	C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Cor
	C-4 Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Developme

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a\) Boy Scout Troop 1702 – Celebrating 2�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: T�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Privat
	E-6 Private Agreement for Walco Properties – Project No. 06.
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way
	E-9 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of 

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:   Board of Zoning Appeals; Advisory Committee for Person
	F-2 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Villas of Somerset
	F-3 Request from Walsh College to Use City of Troy 2007 Comm
	F-4 Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planni
	F-5 Bid Waiver – Digital Recording of Sanitary Sewer Inspect
	F-6 Bid Waiver – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment
	F-7 Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Ar

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities – Revision 
	Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedim


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Personnel Board/Final – June 5, 2006
	Historic Commission/Final – January 23, 2007
	Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 18, 2007
	Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – April 24, 2007
	Youth Council/Final – April 25, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – May 1, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – May 1, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 2, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 15, 2007
	Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – May 22, 2007
	Youth Council/Draft – May 23, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation from Mark A. Hackel – Office of the S

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from City Assessor Nino Licari Regarding 

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, #6345 - City Assessor



